Meeting:
Date/Time:
Location:
Contact:
Email:

Health and Wellbeing Board
Thursday, 7 January 2016 at 2.00 pm
Guthlaxton Committee Room, County Hall, Glenfield
Mrs. R. Palmer (Tel: 0116 305 6098)
rosemary.palmer@leics.gov.uk
Membership
Mr. E. F. White CC (Chairman)
Gillian Adams
John Adler
Karen English
Lesley Hagger
Ch. Supt. Sally Healy
Mr. Dave Houseman MBE, CC
Dr Andy Ker
Dr Satheesh Kumar
Dr Mayur Lakhani

Rick Moore
Mr. I. D. Ould CC
Cllr. P. Posnett
Cllr. P. Ranson
Toby Sanders
Mike Sandys
Trish Thompson
Jon Wilson

AGENDA
Item

Report by

1.

Minutes of the meeting held on 19 November
2015 and Action Log.

2.

To advise of any other items which the
Chairman has decided to take as urgent
elsewhere on the agenda.

3.

Declarations of interest in respect of items on
the agenda.

4.

Position Statement by the Chairman.

(Pages 3 - 16)

Strategy
5.

Refresh and Approval of Better Care Fund for
2016/17.

Director of Health
and Care
Integration

There will be a powerpoint presentation for this item.

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall
Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk
www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy

www.facebook.com/leicsdemocracy

www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy

6.

Refresh of the Joint Health and Wellbeing
Strategy.

Director of Public
Health

(Pages 17 - 24)

7.

Health and Wellbeing Board Annual Report.

Director of Health
and Care
Integration

(Pages 25 - 46)

8.

CAMHS Transformation Plan - Assurance on
Progress and Funding.

Director of
Children and
Family Services

(Pages 47 122)

9.

Transforming Care: Building the Right Support.

Director of Adults
and Communities

(Pages 123 128)

Performance
10. Winter Performance and Vanguard Update.

West
(Pages 129 Leicestershire and 146)
East Leicestershire
and Rutland CCG

11. Delayed Transfers of Care.

Director of Adults
and Communities

(Pages 147 154)

12. Community Conversations.

Healthwatch

(Pages 155 158)
(Pages 159 162)

13. BCF Quarter 2 (June - September) Submission Director of Health
for Assurance.
and Care
Integration
14. Date of next meeting.
The next meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board will be held on 10 March 2016
at 2.00pm.
15. Any other items which the Chairman has
decided to take as urgent.

3

Agenda Item 1

Minutes of a meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held at County Hall, Glenfield on
Thursday, 19 November 2015.
PRESENT
Leicestershire County Council
Mr. E. F. White CC (In the Chair)
Mr. Dave Houseman MBE, CC
Mr. I. D. Ould CC

Mike Sandys
Jon Wilson

Clinical Commissioning Groups
Karen English
Dr Andy Ker
Prof Mayur Lakhani
Toby Sanders
NHS England
Trish Thompson
University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust
John Adler
Healthwatch Leicestershire
Rick Moore
Gillian Adams
Leicestershire District/Borough Councils
Cllr Pam Posnett
Leicestershire Police
Ch. Supt Sally Healy
In attendance
Helen Burchnall, Leicestershire Partnership NHS Trust
225. Minutes and Action Log.
The minutes of the meeting held on 17 September were taken as read, confirmed and
signed.
The Board also noted the Action Log, which provided an update on progress with the
actions agreed by the Board during 2015.

4
It was reported that Action 206(b), for Healthwatch to refer the findings of the Quick Poll
Survey regarding GP services to the CCGs for consideration, had now been completed.
226. Urgent Items.
There were no urgent items for consideration.
227. Declarations of interest in respect of items on the agenda.
The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of
items on the agenda for the meeting.
Rick Moore and Gillian Adams declared a personal interest which could lead to bias in
the report on Healthwatch Recommissioning (minute 243 refers) as members of the
Healthwatch and undertook to leave the room during discussion of that item.
228. Position Statement by the Chairman.
The Chairman gave a position statement on the following matters:•
•
•
•
•

Important messages and key facts to keep well and use health and care services
wisely this winter;
Local developments;
Development support for Health and Wellbeing Boards;
National Developments;
Other publications/resources/conferences.

Board members were encouraged to promote the messages regarding keeping well and
using health and care services wisely during winter and to ensure that the messages
were consistent. There was also a radio clip on the subject which could be shared with
members of the Board.
A copy of the position statement is filed with these minutes.
229. East Midlands Strategic Clinical Networks and Clinical Senate.
The Board considered a report which provided information about the role and function of
the East Midlands Strategic Clinical Networks and Clinical Senate and an update on
progress against the business plan for 2015/16. It also provided a briefing on the current
national review of improvement and leadership development across the health and care
system. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 4’ is filed with these minutes.
The role of the Clinical Senate in providing peer scrutiny of the Better Care Together
programme was welcomed. It was felt that this had been a robust and positive
experience.
There was a need locally to refocus the work to improve the Child and Adolescent Mental
Health Service (CAMHS) through the Better Care Together programme. It was
suggested that the expertise of the Clinical Network would be useful in this area.
The Clinical Network was working with Public Health England on preventative services. It
was felt this should be tied in with work being undertaken locally on prevention.

5
A suggestion was made that the Clinical Senate should include consideration of the
benefits and opportunities involved in Personal Health Budgets and Integrated Personal
Commissioning as part of its business plan for the following year.
RESOLVED:
(a) That the briefing on the East Midlands Clinical Networks and the Clinical Senate
be noted;
(b) That the Clinical Senate be asked to consider the inclusion of Personal Health
Budgets and Integrated Personal Commissioning in its 2016/17 business plan.
230. Palliative Care - Better Care Together End of Life Workstream.
The Board received a presentation from Karen Ashcroft, the Director of Strategy and
Development at LOROS which provided details of the work of the Better Care Together
End of Life workstream and the role of LOROS. A copy of the slides forming the
presentation is filed with these minutes.
It was noted that Caroline Trevithick, Chief Nurse at West Leicestershire Clinical
Commissioning Group, was the Senior Responsible Officer for the Better Care Together
End of Life workstream and that Karen Ashcroft was also presenting on her behalf.
Arising from discussion the following points were raised:(i) Concern was expressed that the care plans produced for patients at the end of
their life did not always follow the patient, particularly when a patient was admitted
to hospital. In addition, people often died in hospital despite wishing to die in their
own home. It was suggested that a collaborative approach was needed to resolve
this issue, which could include work supported by Public Health to raise
awareness and develop community capacity to support people to die at home.
(ii) It was noted that the End of Life workstream had not been involved in plans to
reduce the number of inpatient palliative care beds. However, the importance of
the workstream’s involvement in this area was recognised and would be
addressed.
(iii) LOROS would welcome greater partnership working with UHL and LPT,
particularly with regard to being made aware when services changed or new
services were put in place. This could be achieved in a number of ways including
by adding LOROS to routine newsletters that were already circulated to GPs.
(iv) There would be some events taking place during Dying Matters week in May next
year. It was suggested that Healthwatch could support this by undertaking a
Quick Poll on end of life care.
(v) LOROS had produced a map of the palliative care services available in Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland which could be shared with members of the Board.
This showed how fragmented and complex current services and pathways of care
were, which made delivery of effective, person centred care very challenging for
providers, service users , carers and families. Concern was expressed by several
board members about this and it was suggested that the End of Life workstream
within Better Care Together, the reprocurement of NHS 111 and the work to

6
integrate points of access all presented opportunities to redesign the local picture,
in particular to identify the best mechanisims for palliative care advice to be
provided and for more effective care coordination, on a 24/7 basis
RESOLVED:
(a) That the presentation on the Better Care Together workstream for End of Life Care
and the role of LOROS Hospice be noted;
(b) That the Better Care Together Programme Board be advised that in-patient
palliative care beds should be considered as part of the End of Life Care
workstream as well as from a capacity management perspective;
(c) That LOROS Hospice be added to the circulation list for UHL’s newsletter for GPs;
(d) That the mapping of palliative care services be shared with all members of the
Board for information;
(e) That Healthwatch be asked to undertake a Quick Poll relating to palliative care to
feed into Dying Matters week in May 2016.
231. Draft Adult Social Care Strategy 2016-2020.
The Board considered a report of the Director of Adults and Communities which invited
comments on the draft Adult Social Care Strategy 2016-2020, together with the
associated draft overarching commissioning intentions. A copy of the report marked
‘Agenda Item 6’ is filed with these minutes.
The strategy would be submitted to the County Council’s Cabinet for approval in January
2015. The Commissioning Strategy would then be produced. It was agreed that the
Health and Wellbeing Board could be involved in the development of the Commissioning
Strategy at an early stage.
RESOLVED:
(a) That the draft Adult Social Care Strategy be noted;
(b) That the documents underpinning the Adult Social Care Strategy be shared with
the Health and Wellbeing Board at an early stage.
232. Community Services Plan.
The Board considered a report of West Leicestershire Clinical Commissioning Group
which provided an opportunity to review the final version of the Community Services
Plan. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 7’ is filed with these minutes.
It was noted that there was fragmentation of both commissioners and providers of
community health services and that efforts were made to work collaboratively to reduce
the impact of this.
RESOLVED:

7
That the development of the West Leicestershire Clinical Commissioning Group
Community Services Plan be welcomed.
233. SEND Reform Update.
The Board considered a report of the Director of Children and Family Services which
provided an update on the progress to date in implementing Special Educational Needs
and Disabilities (SEND) reform as part of the Children and Families Act. A copy of the
report marked ‘Agenda Item 8’ is filed with these minutes.
It was noted that the biggest area of challenge, particularly for the Health Service, was
extending services to ensure that they addressed the needs of 18 – 25 year olds with
SEND. Work to address this was being undertaken as part of the whole life disability
strategy.
RESOLVED:
(a) That the current progress in implementing SEND reform be noted, particularly in
relation to the integrated working and contribution made by health professionals;
(b) That the consultation by Ofsted and the Care Quality Commissioning to develop a
specific framework to inspect local areas from spring 2016 be noted.
234. Winter Planning Arrangements.
The Board considered a report of the Urgent Care Board which provided an update on
the latest Winter Plan. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 9’ is filed with these
minutes.
The Board was advised that over the last 12 – 18 months significant progress had been
made across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland to reduce the numbers of delayed
discharges, due to the efforts of all partners in this area. The focus of the Urgent Care
Board had now shifted to reducing attendance at the Emergency Department, the
number of admissions to acute wards and ambulance handover times. This was
particularly important as there had been an unprecedented amount of activity in recent
weeks in terms of both admissions and attendance at the Emergency Department.
Work to reduce attendance at the Emergency Department was focusing on
communications, delivered through a coherent, partnership approach; maximising the
use of alternative services and changes to the front door at the Leicester Royal Infirmary.
This involved a new assessment and triage service and streaming patients directly to
other services where appropriate. Feedback on the performance of new services at the
front door would be provided to the next meeting of the Urgent Care Board.
With regard to ambulance handovers, the risk to patient safety was recognised and work
on improving processes was being undertaken with Unipart, who were using a logistics
approach to improve flow into the Emergency Department. Lessons were also being
learnt from the Healthwatch Enter and View visit undertaken earlier in the year. In
addition, work was ongoing to identify additional space within the Emergency Department
where patients brought in by ambulance could be overseen whilst they waited for
assessment.

8
Better use of ambulatory clinics and alternative services was being made in order to
reduce the number of admissions. There was also an internal focus within UHL on
patient flow, aimed at shortening the length of stay for patients.
Operational monitoring of performance happened daily or more frequently as required.
The Urgent Care Board considered performance at a strategic level on a fortnightly basis
and the Systems Resilience Group met each month.
It was acknowledged by UHL that there was a significant amount of pressure on both
primary care and social care services which meant that they also found it difficult to
manage demand. However, performance differed across the CCGs, with a higher level
of admission and attendance at the Emergency Department from East Leicestershire and
Rutland CCG. For West Leicestershire CCG, increases were broadly in line with what
had been forecast.
Concern was expressed that there was varying uptake of the new services that had been
put in place to target admissions. However it was confirmed that consideration was being
given to how patients accessed services so that the most used access points could direct
patients to alternative services. It was suggested that this signposting approach could be
extended to other customer service centres, such as those operated by the County
Council and Police. Information about staying well during winter could also be shared
with housing providers.
RESOLVED:
(a) That the Winter Plan for the local health and care system be noted;
(b) That a simple script be prepared for customer service centres across partners to
enable a consistent message about keeping well in winter to be given to the
public;
(c) That the messages included in the Chairman’s Position Statement about keeping
well in winter be turned into a leaflet and shared with partners for wider
dissemination, along with a link to a recent BBC Radio Leicester interview on the
same subject.
235. Housing Interventions to Support Reductions in Delayed Hospital Discharge.
The Board considered a report of the District Council Chief Executive Lead on Health and
Wellbeing which provided information about the delivery of two schemes by District
Councils designed to reduce delays in the discharge of patients from hospital. A copy of
the report marked ‘Agenda Item 10’ is filed with these minutes.
It was felt that a discussion with primary care colleagues regarding performance
indicators for the housing discharge schemes would be useful. It would be helpful if the
impact of discharges on primary care could be evaluated, as well as the effect on
readmission rates.
RESOLVED:
(a) That the progress with the housing interventions to support reductions in delayed
hospital discharge be welcomed;

9
(b) That the ongoing evaluation of the schemes in terms of return on financial
investment and understanding of outcomes for patients be supported.
236. Healthwatch Update: Swanswell Insight Report - Road to Recovery.
The Board considered a report from Healthwatch Leicestershire which presented the
findings of an exercise to collect evidence and insight relating to substance misuse
services. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 11’ is filed with these minutes.
Substance misuse services were currently being recommissioned so that there would be
an integrated model across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland. The Board was
pleased to note that the patient view supported this model.
RESOLVED:
That the recommendations be supported and partners be encouraged to consider any
actions for improvement of the Swanswell service and the substance misuse support
system as a whole.
237. Healthwatch Insight: Dentistry Quick Poll.
The Board considered a Quick Poll undertaken by Healthwatch Leicestershire to seek
patient’s views about Dental Services. A copy of the report is filed with these minutes.
RESOLVED:
That the findings of the Dentistry Quick Poll be referred to NHS England for
consideration.
238. Performance Update - Quarter 2.
The Board considered a joint report of the Chief Executive of Leicestershire County
Council and the Commissioning Support Performance Services which provided an
update on health performance issues at the end of quarter 2 of 2015/16. A copy of the
report marked ‘Agenda Item 13’ is filed with these minutes.
It was noted that the potential years of life lost from causes considered amenable to
healthcare had increased in East Leicestershire and Rutland. A deep dive was being
undertaken to understand the reason for the increase and how it could be addressed.
RESOLVED:
That the performance summary, issues identified this quarter and actions planned in
response to improve performance be noted.
239. Annual Report of the Director of Public Health 2015.
The Board considered the Annual Report of the Director of Public Health for 2015 which
focused on the role of communities in improving the health and wellbeing of the
population. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 14’ is filed with these minutes.

10
The Board emphasised the importance of partners across the health and social care
system working together and co-ordinating community activity to ensure that it was
focussed in the right areas and that there was no duplication of effort.
RESOLVED:
That the recommendations set out in the Director of Public Health’s Annual Report be
supported.
240. Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Health Protection Assurance Report.
The Board considered a report of the Director of Public Health which provided assurance
regarding the whole system for health protection across Leicester, Leicestershire and
Rutland and that the Health Protection Board was delivering its statutory functions. A
copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 15’ is filed with these minutes.
RESOLVED:
(a) That the Health Protection Board Report April 2014 – September 2015 be noted;
(b) That the specific health protection issues that have arisen locally and steps taken
to deal with these issues be noted.
241. Change to the Order of Business.
The Chairman sought and obtained the consent of the Board to vary the order of
business from that set out on the agenda.
242. Revised Terms of Reference for the Integration Executive.
The Board considered a report of the Director of Health and Care Integration which
presented a revision to the terms of reference for the Integration Executive for approval.
A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 17’ is filed with these minutes.
RESOLVED:
That the revised terms of reference for the Integration Executive be approved.
243. Healthwatch Leicestershire Recommissioning.
The Board considered a report of the Chief Executive of Leicestershire County Council
which provided information relating to the proposals for recommissioning Healthwatch
services for Leicestershire. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 16’ is filed with
these minutes.
Rick Moore and Gillian Adams, having declared personal interests which could lead to
bias in this item, left the room during discussion of the matter.
It was requested that partner organisations be formally involved in the recommissioning
of Healthwatch. It was also felt that the review should not cause Healthwatch to become
distracted from delivering their usual business.
RESOLVED:

11
That the proposal for recommissioning Healthwatch services for Leicestershire be noted.
244. Date of next meeting.
The next meeting of the Board would take place on Thursday 7 January 2016 at 2.00pm.

2.00 - 4.25 pm
19 November 2015

CHAIRMAN

12

This page is intentionally left blank

Health and Wellbeing Board Action Log

Date

162(b)

22/01/15

176(e)

12/03/15

178(b)

12/03/15

190(a)

14/05/15

190(b)

14/05/15

206(b)

16/07/15

209(c)

16/07/15

216(b)

17/09/15

Action

Responsible
Officer
Submit updates on work to progress the Special Gill Weston
Educational Needs and Disabilities reforms to
each meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board
until March 2016.
The Director of Public Health to establish a
Mike Sandys
formal relationship with NHS England for
developing the commissioning plans for
pharmaceutical services.
Mandy Stott
Submit a further report reviewing the
effectiveness of the implementation of Phase 1
of the Care Act and setting out the requirements
for Phase 2 to a future meeting of the Health
and Wellbeing Board.
Submit further reports to the Health and
Jim Bosworth
Wellbeing Board biannually, with the first report
in September 2015, to provide assurance on the
implementation and impact of the mental health
policy changes and associated investment,
demonstrating how the investment has improved
parity of esteem
Jim Bosworth
Commissioners to seek support from
Healthwatch Leicestershire in assessing the
impact of the additional investment in mental
health from the public’s perspective.
Refer the findings of the Quick Poll Survey
Vandna Gohil
regarding GP services to the Clinical
Commissioning Groups for consideration.
Submit a report to a future meeting of the Board Toby Sanders/
on access to GP services.
Karen English
Submit a report on progresswith the CAMHS
Lesley Hagger
workstream to the next meeting of the Health
and Wellbeing Board.

Comments

Status

Reports scheduled for all future Board meetings until GREEN
March 2016

A request has been sent to NHS England but a
response has not yet been received.

AMBER

This item will be considered by the Health and
Wellbeing Board in January.

GREEN

Parity of esteem is being considered by the
AMBER
Integration Executive in February and a report will be
submitted to the Health and Wellbeing Board in
March.

13

No.

The report following consideration by the Integration GREEN
Executive in December (item 190(a) refers) will reflect
this.
The raw data has been sent to the CCGs for
consideration

GREEN

Report scheduled for the meeting of the Health and GREEN
Wellbeing Board in March 2016
Report is now scheduled for the meeting of the Health GREEN
and Wellbeing Board in January 2016

1

Health and Wellbeing Board Action Log

No.

Date

218(b)

17/09/15 Submit a report on the performance of the
urgent care system during Winter 2015, along
with development and implementation of the
Vanguard to the Health and Wellbeing Board in
January 2016.
17/09/15 Circulate the Healthwatch signposting directory Vandna Gohil
to members of the Board.

219(d)

Action

Responsible
Officer
Toby Sanders

17/09/15 Ask the GP Representatives on the Health and
Wellbeing Board to consider how the need to
identify private fostering arrangements can be
promoted more effectively to GPs.

Mayur Lakhani/
Andy Ker

229(b)

19/11/15 Ask the Clinical Senate to consider the inclusion
of Personal Health Budgets and Independent
Personal Commissioning in its 2016/17 business
plan.
19/11/15 Advise the Better Care Together Programme
Board that in-patient palliative care beds should
be considered as part of the End of Life Care
workstream as well as from a capacity
management perspective.
19/11/15 Add LOROS Hospice to the circulation list for
UHL’s newsletter for GPs
19/11/15 Share the mapping of palliative care services
with all members of the Board for information;
19/11/15 Asl Healthwatch to undertake a Quick Poll
relating to palliative care to feed into Dying
Matters week in May 2016.

Sarah Hughes

230(a)

230(b)
230(c)
230(d)

Status

Report scheduled for the meeting of the Health and
Wellbeing Board in January 2016

GREEN

The Directories are not available as yet - the
AMBER
publishers have advised that they are awaiting input
from CCGs. HW will distribute copies once it
receives them.
Publicity relating to private fostering has been shared GREEN
with the GP Representatives on the Health and
Wellbeing Board and an offer has been made from
the Service Manager to attend locality meetings.
Private Fostering will also be included in a newsletter
sent to all GP practices in January 2016.
Sarah Hughes has contacted Dr Hilary Fox, the
clinical lead for this work to follow up this request

GREEN

Rosemary Palmer Caroline Trevithick, SRO for End of Life Care, has
confirmed that the End of Life Workstream will be
looking at the provision of in-patient palliative care
beds

GREEN

John Adler

LOROS has been added to the circulation list.

GREEN

Karen Ashcroft

The mapping has been circulated to all members of
the Board
Request has been forwarded to Healthwatch

GREEN

Vandna Gohil

14

223

Comments

GREEN

2

Health and Wellbeing Board Action Log

No.

Date

Action

Responsible
Officer
Jon Wilson

Comments

231(b)

19/11/15 Share the documents underpinning the Adult
Social Care Strategy with the Health and
Wellbeing Board at an early stage.

234(b)

19/11/15 Prepare a simple script for customer service
centres across partners to enable a consistent
message about keeping well in winter to be
given to the public.

234(c)

19/11/15 Turn the messages included in the Chairman’s Cheryl Davenport The leaflet has been produced and circulated to all
members of the Health and Wellbeing Board with a
Position Statement about keeping well in winter
request for it to be cascaded.
into a leaflet and share it with partners for wider
dissemination, along with a link to a recent BBC
Radio Leicester interview on the same subject.

GREEN

237

19/11/15 Refer the findings of the Dentistry Quick Poll to
NHS England for consideration.

AMBER

The Adult Social Care Commissioning Strategy and
Market Position Statement will be considered by the
County Council's Cabinet in February and submitted
to the Health and Wellbeing Board in March for
information.
Cheryl Davenport The script has been shared with partners and is as
follows:"Can I take this opportunity to
check you are aware of how to access urgent health
advice if and when needed"
Remind them of 111 number and the NHSE winter
wellness website and maybe offer to email our local
advice sheet (which will also be prominently online)

NHS England has been asked for an update on
progress with this action.

GREEN

GREEN

15

Trish Thompson

Status

3

16

This page is intentionally left blank

17

Agenda Item 6

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD:
REPORT OF JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT / JOINT HEALTH
AND WELLBEING STRATEGY STEERING BOARD
REFRESH OF JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY 2016-19
Purpose of report
1.

The purpose of this report is to present a proposal for updating the Leicestershire
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) for 2016-19, including the framework for
how this will be undertaken, and a project timetable.

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
2.

The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy is a statutory duty for the Health and
Wellbeing Board. Local authorities and clinical commissioning groups (CCGs) have
equal and joint duties to prepare Joint Strategic Needs Assessments (JSNAs) and
JHWSs, through the Health and Wellbeing Board.

3.

The JHWS is a strategy for meeting the needs identified in JSNA. The JHWS must
also incorporate the priorities for the NHS set out in the NHS Forward Plan.

4.

The JHWS should explain what priorities the Health and Wellbeing Board has set in
order to tackle the needs identified in its JSNA. It should focus on setting a small
number of key strategic priorities for action that will make a real impact on people’s
lives. The JHWS should focus on outcomes that will inform local commissioning,
leading to locally led initiatives that meet those outcomes and address the needs.

5.

The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for Leicestershire was presented to the Health
and Wellbeing Board in July 2015 and approved for publication.

Background
6.

The existing Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Leicestershire runs from 20132016, so there is a need to review the strategy and update it in 2016.

7.

In 2015, the JSNA for Leicestershire was updated. This provides a robust evidence
base for developing a new strategy for Leicestershire.

8.

During the life cycle of the existing strategy there have been significant changes to
the health and social care system, as a result of implementing the Health and Social
Care Act 2012. These include:
•
•

responding to the NHS Mandate 2014-2016;
implementation of The Care Act 2014;

18
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
9.

responding to the Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) reforms;
setting a national and local vision for integration including the introduction of the
Better Care Fund (BCF) in April 2014;
the development of “Better Care Together” (BCT), the Leicester, Leicestershire
and Rutland (LLR) Five Year Plan, in June 2014;
the addition of learning disabilities as a priority within the JHWS, linked to the
HWB’s response to the findings of the ”Transforming Care”;
a comprehensive review of the LLR urgent care system undertaken between
June and November 2014;
the introduction of co-commissioning for primary care;
the scaling up of integrated personal commissioning;
the transition of health visitor commissioning into public health; and
the continued unprecedented financial pressure on public services in the context
of an ageing population and rising demands.

To ensure that the 2013-16 strategy continued to be relevant and to deliver
improvements in health and wellbeing in Leicestershire, in January 2015 the Health
and Wellbeing Board published an update to the strategy.

Proposals/Options
10. The national guidance for developing local Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategies
sets out the following conditions:
•
•
•

•

JSNAs will be the means by which local leaders work together to understand
and agree the needs of all local people;
Joint health and wellbeing strategies set the priorities for collective action;
JHWSs will be the pillars of local decision-making, focusing leaders on the
priorities for action and providing the evidence base for decisions about local
services; and
The JHWS is a unique opportunity for the Health and Wellbeing Board members
to explore together the local issues that they have not managed to tackle on
their own.

11. The NHS Confederation has published good practice in Joint Health and Wellbeing
Strategies and this proposes that a strategy should consider the following issues:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Is the JHWS being co-created through active engagement and involvement of
local communities, patients, service users and carers?
Are local providers effectively engaged?
Are data and intelligence being used and presented wisely in the JHWS?
Will the JHWS add value to existing local strategic plans and actions around
reducing health inequalities and improving health and care?
Is the JHWS sufficiently ambitious in addressing wellbeing not just health?
Is a system approach being taken to align resources with strategic priorities?
Will the JHWS facilitate and drive integration and joint commissioning?
What mechanisms and structures are in place to deliver the JHWS?
Is there clarity on accountability for action and outcomes?
Has the JHWS been presented in an accessible, compelling and mobilising
way?

19

12. The JSNA/ JHWS Steering Board has considered all of the issues discussed within
this paper and proposes that the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy for
Leicestershire should be refreshed based on the following aspirations:
•
•
•

a single overarching strategy that references all the key strategic strands that
are taking place;
a real focus through the JHWS on what the HWB wants to focus on to improve
the lives of the people of Leicestershire; and
a focus on increasing healthy life expectancy and the people that will be in their
60s in 10-20 years’ time.

13. It is proposed that the Health and Wellbeing Board develops a strategy that is
focused on a small number of key strategic issues that are important to delivering
improvements in the health and wellbeing of Leicestershire over the next two to three
years.
14. The first step in developing a new strategy for Leicestershire will be to undertake an
exercise to map the key priorities identified in the JSNA against the delivery streams
across Leicestershire. This will identify any gaps between these delivery streams and
the population health and wellbeing needs and will form a structure for agreeing the
priorities for the strategy.
15. It is proposed the JHWS focuses on issues that need a partnership approach to
address rather than issues that will be delivered through a single part of the system.
16. The issues that are identified in the JHWS will be reviewed using a whole life
approach and will focus on the whole pathway of care for that issue.
Consultation/Patient and Public Involvement
17. Co-production approaches, both across the partnership and with the wider
community, are key to developing a JHWS and plans to incorporate patient and
public views are included in the draft project plan. It is important to note the
considerable amount of patient and public involvement that is currently happening
across the system with consultations on the Adult Social Care Strategy and Better
Care Together already happening and the project plan will include incorporating the
feedback from these consultations as the starting point for this work.
Resource Implications
18. The development of the JHWS will be led by Leicestershire County Council
supported by a project team that includes representation from the CCGs and
Healthwatch.
19. Implementation of the JHWS will require co-ordination by the Health and Wellbeing
Board with plans to deliver the strategy being integrated into the commissioning
cycles of all organisations represented on the Health and Wellbeing Board with the
associated resource implications this will need.
Timetable for Decisions

20
20. It is proposed that a refreshed JHWS is available for sign-off at the July Health and
Wellbeing Board meeting. Approval at this stage will mean that the strategy can be
incorporated into the commissioning cycle in 2016/17 for implementation in 2017/18.
Conclusions/Recommendations
21. It is recommended that the Health and Wellbeing Board:
a. supports the proposal to refresh the JHWS in 2016;
b. supports the approach identified to undertake this refresh;
c. holds a development session in March to consider the prioritisation of issues for
the JHWS once the mapping exercise is complete;
d. approves the project plan for the development of the refresh; and
e. receives regular progress reports from the JSNA/ JHWS Steering Board on the
development of the strategy.
Background papers
Statutory Guidance on Joint Strategic Needs Assessments and Joint Health and Wellbeing
Strategies
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/223842/Stat
utory-Guidance-on-Joint-Strategic-Needs-Assessments-and-Joint-Health-and-WellbeingStrategies-March-2013.pdf
NHS England. Five Year Forward View. https://www.england.nhs.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2014/10/5yfv-web.pdf
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment – Executive Summary 2015. Leicestershire.
http://www.lsr-online.org/uploads/executive-summary-report.pdf
Leicestershire’s Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2013-16 http://www.lsronline.org/uploads/jhws-2012.pdf
Health and Social Care Act 2012
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/7/contents/enacted
Leicestershire Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy, January 2015 – Update of the Joint
Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2013-16 http://www.lsr-online.org/uploads/jhws-refresh201516.pdf
Good practice in joint health and wellbeing strategies: a self-evaluation tool for health and
wellbeing boards.
http://www.nhsconfed.org/~/media/Confederation/Files/Publications/Documents/Goodpractice-self-evaluation-tool-health-wellbeing-boards.pdf
National Implementation plan for Transforming Care: https://www.england.nhs.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2015/10/ld-nat-imp-plan-oct15.pdf
National service model for Transforming Care: https://www.england.nhs.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2015/10/service-model-291015.pdf
Officer to Contact

21
Mike Sandys, Director of Public Health
Telephone: 0116 3054239
mike.sandys@leics.gov.uk
Email:
List of Appendices
Appendix A: Draft Project Plan
Relevant Impact Assessments
Equality and Human Rights Implications
22.

The JHWS will subject to a full equalities and human rights impact assessment.

Partnership Working and associated issues
23. The JHWS is a partnership document that will involve all partners represented in the
Health and Wellbeing Board.

22

This page is intentionally left blank

ĞǀĞůŽƉƉƌŽũĞĐƚƉůĂŶ

:^Eͬ:,t^^ƚĞĞƌŝŶŐ
ŽĂƌĚ

DĂƉƉŝŶŐŽĨ:^EƚŽŬĞǇ
ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚƐ

ZĞǀŝĞǁŽĨŬĞǇƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ
ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚƐ

^ƵŵŵĂƌǇŽĨĂůůƌĞůĞǀĂŶƚ ϯϭĚĂǇƐ
ĞŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚƌĞƉŽƌƚƐ

ŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚĂŶĚ
ĐŽͲƉƌŽĚƵĐƚŝŽŶĂĐƚŝǀŝƚŝĞƐ

,tDĞĞƚŝŶŐ

:^Eͬ:,t^^ƚĞĞƌŝŶŐ
ŽĂƌĚ

'ĂƉŶĂůǇƐŝƐ

,tDĞĞƚŝŶŐ

ŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚŽŶƉƌŝŽƌŝƚŝĞƐ ϯϳĚĂǇƐ

ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚŽĨĚƌĂĨƚ
ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ

,tDĞĞƚŝŶŐ

ϵ

ϯ

ϭϬ

ϭϭ

ϭϱ

ϭϲ

ϱ

ϰ

ϭϮ

ϲ

ϭϯ

ϭϰ

ϳ

WƌĞĚĞĐĞƐƐŽƌƐ

dŚƵϯϬͬϬϲͬϭϲ

ǆƚĞƌŶĂůdĂƐŬƐ

DŝůĞƐƚŽŶĞ

^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ

dŚƵϬϳͬϬϳͬϭϲ dŚƵϬϳͬϬϳͬϭϲ

DŽŶ
ϬϮͬϬϱͬϭϲ

dŚƵϭϬͬϬϯͬϭϲ &ƌŝϮϵͬϬϰͬϭϲ

dŚƵϭϬͬϬϯͬϭϲ dŚƵϭϬͬϬϯͬϭϲ

dƵĞϭϵͬϬϭͬϭϲ DŽŶϮϵͬϬϮͬϭϲ

dƵĞϭϵͬϬϭͬϭϲ dƵĞϭϵͬϬϭͬϭϲ

dŚƵϬϳͬϬϭͬϭϲ dŚƵϬϳͬϬϭͬϭϲ

&ƌŝϭϴͬϭϮͬϭϱ &ƌŝϮϵͬϬϰͬϭϲ

&ƌŝϭϴͬϭϮͬϭϱ &ƌŝϮϵͬϬϭͬϭϲ

&ƌŝϭϴͬϭϮͬϭϱ tĞĚ
ϮϯͬϭϮͬϭϱ

&ƌŝϭϴͬϭϮͬϭϱ &ƌŝϮϵͬϬϭͬϭϲ

&ƌŝϭϴͬϭϮͬϭϱ &ƌŝϭϴͬϭϮͬϭϱ

tĞĚϭϲͬϭϮͬϭϱtĞĚϮϯͬϭϮͬϭϱ

tĞĚ
ϭϲͬϭϮͬϭϱ

tĞĚ
ϮϯͬϭϮͬϭϱ

dŚƵϬϳͬϬϳͬϭϲ

&ŝŶŝƐŚ

WƌŽũĞĐƚ^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ

ϬĚĂǇƐ

ϰϰĚĂǇƐ

ϬĚĂǇƐ

ϯϬĚĂǇƐ

ϬĚĂǇƐ

ϬĚĂǇƐ

ϵϲĚĂǇƐ

ϰĚĂǇƐ

ϯϭĚĂǇƐ͍

ϬĚĂǇƐ

ϲĚĂǇƐ͍

tĞĚ
ϭϲͬϭϮͬϭϱ

DŽŶ
Ϭϵͬϭϭͬϭϱ

DŽŶ
Ϭϵͬϭϭͬϭϱ

^ƚĂƌƚ

^Ɖůŝƚ

dĂƐŬ

:^Eͬ:,t^^ƚĞĞƌŝŶŐ
ŽĂƌĚ

Ϯ

ϬĚĂǇƐ

ĞǀĞůŽƉƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůŽŶ
ϯϯĚĂǇƐ͍
ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚĨŽƌ
:,t^

ϴ

ϭϳϰĚĂǇƐ͍

ƵƌĂƚŝŽŶ

:ŽŝŶƚ,ĞĂůƚŚĂŶĚ
tĞůůďĞŝŶŐ^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ
ϮϬϭϲͲϭϵ

dĂƐŬEĂŵĞ

ϭ

dĂƐŬ
DŽĚĞ

WƌŽũĞĐƚ͗:,t^WƌŽũĞĐƚWůĂŶ͘ŵƉƉ
ĂƚĞ͗DŽŶϮϭͬϭϮͬϭϱ

/

/ŶĂĐƚŝǀĞDŝůĞƐƚŽŶĞ

/ŶĂĐƚŝǀĞdĂƐŬ

WĂŐĞϭ

ϬϳͬϬϭ

ƵƌĂƚŝŽŶͲŽŶůǇ

DĂŶƵĂůdĂƐŬ

/ŶĂĐƚŝǀĞ^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ

ϭϴͬϭϮ

ϭϲͬϭϮ

ϭϵͬϬϭ

^ƚĂƌƚͲŽŶůǇ

DĂŶƵĂů^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ

DĂŶƵĂů^ƵŵŵĂƌǇZŽůůƵƉ

ϭϬͬϬϯ

WƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ

ĞĂĚůŝŶĞ

&ŝŶŝƐŚͲŽŶůǇ

ϬϳͬϬϳ

EŽǀĞŵďĞƌ
ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ
:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ
&ĞďƌƵĂƌǇ
DĂƌĐŚ
Ɖƌŝů
DĂǇ
:ƵŶĞ
:ƵůǇ
ϬϮͬϭϭϬϵͬϭϭϭϲͬϭϭϮϯͬϭϭϯϬͬϭϭϬϳͬϭϮϭϰͬϭϮϮϭͬϭϮϮϴͬϭϮϬϰͬϬϭϭϭͬϬϭϭϴͬϬϭϮϱͬϬϭϬϭͬϬϮϬϴͬϬϮϭϱͬϬϮϮϮͬϬϮϮϵͬϬϮϬϳͬϬϯϭϰͬϬϯϮϭͬϬϯϮϴͬϬϯϬϰͬϬϰϭϭͬϬϰϭϴͬϬϰϮϱͬϬϰϬϮͬϬϱϬϵͬϬϱϭϲͬϬϱϮϯͬϬϱϯϬͬϬϱϬϲͬϬϲϭϯͬϬϲϮϬͬϬϲϮϳͬϬϲϬϰͬϬϳϭϭͬϬϳϭϴͬϬϳϮϱͬϬϳ

ǆƚĞƌŶĂůDŝůĞƐƚŽŶĞ

ZĞƐŽƵƌĐĞEĂŵĞƐ

23

24

This page is intentionally left blank

25

Agenda Item 7

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 7 JANUARY 2016
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF HEALTH AND CARE INTEGRATION
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 2015
Purpose of report
1. The purpose of this report is to look back at the past year (2015) for the Health and
Wellbeing Board (HWB) and to reflect on the progress that has been made. The focus
throughout the report is the progress that has been made across the partnership to
improve the health and wellbeing of the population of Leicestershire.
Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
2. The HWB received an annual report in March 2014 and an update to the JHWs in
February 2015. This report builds on these two documents to update members on
the progress that has been made in 2015.
Background
3. The report provides an update on the following key themes:
a. An update on the progress made by the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) in
terms of implementing the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS).
b. An overview of some of the achievements and outcomes that have been
delivered by the HWB in 2015, including those supported by the Better Care
Fund pooled budget.
c. An update from Healthwatch Leicestershire on the progress that is being made
to meet the needs of the people of Leicestershire and how their insights have
contributed to the work of the HWB during 2015.
d. A look ahead to 2016 which will involve the first phase of delivery of the
Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland wide Better Care Together Strategy, the
refresh of the Leicestershire Better Care Fund and the refresh of the
Leicestershire HWB JHWS.

Consultation/Patient and Public Involvement
4. The report reflects on the ways that Healthwatch Leicestershire have worked with the
Health and Wellbeing Board to ensure that the views of patients and the public are
considered appropriately by the Board.
Conclusions/Recommendations
5. It is recommended that the Health and Wellbeing Board:
a. Approve the Health and Wellbeing Board Annual Report for publication;
b. Note the progress that has been made by the Board in 2015; and

26
c. Support the key work streams that have been identified to further progress the
impact of the HWB in 2015.

Officer to Contact
Cheryl Davenport, Director of Health and Care Integration
Telephone: 0116 30584212
Email:
Cheryl.davenport@leics.gov.uk
List of Appendices
Health and Wellbeing Board Annual Report 2015

2

27

APPENDIX
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 2015

LEICESTERSHIRE

Officers to contact:
Cheryl Davenport, Director of Health and Care Integration
Tel:

0116 3054212

Email: Cheryl.davenport@leics.gov.uk

Mike Sandys, Director of Public Health
Tel:

0116 3054239

Email: Mike.sandys@leics.gov.uk

Janine Dellar, Head of Public Health Intelligence
Tel:

0116 3054257

Email: Janine.dellar@leics.gov.uk

December 2015

Page 1 of 20

28

FOREWORD

Reflecting on the last twelve months has really brought home to me how fast the pace of
change in health and social care is. This is an unprecedented time of financial pressure
and increasing demand and as a system we have had to be agile in how we respond.
The integration of health and care services remains high on the agenda and I’m pleased to
report that as partners leading the Leicestershire Better Care Fund we have responded to
this challenge, with key achievements in improving hospital discharge, integrating health
and care data, and a joint focus on prevention such as piloting local area co-ordinators to
improve the health and wellbeing of individuals and communities.
Another big area of work for our Board last year was updating our Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment for Leicestershire. As well as being one of our statutory responsibilities, this
is a particularly important planning tool for the whole system as it provides an evidence
base to inform our future commissioning plans.
We recognise the many challenges we still face, especially reducing A&E attendance and
emergency admissions so that our health and care system can be more sustainable in the
future, keeping pace with the demographic growth we are experiencing in Leicestershire’s
populations, planning jointly for the impact of the significant changes affecting public health
allocations to deliver outcomes through prevention, and to manage the demands and
shrinking budgets affecting adult social care, so that we can continue to support the most
vulnerable.
There is much we can do by working together. I’m particularly pleased that we are taking a
consistent approach to how we communicate with the public about using the integrated
community services that are already available and continue to develop in the community
However, we will need to be even more robust in our planning for next year to make sure
we are both realistic and confident in what we can and must achieve together as system
leaders.
Looking ahead, we will be refreshing our Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy in 2016.
This will be a single overarching strategy for Leicestershire partners that provides a
reference point for all our work. We will use the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and
the case for change from the Better Care Together Programme to define our priorities. We
will need to focus on increasing healthy life expectancy and the health and wellbeing of
people who will be in their 60s in 10 – 20 years’ time.

Page 2 of 20

29

As local system leaders, we are responsible for ensuring some difficult and necessary
choices and changes come to fruition and holding each other to account. Only by working
together as a Health and Care system will we extract the maximum value from reducing
resources.
Our achievements over the last twelve months provide a strong foundation for this, which
we will build on over the next year. I look forward to some valuable thinking and
development time with the Board in early 2016 where we will challenge ourselves to be
even more ambitious system leaders in the months ahead.

Mr Ernie White CC

Page 3 of 20

30

SECTION A: INTRODUCTION
1. The purpose of this report is to look back at the past year (2015) for the Health and
Wellbeing Board (HWB) and to reflect on the progress that has been made. The focus
throughout the report is the progress that has been made across the partnership to
improve the health and wellbeing of the population of Leicestershire.
2. Within this report the following sections are presented:
a. An update on the progress made by the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) in
terms of implementing the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS).
b. An overview of some of the achievements and outcomes that have been
delivered by the HWB in 2015, including those supported by the Better Care
Fund pooled budget.
c. An update from Healthwatch Leicestershire on the progress that is being made
to meet the needs of the people of Leicestershire and how their insights have
contributed to the work of the HWB during 2015.
d. A look ahead to 2016 which will involve the first phase of delivery of the
Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland wide Better Care Together Strategy, the
refresh of the Leicestershire Better Care Fund and the refresh of the
Leicestershire HWB JHWS.
3. Appended to this report are a number of case studies that illustrate how the people of
Leicestershire have benefitted from the changes that have been made to the health
and social care system.
SECTION B: HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD PROGRESS IN 2015
B.1 UPDATE ON THE JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY 2013-16
4. In January 2015, the HWB approved an update for the JHWS 2013-16. This update
reviewed all of the new strategic drivers that have been implemented since the original
publication of the JHWS and also incorporated learning disability as an additional area
of priority, reflecting the renewed importance of transforming this area of care nationally
and locally.
5. The implementation of the JHWS 2013-16 has been aligned to the delivery
mechanisms for Better Care Together and the Better Care Fund. The key priorities for
improving the health and wellbeing of our population are being addressed through an

Page 4 of 20

31

integrated partnership approach that will deliver a more effective health and care
system and improved outcomes for the local population.
6. The refresh of the strategy is available from:
http://www.leics.gov.uk/healthwellbeingboard
7. Progress against the strategy has been reported through the Leicestershire County
Council Annual Performance Report. This is
online.org/uploads/annual-report-2015-council.pdf

available from:

http://www.lsr-

8. In 2016, the HWB will be developing a new JHWS which will set out the partnerships
priorities in response to the 2015 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA).
B.2 THE 2015 JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT
9. The HWB has published an updated JSNA for Leicestershire. This is available from:
http://www.lsr-online.org/leicestershire-2015-jsna.html
10. The JSNA highlighted the significance of the ageing population on the health and
wellbeing of the population. The population of Leicestershire is growing – between
2012 and 2037 (25 years) it has been projected that the total population of
Leicestershire will grow by 15% to over 750,000. However, this growth is not uniform
across the age groups with a projected increase of:
•

190% increase in people aged 85 years and over;

•

56% increase in people aged 65-84 years;

•

7% increase in children and young people aged 0-24 years; and

•

A 2% decrease in the working age population (25-64 years).

11. The JSNA also highlighted the gap between an individual’s overall life expectancy and
their healthy life expectancy. The overarching goals of the JHWS 2013-16 are to “add
quality and years to life”. The JSNA indicates that life expectancy continues to improve
year on year and is significantly better than the England average for both males and
females at 80.1 years and 84.0 years respectively. However, healthy life expectancy is
64.9 years for males and 66.7 years for females. For both males and females, a
significant proportion of the population will already be affected by poor health before
they reach retirement age.
12. This leads to a recommendation from the JSNA that there is a need to focus on the
health and wellbeing of working age adults to ensure that as these people move

Page 5 of 20

32

towards retirement age there is an overall improvement in healthy life expectancy.
B.3 LEICESTERSHIRE’S PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS ASSESSMENT
13. In March 2015, the HWB published its first Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA).
The PNA became the responsibility of the HWB as part of the Health and Social Care
Act. It is a statutory document that is used by NHS England to agree changes to the
commissioning of local pharmaceutical services.
14. Leicestershire’s PNA is available from:
http://www.leics.gov.uk/index/your_council/haveyoursay/pna.htm
15. An update on progress against the recommendations in the PNA will be reported to the
HWB in March 2016.
B.4 HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD – ACHIEVEMENTS AND OUTCOMES
16. Hospital Discharge - At the beginning of the year, delayed discharges represented a
significant challenge to the local health and care system. In January 2015, the HWB
analysed performance in this area and examined the actions being taken to ensure that
they would have an impact. The improvements in performance that have been seen
this year are a credit to the whole system. Of particular note,a are two housing hospital
discharge schemes, operating out of the Bradgate Unit and Leicester Royal Infirmary.
Both schemes provide the expertise of housing services staff on site as part of hospital
discharge support. The aim is to identify early and resolve any housing issues that
could delay hospital discharge. The HWB received an update against progress in
November 2015 where case studies demonstrated the positive outcomes these
schemes have already achieved. In 2016, the HWB will review the evaluation of the
schemes which will give a clearer view of their overall impact.
17. Ambulance Handovers - One of the key areas of challenge for local health services,
representing both clinical and patient safety risks, is the time taken for ambulance
crews to transfer patients into the Leicester Royal Infirmary. The HWB first looked at
ambulance handovers in July, including insights from Healthwatch, and it was clear that
a partnership approach was being taken to tackling this very difficult issue. However,
concern remained that the schemes put in place would not have the impact that was
needed to resolve all of the issues and the position remains extremely challenging. The
first phase of the new emergency floor at the LRI will open next winter. This will relieve
some of the pressure on ambulance handover times caused by physical constraints.
This remains a significant issue of concern and the HWB will continue to monitor the

a

and building directly on work undertaken by the HWB in 2013/14 to consider the local “housing offer to health”

Page 6 of 20

33

situation, in conjunction with the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland wide urgent care
board. This board reviews the operational position bi-weekly and leads the remedial
action plan for urgent care performance.
18. At the November 2015 HWB meeting all partners considered winter preparedness
across the system. They committed to a consistent communications message about
keeping well during winter and promoting the use of alternative services. This included
asking all partners from the HWB to use a consistent script within their customer
services centres signposting callers to the NHS 111 number and reminding them of
winter wellness advice.
19. Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) - The performance of the
CAMHS service has been an area of concern for the HWB throughout the year.
Regular progress reports have been received from the Better Care Together
workstream about emerging plans to improve the emotional health and wellbeing of
children and young people in Leicestershire. The HWB has been involved in the
development and approval of the local CAMHS Transformational Plan. This plan is a
requirement by NHS England in order to assure local delivery and allocate new money
being committed by central Government to improve CAMHS services across the whole
system. Transformation Plans across the country are required to have specific
elements and investments focused on prevention, early intervention and eating
disorders. Locally, the main areas of concern in 2015 are:
•

access to CAMHS inpatient beds within Leicestershire;

•

waiting times for outpatient appointments across Leicestershire's localities; and

•

crisis support, including the response and liaison needed for cases arriving via
the accident and emergency department.

The HWB has been seeking assurance that current and future improvements will
address these areas of concern and that the new NHSE investments linked to the
national Transformation Plans will deliver at pace.
20. Learning Disabilities - In March, the HWB invited a self-advocate and a carer to
present the Learning Disabilities Self-Assessment. The presentation was a really
positive experience, highlighting areas where services and performance are good and
challenging the system to make improvements in other areas, such as health checks.
Later on in the year the HWB looked at progress in delivering health checks and noted
that it would be difficult to measure final performance until the end of the financial year.
However each CCG was encouraged to ensure a high level of compliance within GP
practice for both:

Page 7 of 20

34

•

performing annual health checks for people with learning disabilities; and

•

assuring the quality of care planning and interventions delivered in support of each
individual’s health and wellbeing arising from these checks.

The HWB were pleased with the progress that had evidently been made in developing
a feedback mechanism on the quality of health checks. They will continue to challenge
the Clinical Commissioning Groups to improve performance to ensure that all eligible
people are receiving health checks and to set stretching targets in this regard.
21. Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) - The work to improve outcomes
and raise aspirations of children and young people with SEND in the light of the
Children and Families Act has been an area of focus for the HWB throughout the year.
Regular updates have been received on progress with implementing the reforms and
the board welcomes the efforts that have been made. The HWB is assured that
Leicestershire will be compliant with the requirements of the Act, including starting to
create the required cultural shift, by March 2016.
22. Palliative Care - In November 2015, the HWB invited the End of Life Better Care
Together workstream to provide an update about emerging plans and priorities for end
of life care. Local hospice provider LOROS also updated the Board about their work
and plans for the future. The Board recognise that there are a number of improvements
needed to end of life care in Leicestershire, particularly:
•

to ensure that care plans follow the patient; and

•

to simplify the local palliative care offer which is comprised of a range of services,
operated by a range of providers not all of which are on a 7 day, 24/7 basis.

The HWB is contributing to the discussions led by the Better Care Together end of life
workstream and will seek assurance that the commissioning plans of Leicestershire
partners reflect the expected changes to providing more integrated, person centred,
care pathways.
B.5 INTEGRATION AND THE BETTER CARE FUND
23. Better Care Fund Performance - Implementation of the health and care integration
programme in Leicestershire continues at pace. The Better Care Fund forms an
important part of the delivery of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and provides a
pooled budget between NHS and LA partners of £38m targeted improving the
integration of health and care. Key achievements from 2015 are included below.
24. Improving Hospital Discharge/Reducing Delays - In 2015, the Better Care Fund
has:

Page 8 of 20

35

a. achieved the Delayed Transfer of Care (DTOC) target in Q1 (for the first time
since 2011) and sustained good performance in Q2; and
b. introduced dedicated housing support to acute and mental health inpatient
settings to support hospital discharge. This scheme featured in the Health
Services Journal in October (www.hsj.co.uk).
25. Reducing Emergency Admissions – key achievements in 2015 include:
a. Implemented the frail older people's assessment unit at Loughborough Hospital
with 422 people referred and 312 avoided admissions between January and
October 2015.
b. Trained 81% of paramedics in the falls risk assessment tool so that around 40
people per month are now not conveyed to hospital; but receive care and
support at home instead.
c. Implemented night nursing so that our existing integrated crisis response service
can operate 24 hours a day, with 390 referrals and 363 avoided admissions
achieved between January and October 2015.
d. Piloted 7 day services in primary care across both CCGs with evaluation
findings informing models and admissions avoidance assumptions for 2016
onwards.
26. These 4 schemes are forecast to achieve approximately 1,620 avoided admissions in
2015, against a target of 2,041. In August 2015 the Integration Performance and
Finance Group agreed that from the £3m pay for performance fund (risk pool), £1m will
be retained by the CCGs to recognise over performance in non-elective admissions.
The remaining £2m will be paid into the Better Care Fund in recognition of the
contribution made by the four admission avoidance schemes.
27. The total emergency admissions in Leicestershire have risen from 58,314 in 2014 to a
forecast 58,922 for 2015. Against a target to reduce non-elective admissions to 56,273
by December 2015, the health and social care economy in Leicestershire is forecast to
underperform by 2,649 (or 4.7%).
28. Data Integration – The local health and social care system has made significant
progress around data integration in three key areas:
a. Implementation of “Pi Care and Health”, the new data integration tool for
Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland. For the first time, NHS and council

Page 9 of 20

36

partners across all 3 local authorities can analyse the journeys taken by people
across the whole health and care system, including ambulance journeys.
b. Adoption of the NHS Number for all adult social care records that could be
matched via the matching service. Across Leicestershire NHS Number matching
on adult social care records is now at 94%.
c. Introduction of the safe minimum transfer data set for the transfer of care from
hospital discharge to community settings.
B.6 HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD DEVELOPMENT
29. The HWB held a development session in November 2015 to reflect on the progress
that has been made so far as a Board and to think about areas where further
improvements can be made. It was felt that the Board meetings cover good business
and are ambitious and focused however the role of the Board will need to continue to
evolve given the complex governance arrangements and policy developments affecting
our health and care economy. The key areas that were identified for improvement
during the next year are:
•

to refresh and clarify the role and priorities of the Board through the refresh of the
JHWS;

•

to strengthen the links between the HWB and its sub-groups, particularly the
Integration Executive; and

•

to raise awareness of the Board and its work through improved communications
linked to the JHWS Refresh.

30. The HWB also discussed how to get an external perspective on its strengths and
weaknesses as a Board. The Board has decided to ask an external facilitator (Local
Government Association) to test some key lines of enquiry with individual members of
the Board and to follow this up with a workshop, led by the same external facilitator, to
look at the findings and identify next steps. This could feed into the JHWS refresh.
B.7 WORKING IN PARTNERSHIP WITH HEALTHWATCH
31. Healthwatch Leicestershire’s representation on the HWB provides a platform for
sharing formal patient, user and public insights, evidence and intelligence to both
inform the process of strategic commissioning and improve services for the benefit of
the local population.
32. Healthwatch Leicestershire has established a strong presence and profile through its
representation on the HWB. As a matter of routine, there is a regular Healthwatch
Leicestershire update on the agenda and this opportunity is used to present and share

Page 10 of 20

37

patient experience gathered from Healthwatch Leicestershire’s latest reports and
insights. Below are some examples of how the HWB has helped Healthwatch
Leicestershire to raise its profile and improve outcomes for local people living in
Leicestershire.
33. University Hospitals Leicester (UHL) - In January 2015, Healthwatch Leicestershire
spent a week at the Leicester Royal Infirmary in four departments talking to 262
patients finding out what changes patients and staff would make to improve the
experience of using services at Leicester Royal Infirmary.
34. Healthwatch Leicestershire released a report of its findings called ‘A Week in Leicester
Royal Infirmary: The Patient Perspective’. The report included a number of
recommendations based on patient and staff feedback and was presented to the HWB
at its meeting in March 2015. The full report is available online:
http://www.healthwatchleicestershire.co.uk/news/new-healthwatch-leicestershirereport-week-leicester-royal-infirmary-lri-patient-perspective

Where we went
‘One Week in Leicester Royal Infirmary (LRI)’

35. As part of the visit in January 2015, Healthwatch Leicestershire spoke to patients in the
newly formed discharge lounge. The discharge lounge is a fairly new and welcome
initiative that aims to provide a comfortable and welcoming environment to
accommodate patients while they wait to be discharged to their usual place of
residence. Healthwatch’s hope is that this lounge will ultimately help to better the
patient experience and will support the hospital to address wider issues, such as

Page 11 of 20

38

delayed discharge. Patients told Healthwatch that they were not told what would
happen when they arrived at the discharge lounge or how long they would be waiting.
36. In November 2015 the Head of Service Delivery at UHL presented UHL’s
‘Ophthalmology Action Plan’ to the Health and Overview Scrutiny Committee. The
plan directly responded to Healthwatch Leicestershire’s recommendations and findings
that related to allocating more space for patient information and redesigning the layout
of waiting areas. This would improve communication between staff and patients,
alongside improving the flow of patients from the waiting room to the appointment
areas. In particular, this would benefit patients with poor sight.
37. UHL reported that they had already completed a number of actions in response to the
findings from Healthwatch Leicestershire. For example, the hospital had already
installed TVs and water machines in waiting rooms, improved signage and is currently
integrating patient feedback into its plans for its booking centre.
38. The report also prompted a response from the Local Medical Committee in regards to
the recommendation to adopt a system of more flexible, pre-bookable and on-the-day
appointments. The response received regional press coverage on East Midlands
Today News.
39. Ambulance Handovers – Healthwatch Leicestershire presented a report ‘Ambulance
Handover at LRI’ to the HWB on the 16 July 2015. The report included a number of
recommendations to improve patient experience. UHL noted the recommendations and
are considering how to best take them forward. In the longer term the majority of issues
identified in the report will be resolved with the building of the new Emergency
Department. Dedicated rapid ambulance access will be a feature of this new
development. The full report is available online:
http://www.healthwatchleicestershire.co.uk/sites/www.healthwatchleicestershire.co.uk/fi
les/healthwatch_leicestershire_ambulance_handover_at_lri_enter_view_report.pdf
40. Access to GP Services - Healthwatch Leicestershire produced a quick poll survey
outlining local people’s views on GP services. The findings were presented at the HWB
meeting held in July 2015. At the meeting, the CCGs requested a breakdown of
Healthwatch Leicestershire’s data. They now plan to act on this insight and respond
accordingly in their respective areas. The report is available from:
http://www.healthwatchleicestershire.co.uk/sites/www.healthwatchleicestershire.co.uk/fi
les/hwl_quick_poll_summary_report.pdf

Page 12 of 20

39

41. Access to Dental Services - The findings from Healthwatch Leicestershire's quick poll
survey outlining local people's views on dental services were presented at the HWB
meeting held in November 2015. NHS England’s Director of Operations and Delivery
(Central Team) plans to use the insights to inform the commissioning and contracts for
regional dental services. The report was also submitted to Chair of the Local
Professional Network (LPN) for Leicestershire and Lincolnshire. The report can be
accessed
from:
http://www.healthwatchleicestershire.co.uk/sites/www.healthwatchleicestershire.co.uk/fi
les/2%20page%20HW%20Dental%20Quick%20Poll%20pdf%20print.pdf

SECTION C: LOOKING AHEAD TO 2016
C.1 BETTER CARE TOGETHER
42. The Better Care Together programme is the overarching health and social care
strategic plan for Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland. It is a five year plan that was
launched in June 2014 and sets out ambitious plans for changing the way that services
are delivered for the people of Leicestershire. The Better Care Together programme
has developed further in 2015 and is currently preparing for a period of public
consultation on some key elements of the plan. The plans are available from:
http://www.bettercareleicester.nhs.uk/

Page 13 of 20

40

43. The programme’s clinical workstreams have started to embed their plans into business
as usual activities and some examples of the early success are indicated below:
•

improved care for the people who are frail and elderly;

•

improved crisis and rehabilitation resources for those with mental health issues; and

•

a new model of access to Accident and Emergency at the Leicester Royal Infirmary.

44. There is much more to do in 2016, and local plans include:
•

increasing the level of “Hospital at Home” beds provided by Leicestershire
Partnership Trust that will allow more people to rehabilitate in their own home
where appropriate; and

•

an increase in the availability of day case procedures and outpatient appointments
in community and primary care settings.

45. This year it has been identified that a number of the more structural changes to health
service delivery require public consultation. Following many months of detailed
planning, the partnership is now liaising with NHS England on the submission of a preconsultation business case for NHSE’s consideration and approval prior to public
consultation. During the year the programme has compiled the evidence required to
embark on a robust consultation, i.e. that the proposals
•

have strong public, patient and service user engagement;

•

provide choice;

•

have a clear clinical evidence base; and

•

are supported by commissioners.

46. During 2015, the Better Care Together programme’s Partnership Board has met in
public, providing updates on developments, an opportunity for the public to pose
questions directly to health and social care leaders, and providing transparency as the
system prepares for change.
C.2 THE REFRESH OF THE BETTER CARE FUND
47. Leicestershire’s Better Care Fund plan is due to be refreshed in early 2016, in line with
national policy. It will be subject to assurance via NHS England and Local Government
structures regionally and nationally. Work is already underway on the refresh at the

Page 14 of 20

41

time of writing this report, and national planning guidance is expected during late
December 2015.
48. The refresh process will include:
•

using a range of evaluation and clinical audit findings to inform models of care and
commissioning intentions for 2016/17;

•

assessing the Leicestershire plan against the national Better Care Fund selfassessment tool;

•

adding new schemes into the plan such as the admissions avoidance scheme for
cardiac/respiratory patients at the Glenfield hospital site; and

•

engaging with Clinical Commissioning Groups, the Integration Executive,
Leicestershire County Council Cabinet and the HWB in the development and
approval of a refreshed plan.

49. The key Better Care Fund metrics are expected to remain the same as the 2015
metrics, with the delivery of these metrics being enhanced and expanded:
•

reduce the total number of emergency admissions;

•

reduce emergency admissions due to falls;

•

reduce the number of permanent admissions to residential and nursing homes;

•

increase the number of service users still at home 91 days after discharge;

•

reduce the number of delayed transfers of care; and

•

improve patient and service user experience.

50. Each scheme funded by Better Care Fund will be described in detail, along with
trajectories for activity and a full assessment of how they meet the Better Care Fund
criteria:
•

building capacity for integration;

•

delivering outcomes alongside value for money;

•

improving patient/service user satisfaction;

•

utilising a ‘systems thinking’ approach;

•

supported by all stakeholders, including the workforce; and

Page 15 of 20

42

•

supporting the ‘left-shift’ of services away from acute care.

51. New schemes in the pipeline for 2016 include:
•

avoiding admissions for cardiac/ respiratory patients at Glenfield Clinical Decisions
Unit by introducing an ambulatory care pathway for suitable patients; and

•

implementing suitable pathways for frail older patients admitted to general wards in
Leicester Royal Infirmary, in line with the pathways used on the Acute Frailty Unit.

C.3 A NEW JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY FOR 2016-19
52. The existing JHWS for Leicestershire runs from 2013-2016, so there is a need to
review the strategy and update it in 2016. During the life cycle of the existing strategy
there have been significant changes to the health and social care system, as a result of
implementing the Health and Social Care Act 2012. This means that the new strategy
will need to be significantly different to ensure that it fully supports the aspirations of the
HWB going forward. The Better Care Together strategy and other key partnership
strategies, such as the Integration Programme, will therefore be central to the
development of the new JHWS for Leicestershire.
53. In 2016, the HWB will review the JHWS and develop a new strategy for 2016-19. This
will:
a. support the goals and ambitions of the Better Care Together Strategy;
b. meet the needs of the people of Leicestershire identified in the JSNA;
c. promote integration through the use of shared resources such as the Better
Care Fund and the Learning Disabilities pooled budgets;
d. review all of the key strategic documents across the partnership to ensure that
these are working together to meet the needs of the people of Leicestershire;
and
e. set key strategic challenges for the HWB to ensure that they are aspiring to
deliver the best outcomes for the people of Leicestershire across the whole
health and wellbeing partnership.

Page 16 of 20

43

APPENDIX A: Case Studies
Integrated Crisis Response Service (ICRS) overnight service – Ms L
Ms L, an 81 year old lady living alone deemed to be near end of life wanted to die in her
own home. She had completed 72 hours with the ICRS and a referral had been made to
Continuing Health Care to provide an ongoing package of care to meet her needs.
At 10pm, no one had arrived as planned so her friend called the ‘single point of access.
Her friend had looked after her all day and was exhausted and did not want to leave her
alone in fear that she would die.
There was a spare ICRS bed available so a nurse went in for overnight support and Ms L
passed away peacefully during the night. The friend was so grateful for all that ICRS had
provided.
Loughborough’s Older Persons Unit (OPU): GP referral – Mr N
Mr N, a 91 year old gentleman was referred to the OPU by his GP after being short of
breath, dizzy and frequent falling.
He had a complex medical history including Ischemic heart disease (IHD), Chronic kidney
disease (CKD), Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD) and diabetes.
At the OPU a full clinical assessment was completed with blood tests, a chest x-ray and an
ECG.
Mr N was describing symptoms of hypoxia. He was assessed by the physiotherapists and
ambulatory oxygen saturation measurements revealed his saturations dropped to less
than 85% when exerting. His chest x-ray suggested fibrotic lung disease.
The Advanced Nurse Practitioner (ANP) ordered home oxygen which was delivered within
four hours of the completed referral.
Mr N’s medication was altered and a package of care was offered but declined. The GP
was advised to complete a respiratory referral.
A follow up appointment was arranged in the OPU to evaluate these changes. Mr N had
felt much better using oxygen therapy and had experienced no further dizziness or
collapse.
His wife wrote the following comments on our satisfaction survey:

Page 17 of 20

44

“The care and attention we had today has been wonderful. My husband has been relaxed
the whole time and is happy.”
Carer’s wellbeing service - Mrs W
Mrs W is a carer to her mother who suffers from Vascular Dementia. Her mum lives with
her.
On a visit to her local surgery, Mrs W picked up a carer’s services leaflet. She called the
Wellbeing service in June requesting some advice as she was finding it difficult to look
after her mum.
She was contacted the same day and had a very lengthy conversation about her caring
role and the difficulties she was experiencing. She was feeling very stressed and got upset
during the conversation.
Mrs W gets little sleep due to her mother waking up several times during the night. She
has also had to reduce her working hours in order to look after her mother and had even
thought about giving up work altogether. Mrs W was completely exhausted and didn’t
know which way to turn. Mrs W felt better being able to speak to someone who was able to
listen and understand her situation. She felt reassured that there was help available.
A carer’s assessment was completed over the telephone which revealed how much care
Mrs W was actually providing for her mum and the effect it was having on her own life.
Social Care contacted Mrs W to arrange an appointment for a home visit assessment. The
outcome of this granted Mrs W a personal budget. There was also a referral made for a
Community Psychiatric Nurse (CPN) and both the allocated worker and the CPN visited to
assess her mum’s mental health.
The Carers Wellbeing service has allowed Mrs W to carry on working and feel supported
as a carer. She is happy that support is in place and this has reduced the pressure and
she is happy to continue to care for her mum.
Integrated Crisis Response Service (ICRS) overnight service – Mrs C
Mrs C, aged 82 accessed ICRS after she was diagnosed with mantle cell lymphoma,
following the discovery of a lump on her neck. Her condition deteriorated and she became
bedbound, unable to move her legs and in a lot of pain. As she was also a carer for her
husband, who suffers from dementia, her family was finding it hard to cope.
At first her GP advised admitting Mrs C to hospital, but her end of life plan was to die at

Page 18 of 20

45

home and she was very clear that she did not want to be admitted. Based on this the
family decided that they would try to continue to provide care themselves at home, rather
than have to take her to hospital. At this stage, Mrs C’s GP suggested the new ICRS
Overnight Service. Kim, Mrs C’s daughter explains:
“The overnight service started that night and it was a relief for my mum as she knew she
was safe. It was a big thing for all of us as we had been on our own and we were scared.
They were very caring as if they were looking after their own mother. Nothing was ever too
much trouble. Knowing that a nurse was looking after my mum, who would phone if we
needed to come, meant I could go home for a few nights.
“We never needed to ask anything as we were told every step of the way what was
happening, what was going on, where mum was at on her journey and it was just so nice.
The trust was there and the rapport was there. It wasn’t like nurses coming in, it was just
like a family.”
Mrs C also received care from Hospice at Home during the day time, providing her with
integrated care across 24 hours. A respite home was also found for Mrs C’s husband,
allowing the family to focus on her. Following nine days of care from these services, she
passed away at home and with her family in accordance with her wishes.
Kim continued, “There was that much love around she felt happy where she was. She
passed away so peacefully. It was sad, but if I said, if there was ever such a thing as
perfection in someone passing away, she got it. It’s so important that this service goes
24/7 and it continues because without it I don’t know where we would have been. It’s
helped me to come to terms with things and carry on.”
Assistive Technology – Mrs H
Mrs H suffered from epilepsy which meant her family needed to be with her at all times.
HART carried out an initial assessment and referred her for a lifeline connect+ with a
personal trigger and a fall detector. The lifeline was programmed to phone Mrs H’s mum
and eldest son.
A further visit was made to Mrs H a week later to drop off a Pivotell medication dispenser
so that Mrs H can take her medication at regular intervals throughout the day so that her
medicines work properly at the right time.
This equipment has enabled Mrs H’s 2 younger sons to go to school with piece of mind
that someone will be alerted and respond when their mum has a seizure. It has also

Page 19 of 20

46

enabled Mrs H to be less reliant on others.
This equipment should enable Mrs H to remain independent and reduce the need for
further care services.
Loughborough’s Older Persons Unit (OPU) - Mrs S
Mrs S aged 78, attended the unit following a series of falls. Her GP was unable to find
anything clinically wrong with her, but was still concerned, so referred her on to the unit for
further tests.
Mrs S said, “I fell last week and couldn’t get up and it wasn’t the first time, I’d a couple of
falls in the last few weeks. I went to the doctor this morning, and he couldn’t find anything
wrong. He wanted a more in-depth examination as he thought I’ve fallen too often. I came
straight to the unit and was seen really quickly. I didn’t expect that, there was no waiting.”
Mrs S was diagnosed with osteoarthritis of the knee which was causing her knees to give
way, explaining why she was falling over. The centre prescribed pain medication and
contacted her GP with a recommendation for Mrs S to be referred to a specialist
osteoarthritis clinic.
Mrs S added: “It’s great to be able to make use of the unit, I had no idea that they had this
kind of thing here. I think it’s wonderful, everyone has been very kind and helpful. So often
older people aren’t dealt with properly, and they’re not given enough time. But this time I
was treated right, this is much better. I felt really reassured by everything, it’s a really good
service. It should be available for everyone.”

Page 20 of 20

47

Agenda Item 8

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 7th JANUARY 2016
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES
MENTAL HEALTH AND WELLBEING OF CHILDREN AND YOUNG
PEOPLE – BETTER CARE TOGETHER WORK STREAM UPDATE
Purpose of Report
1.

Outcome 4 of Leicestershire’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2013-16
is ‘Improving mental health and wellbeing’ and includes priorities for
children and young people. The Health and Wellbeing Board has
received four previous reports about the progress of the Better Care
Together work stream regarding the mental health and wellbeing of
children and young people. This report describes the current status of
that work.
The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to:
- note the approval by NHS England of the Transformational Plan for
children and young people’s mental health across Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland;
- note the additional resource of £1.8m that has been secured by the
Plan;
- note the establishment of 4 delivery groups that will operate as task
and finish groups to ensure implementation of the Plan;
- note the ongoing governance arrangement;
- agree to receive progress reports, to include a performance
information with regard to the outcomes framework, on a quarterly
basis.

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
2.

As reported at previous meetings, the national strategy ‘Future in Mind’
was published in March 2015. It set out a clear direction for local
leadership across the system to work together to improve mental
health services and outcomes for children and young people. Partners
have worked closely since March to collaborate on the development
and submission of a Transformation Plan to improve children and
young people's mental health and wellbeing.

3.

At its meeting in July 2015 the Leicestershire Health and Wellbeing
Board agreed that approval of the Leicester, Leicestershire and
Rutland Transformation Plan for children and young people’s mental
health and wellbeing would be delegated to the Director for Children
and Family Services and the Director of Public Health, following
consultation with the Chairman of the Health and Wellbeing Board and

48

Cabinet Lead Member for Children and Families. Similar
arrangements are in place for the City and Rutland Health and
Wellbeing Boards.
4.

In October the Plan was approved for submission to NHS England by
the Chair of Leicestershire’s Health and Wellbeing Board and the Lead
Member for Children and Families. The Plan was also submitted to
and approved by the CCG Board. The Plan was submitted on 16th
October and received full approval by NHS England in November
2015. A copy of the Plan and its ‘easy read’ version are attached at
Appendix A and Appendix B.

Financial implications
5.

Additional government funding of £1.8m has been received to support
the implementation of the Plan – this includes a ring-fenced budget for
eating disorders of just over 500k.

6.

The Plan identifies how these additional resources will be used to
commission services, with a particular emphasis on prevention, early
intervention, and eating disorders.

7.

NHS England will allocate funding via CCGs. In the case of Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland this will be the City CCG.

8.

In 2015/16, money will be allocated in-year, which means the pace for
in-year delivery is tight and there will be a need to carry forward
funding. This will be enabled via a Section 75 agreement between the
City CCG and Leicestershire County Council. The Transformation Plan
has taken this into account and has identified some ‘quick wins’ that
will make good use of this resource in this financial year.

Governance and performance reporting
9.

A Leadership Group was established to progress the Transformation
Plan via the Women and Children’s work stream of Better Care
Together. The Leadership Group is co-chaired by the Leicester City
CCG Chief Nurse and Leicestershire County Council’s Director of
Children and Family Services. The membership of the Group was
agreed at the last meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board and there
has been good representation. In recent weeks the membership has
been extended to include the regional Senior Quality Improvement
Lead for CAMHS & Clinical Lead for Transition.

10.

Now that the Plan and its associated funding has been approved, the
Leadership Group has established four task and finish Delivery
Groups: Prevention, Early Help, Intensive Community and Home
Intervention (which is aligned to the Crisis Vanguard), and Workforce.
The purpose of these groups is to ensure that the Plan can be
delivered in the immediate and medium term.

49

11.

The Transformation Plan is a ‘whole system’ approach to improving
children and young people’s mental health and wellbeing. As such it
requires a cultural shift that will include aligning and/or pooling budgets,
jointly agreeing priorities, and joint commissioning. Such change will
require an ongoing commitment from all partners to the Leadership
Group that will drive the required transformation.

12.

The Leadership Group will continue to report through the Health and
Wellbeing Boards, as well as through the individual agency assurance
and authorisation mechanisms. The Leadership Group will also
contribute to the Better Care Together governance arrangements as
required by virtue of being an identified work stream.

13.

Performance information will be presented via an outcomes framework,
and it is suggested that this is reported to the Health and Wellbeing
Board and the CCG Board on a quarterly basis.

14.

NHS England in the East Midlands is in the process of establishing a
task group to oversee Transformation Plans in the region. LLR CCGs
have indicated their intention to participate in this group.

Associated activity
15.

The Leadership Group has also identified other national opportunities
that will support the intentions of the Plan:
a. an application has been made to join the Children and Young
People’s IAPT programme as part of an East Midlands
Collaborative approach. This will offer the opportunity to train a
range of children’s workers, across professions and including
teachers, to add knowledge, advice and training capacity across
our system in intensive psychological therapies. Derby
University and Northampton University will be the main training
providers, with some potential sessional support from Leicester
University and ADS Ltd. The LLR bid was presented to the
national panel for consideration on 18th December and the
decision is awaited.
b. an application for funding has been made to East Midlands
Academic Health Science Network (AHSN) for additional early
intervention support;
c. an application is being prepared to seek funding from Health
Education England to support workforce transformation.

16.

Working together as a single ‘system’ is enabling the partnership to
collectively seek out opportunities to attract new funding in support of
the Plan.

50

Officer to Contact
Lesley Hagger
Director, Children and Family Services
Lesley.hagger@leics.gov.uk
0116 305 6340
Leon Chariker
Commissioner
City CCG



November 2015

2015 - 2020

children and young people

Transformational plan for mental health and wellbeing services for

BETTER CARE TOGETHER

LEICESTER, LEICESTERSHIRE AND RUTLAND



APPENDIX A

51

12
19
25
38
47
49
51

2. Principles and Values

3. National Context

4. Level of Need and Local Context

5. Transformational Plan for 2020

6. Governance and Transparency

7. Indicative Financial Allocations

8. Implementation Plan 2015- 17

Page 2 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

3

1. Introduction & Vision for 2020

Contents

52

1. Introduction & Vision for 2020

non-stigmatising help, and to be treated with respect by friendly staff, using approaches that we know work.

Children and young people have made it clear to us that they want education, information and advice about mental health, access to early,

transparency and requires a new approach to the use of resource.

and innovative services and many further improvements are underway. However, we also know that the current system is fragmented, lacks

We know that we have a strong track record of joint commissioning, partnership and innovation. We also have many examples of excellent

Page 3 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

transparently how to use our resources effectively and efficiently to deliver the care that is valued by children, young people and their carers.

Through BCT we will strengthen the co-commissioning and partnership working across our agencies. We will also determine collectively and

In Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland we are committed to achieving this as part of the programme of work called Better Care Together (BCT).

priorities, joint commissioning, and improve the interfaces between our agencies so that organisational boundaries are not barriers to care.

this to happen, services such as education, social care, health, police, housing and justice will need to align. We will be required to develop shared

Our vision is that children will have access to the right help at the right time through all stages of their emotional and mental health development. For

•

•

Our plan reflects what we know about our current services and what children, young people and carers in our area tell us they want.

resources to improve the mental health wellbeing of all children. This report sets out our joint plan to achieve this.

Future in Mind: Promoting and improving our children and young people’s mental health and wellbeing. Future in Mind offers a framework and

children and young people up to the age of 25. It is a five year plan, based on the principles set out in Department of Health’s Task Force Report,

This document sets out Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland’s multi-agency transformational plan to improve the mental health and wellbeing of





53

Page 4 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015


ͳǣǤ ʹͲͳͶ

Young person, Leicester 2015.

“If you do one thing, just get people who know what they are doing to work together better”.

Sam Gyimah, Department for Education “Future in mind” (2015)

that we all want to see, and make a reality of the vision”

“Only by working in partnership, sharing expertise and making best of finite resources can we achieve the improvements in mental health outcomes

will launch the Transformational Plan in January to March 2016 through a series of engagement events. This plan marks the start of our journey.

which have been central to shaping this plan. An “Easy Read” summary of this plan will be published on our local websites in November 2015. We

has been extensive engagement with children, young people and their families and we are particularly grateful to them for sharing their experiences,

Leicestershire and Healthwatch. There is further work to do to broaden the engagement with schools, colleges and other educational settings. There

Partnership Trust), our three local authorities and the Police and Crime Commissioner. There has been strong engagement with Voluntary Action

providers of health services (CCGs, NHS England East Midlands Specialised Commissioning and Health and Justice Commissioning, Leicestershire

The agencies and stakeholders that have been involved in shaping this transformation plan include the local and regional commissioners and

healthy and resilient, as well as those with emerging or serious mental health difficulties.

of mental illness or disabilities. In this plan we use the term “mental health and wellbeing” to address all children and young people: those who are

cope with the normal stresses of life, can work productively and is able to make a contribution to his or her community.” 1 It is more that the absence

Mental health has been defined by the World Health Organisation as “a state of well-being in which an individual realises his or her own abilities, can

54

We can get high quality support to
help me overcome emotional and
mental health challenges quickly
and
locally,
without
being
stigmatised.

My family and I are able to look
after my emotional and mental
wellbeing and development day
to day.

Urgent care and crisis response

I will be involved in setting my I will not be judged by staff for my
own treatment goals and mental health problems.
deciding if I am getter better.
I will be kept as safe as possible
With my consent, services will during a crisis.
work together with me and my
family to give us the best I will be able to access a bed
support.
within a reasonable distance from
home
I will be involved in decisions to
transfer or reduce my care.
I will be supported to return home
safely as soon as possible.
My views and experience will
help to improve care for others

I will receive support which is I will be seen promptly if I attend
safe, reliable and tested.
the Emergency Department

I will be helped by a specialist I can access intensive support
team quickly if my mental health from a range of organisations
problems are serious
working together.

Specialist care

Page 5 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

I learn about mental health and
how to protect myself at school or I will be able to make informed
college.
choices about the kind of help I
would like.
We can access trusted self-care
advice when and where we like I and those who care for me will
including websites, education be listened to.
settings, GPs and children’s
centres
I will be supported to become
resilient and independent.
My parents / carers have access
to support and guidance
I and my carers will be helped to
navigate the system and services.
I am confident in talking about
issues which affect my mental I am involved in peer support
groups and community networks
health
in my area.

Early help and primary care

Self- care and prevention

Our vision is that by 2020, every child and young person in Leicester, Leicester and Rutland will be able to affirm the following:

55

Early help and primary care

Specialist care

Urgent care and crisis response

Young people’s views inform the
improvement of services

Specialist
services
for
vulnerable children and young
people such as young offenders,
Looked After Children and those
with learning disabilities

Organisations share information Services work swiftly together to
and work together to support the support anyone admitted to the
child, young person and their Emergency department
family
Specialist hospital beds are
Specialist services for children available for those that need
and young people with eating them.
disorders

Page 6 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

Information about children and High quality low intervention
young people’s mental health is services delivered locally across
provided through a range of LLR by range of organisations.
formats including websites, social
media, and publications.
Care navigators who can support
children, young people and cares
Front line staff have access to make informed choices to find the
training and support on mental right service for them.
health issues amongst children
and young people
Outcome measures are used to
assess individual improvements
All services provide equality of and to plan the development of
access and support to all children services
and young people.

All schools and colleges educate Early joint
assessment
for High quality therapeutic and Services work together to provide
about mental health, tackling children and young people who medical support provided by intensive out of hours support for
stigma and building resilience.
might need extra support
experienced and qualified staff.
children, young people and
families at risk of crisis.

Self- care and prevention

Our vision is that by 2020 our services will be shaped as follows:

56

HEADLINES 

•

Page 7 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

development of pupils through this plan

all 250,000 children over the period of five years and ensure that 90% of schools are engaged in supporting the mental health and

Promote mental health and resilience through campaigns in schools and to the general public. The standard will be for the campaign to reach

Through the five year transformational plan we will do the following:

treatment in hospital. Often this hospital will be a long way from their home.

time for an assessment by the specialist CAMH Service is 13 weeks from referral. About 80 children and young people a year will require specialist

The specialist Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) supports about 3,500 children and young people per year. The average waiting

compulsive disorders and eating disorders.

19,000 school children in our region. Difficulties include Autism Spectrum Disorder, ADHD, anxiety, depression, self-harm, psychosis, obsessive

It is estimated that 1 in 10 school children will have a diagnosable mental health or neurodevelopmental condition. This equates to approximately

3466 were recorded as victims of crime in 2014/15.

ethnic minority background. 1100 children and young people in LLR are looked after by a local authority, 32,000 have special educational needs, and

significant variations in economic prosperity, quality of life and health outcomes. 68% of children and young people in Leicester City are from an

There are 250,000 children and young people up to the age of 19 in Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland. It is a uniquely diverse community with



57

Standard is to have specialist workforce with clinical skills and experience in Cognitive Behavioural Therapy, Systemic Family Therapy, and

•

Page 8 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

and have access to support and advice.

Psychodynamic Psychotherapy as core interventions. Targeted and universal practitioners will have training in generic child mental health

Improve the capacity and capabilities of practitioners to work with children and young people with mental health issues.

Emergency Department more than 4 hours. No child or young person will be taken to a police cell as a “Place of Safety”.

people presenting at Emergency Department for acute mental health or behavioural problems. No child or young person will stay at the

people. The standard is for the team to operate 7 days a week from 8am-11pm. The team will reduce the number of children and young

Establish a multi-agency team that will support families at risk of a crisis due to the mental health or disturbed behaviour of a child or young

from referral to assessment for routine cases, one week for urgent cases. The team will see 100 new cases per year.

Establish a specialist community team to support young people with an eating disorder. The standards will be an access time of four weeks

carers. The standard will be that child or young person to wait more than 13 weeks for contact and engagement from CAMHS

Improve the access to the specialist CAMHS service to reduce waiting times and improve communication with children, young people and

per year to receive early help and support services.

health needs. The standard is for all children to receive an assessment within four weeks of referral and for 10,000 children and young people

Provide quick access to a multi-agency assessment and support service for children and young people with emerging or low level mental

•

•

•

•

•

58

The number of educational settings that are part of this plan, and are working to improve understanding on mental health and support their
students.

The number of children, young people, parents and carers who access early support and interventions.

How children, young people parents and carers rate this support.

The number of children and young people assessed by the specialist CAMH service.

How long it takes from a referral to CAMHs to seeing a practitioner.

How long it takes to see a specialist if you have an eating disorder or psychosis.

Hospital admission rates for self-harm and attempted suicide

The number of young people who attend the Emergency Department due to an acute mental health problem who have to wait more than four
hours to be seen by a specialist.

The number of children and young people who are held in a police cell as a “place of safety”.

The number of practitioners who receive training in child mental health

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Page 9 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

A survey of what children and young people understand about mental health and how they feel about their own health.

•

We will measure the success of this plan in the following ways:

59

will reach every child young person and family.

between health, education, social

families.

A single gateway to a community mental health and wellbeing service.

Specialist clinical support for vulnerable children and young people.

providers

Strong open governance and

transparency in resource

sharing, advice and

standards



developments

mental health problems

and using this to shape service

Page 10 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

families

children young people and

Intensive package of support for young people and families at risk of acute Information and choice for

Measuring outcomes and impact

guidance.

through information

Practitioners support each

and service for all

Ensure equality of access

therapeutic help and quality

Use of evidence based

Specialist clinical support for children and young people with eating disorders

A range of high quality early help offers for children young people and through training, career

community and public sector

allocation

Develop the workforce

Quick access to multi-agency first response, early support and help.

A consortium of voluntary,

progression & joint working

people, parents and carers

care and youth justice

co-design with young

A schools-based campaign to promote mental wellbeing and resilience that Direct engagement and

Collaborative Commissioning

VALUES

TRANSFORMATION

ENABLERS

PLAN ON A PAGE

60









ǲ
ǳ
 

 
 


 
ͷǡͲͲͲ

Page 11 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

  

 
 ǣ
ʹͷͲǡͲͲͲ

Ȁ




ͳͲǡͲͲͲ 



 Ƭ


 
  
 

 ǡ


 
  Ǥ





Ƭ 


CARE PATHWAY FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE WITH MENTAL HEALTH PROBLEMS








  ǡ
ǡ

ǡ

 












61





Principles and Values

An ‘Easy Read’ version of the plan will be

support plans.

Page 12 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

is often down to forming a strong trusting therapeutic relationship with their worker. Finally they want to be involved in shaping their own care and

spoken about their experience of self-harm and eating disorders. Many young people report a positive experience of the care they received. This

They would particularly like easier access to advice and support at evening or weekends, perhaps through a phone line or website. They have



choice about when and where they meet.

can include support through social media and the internet. They would like to be able to access support such as counselling and workshops, with

They want their parents to also have advice and support. Young people want help to build resilience and to be part of peer support groups. This

they are encouraged to talk about mental health issues. They want their teachers to be skilled in supporting pupils with mental health issues.

Young people have told us they want to be taught about mental health issues within schools and for schools to promote an open culture where

published on websites.

through involvement in commissioning panels, staff recruitment panels and service user panels.

children, young people and families will be part of the governance arrangements and be involved in the delivery of specific initiatives. This will be

CAMHS service users to advise the practitioners on how to improve CAMHS. As the transformational plan is developed and implemented,

and parents and carers. Young people have led a seminar on their experience of self-harm. The CAMHS service recently formed a panel of ex-

This has included engagement with youth parliament representatives, young people’s council, youth police commissioners, looked after children

mental health. There have been specific engagement events to discuss experiences of mental health problems, and ideas for improving services.

Children, young people and their families are central to the development of this plan and to the task of transforming services and approaches to

2.1 Engagement with children, young people and families

2

62



Rutland Health Watch and Rutland Youth Council.

Survey of 965 students on mental health concerns.

Focus on prevention and coping strategies. Include mental health on the educational curriculum

Increase the number of counsellors in school or someone to talk to when needed.
Student/staff forums to monitor and discuss ongoing areas of concern with peer mentoring .

Acknowledge that it is everyone's responsibility and inculcate a better understanding of what is available and how it can be accessed .

Make sure early intervention and adolescent and child mental wellbeing is properly funded and provided.

Publicise appropriate websites much more widely
Educate parents, pupils and staff together to ensure that the stigma is ended and these issues can be spoken about honestly and without
fear.

•

•
•

•

•

•
•

Page 13 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

Create a culture where mental health is not taboo. End the stigma.

•

facilitated by young people from the Youth Council. The recommendations included: 

The findings were shared at number of workshops with partner agencies and with the school children themselves. The workshops were led and

the survey.

965 young people attending 3 schools and colleges in Rutland, in Year 9 (26%), Year 10 (28%), Year 11 (21%) and Year 12&13 (25%) completed

Three schools were selected for the survey and meetings were conducted in assemblies and tutorials to explain the aims.

The Youth Team then prepared a questionnaire concerning the problems of mental health, advised by a team from the University of Leicester.

discovered that the overwhelming problem was that of mental health (stress, depression, eating disorders, self-harm)

(life out of school; drugs and alcohol; transport; sexual health; mental health) were identified and then classified in order of urgency. It was

issues facing young people. The most striking findings came about through a session held with Rutland’s Youth Council. A series of concerns

HealthWatch Rutland and Rutland Youth Council carried out a series of engagement events with pupils in local schools to talk about concerns and

Best Practice

63



•

•

•

Page 14 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

social and health education (PSHE); and emotional health and well-being. The programme has recently appointed two healthy school

promotes the link between good health, behaviour and achievement through four key areas: healthy eating; physical activity; personal,

and colleges which takes a whole school approach to improving the health and wellbeing of pupils and students. The programme

The Healthy Schools Programme. This is a partnership between the Leicestershire County Public Health and local schools, academies

from the CAMHS service.

intervention. This work is commissioned in partnership between the City CCG and City Council. The service receives clinical supervision

people aged up to 19 with issues around anger, anxiety, self-esteem or low mood which do not meet the threshold for a specialist CAMHS

The Leicester City Early Intervention in Psychology service which provides individual and group work support for children and young

work with young people.

commissioned by CCGs and local authorities. It provides training and guidance for social care staff and foster parents, as well as direct

those who are homeless. We know that these young people are particularly vulnerable to mental health problems. The team is jointly

The Young Person’s Team which provides mental health assessments and interventions for Looked After Children, young offenders and

joint commissioning including pooled budgets. We will build on current work, set out below and learn from examples from other services.

build on these projects and extend the model of partnership commissioning to the whole pathway. There are fundamental opportunities now for

shared vision. There are already excellent examples of collaborative commissioning across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland. We plan to

is the catalyst which presents the opportunity to tackle the issues of fragmented and disjointed planning, and to work collectively towards a

requires systems co-ordination: to ensure that services work better together, and to jointly plan the development of new services. Future in Mind

There is a strong commitment from all organisations to work in partnership to secure the transformation in care that young people want. This

2.2 Partnership commissioning and collaborative working

64

•

•

•

•

•

Page 15 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

eastmidlands.org.uk/talk2sort). The talk²sort mediation service works with young people aged 11-19 and families who may be having

Collaboration between Leicestershire Public Health and Voluntary Sector: Teenage Mediation (http://www.thebridge-

to ensure young people receive the help they need easily and quickly.

to young people who are experiencing a wide range of emotional and mental health issues. The service will link to existing local services

young people aged 11-18 in Leicester City, Leicestershire and Rutland. The service, Kooth, offers easily accessible professional support

people. This commenced in October 2015. A new service which offers advice, support and access to online counselling for children and

Leicestershire and Leicester City Public Health Teams and LLR CCGs have jointly commissioned an on-line counselling service for young

www.healthforkids.co.uk www.healthforteens.co.uk

These websites have been co-designed with young people and will be developed to contain more self-help information and resources.

Health for Teens and Health for Kids websites which have a range of information and advice for children, young people and parents.

children, young people and their families. These services often work in collaboration to support the whole family.

There is a vibrant, diverse and strong voluntary and community group sector which provides a range of holistic services which support

all children to contact the school nursing service at any time on an anonymous basis.

with mental health issues. The service has also developed an innovative CHATHEALTH application for mobile technology which enables

piloted the use of joint posts with the CAMHS service to ensure that all school nurses have skills and confidence in supporting children

The school nursing service has developed specific expertise to support children and young people who self-harm. It has successfully

schools including positive psychology coaching skills (Youth Mental Health 1st Aid training), suicide & self- harm awareness training.

advisers to support schools to improve pupils' mental/emotional health and wellbeing, delivery of mental health promotion training in

65

psychological needs of children and young people with long term or life limiting physical health conditions.

Joint commissioning from the CCGs and the University Hospitals of Leicester of a Paediatric Psychology service which supports the

practice on issues such as eating disorders and crisis and home treatment services

Future in Mind recommendations. We will establish specific links with neighbouring health and social care communities to consider best

Midland Strategic Clinical Network and CAMHS Working Group. We also participated in a regional mapping of readiness to implement the

The local authorities and CCGs are actively involved in regional work across the East Midlands. This includes participation in the East

Police use of S136 powers, where people are detained by the police for a mental health assessment. 2

provides an out-of- hours mobile mental health assessment service for adults and young people. This has led to a 40 % reduction in the

Police, mental health and probation services have worked collaborative to commission and provide the “Mental Health Triage Car” which

resilience and self-worth, and reduce the risk of problems escalating.

CCG and local authority commissioned workshops for young people on protective behaviours and self-esteem. These workshops build

Page 16 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015


ʹǣȀȀǤǤ Ȁ ǦȀʹͲͳ͵ȀȀͳ͵ȀǦ Ǧ ǦǦ


•

•

•

•

substance misuse.

such as arguments, breakdowns in communication and relationships, difficult emotions, mental health problems and concerns around

problems at home or with their relationships. The service supports people to look at ways of resolving conflict, often working with issues

66

living in families with difficulties around mental health or substance misuse,

involved in anti-social or criminal behavior,

with physical, sensory or learning disabilities or special educational needs,

with housing needs,

victims of neglect or sexual exploitation,

who are carers for others,

who are a refugee or asylum seeker

who are gay or bi-sexual,

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Page 17 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

with “protected characteristics”, as well as those who are vulnerable are addressed.

difficulties. As this plan is developed it will undergo a full equality impact assessment to ensure that the needs of all children and young people

of our approach will be to tackle stigma within communities and promote awareness and openness about mental health and developmental

the country, and there are significant levels of poverty. Rutland is one of the most rural counties in England and is relatively affluent. A key aspect

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland is a particularly diverse area. Leicester City has one of the highest percentage ethic minority populations in

“looked after” by the local authority,

•

vulnerable to mental disorders. This includes children and young people;

and promote positive relationships and community cohesion. In particular we will consider the impact for those young children known to be

Care Act 2015. We will ensure that our plans promote services which are accessible to all, free from discrimination or harassment, tackle stigma

All partners affirm their commitment to meet the requirements of the Equality Act 2010, the Human Rights Act 1998 and the Health and Social

2.3 Equality and Health Inequalities

67

outcome monitoring.

Page 18 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

CYP-IAPT guidelines. We will invest in IT infrastructure to ensure that our services are well placed to make clinical and planning use of systematic

skills in approaches such as CBT, IPT and family therapy. The service is also extending the regular use of clinical outcome measures in line with the

In the meantime, the workforce development plan for the specialist CAMHS service recognises the need to develop leadership skills, and therapeutic

the Midlands and East Region. We are keen to support the Leicestershire Education and Training Board to develop a course.

unsuccessful on both occasions. Our partnership is therefore not currently part of the programme. There is no local CYP-IAPT training provider within

The three CCGs have applied twice, as part of larger consortia, to join the national CYP-IAPT programme. Unfortunately the consortium bid was



2.5 Children & Young People’s Improving Access to Psychological Therapies Programme (CYP-IAPT)

case management support, and an advice line.

on the expertise of our experienced clinicians. This will include multi-agency face-to-face and online training in child and adolescent mental health

understanding and confidence in working with mental health issues. We will provide a programme of training and support for all practitioners, drawing

Other practitioners, in public, voluntary, community and independent sectors, working with children, young people and their families also need

as cognitive behavioural therapy and Interpersonal Psychotherapy.

workforce development plan. This covers issues such as recruitment, leadership development, and training in specific therapeutic approaches such

specialist CAMH service. This is less than the guidelines recommended by the Royal College of Psychiatrists. The CAMH service has established a

A skilled, confident workforce is key to the successful delivery of all services. Presently, there are 80 full- time equivalent clinical posts within the



2.4 Workforce Development

68

This requires a clear joined-up approach with intelligent use of information, accountability and

Page 19 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015


͵ ǣ ǯǤ  
ʹͲͳͷ

young people. Along with this the workforce, both universal and specialist, needs development to enhance capacity and capabilities.

transparency to drive improvements in delivery of care and standards of performance. Care will be provided for the most vulnerable children and

access to the right support at the right time.

states that organisations need to dismantle the artificial barriers between services, and plan and commission services together. The objective is easy

The report sets out 10 aspirations for the development of services, with an emphasis on promoting resilience, prevention and early intervention. It

start by the age of 18. Early intervention can avoid expensive and longer-term interventions into adulthood.

childhood, and if left untreated, can develop into conditions that need regular care. 75% of mental health problems in adult life (excluding dementia)

early intervention to promote resilience and prevent escalation to serious mental health concerns. Many health conditions show first signs in

basis for government policy through this Parliament. The report, Future in Mind3, found that there was a clear economic, health and moral case for

The Department of Health and NHS England Task Force on CAMHS reported on March 2015. The recommendations from this report will form the



3.1 Future in Mind (Department of Health 2015)

transformational plan.

relevant reports and identifies the key findings that we have taken into consideration when creating this Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland

people. They have all concluded that the current system of care requires significant improvement. This chapter provides an overview of the most

In the past few years there has been a plethora of national reviews and reports with regard to the mental health and wellbeing of children and young



3 National Context

69

Page 20 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015


Ͷ ǡǣǡ  ǤʹͲͳͷ
ͷ  ǣ  Ǥ ʹͲͳͷ
    ʹͲʹͲǤ Ȁ ʹͲͳͶ

parity of esteem, where people with mental health conditions can expect the same level of service as those with physical ailments. For 2016 there will

Achieving Better Access to Mental Health Services by 2020 outlines the first waiting time standards for mental health. This is part of the drive for



3.5 Achieving Better Access to Mental Health Services by 2020 (DH 2014)6

in partnership with the local authority and CCG.

by advice for schools on commissioning emotional support services such as counselling. Schools could do this independently or with other schools, or

peer support and mentoring, continuous staff development, and work in partnership with children young people and parents. The guide is supported

It advises that schools can promote mental health by having a healthy school approach, committed leadership, access to specialist support, enabling

This guide sets out the evidence that in order for pupils to succeed, schools must have a role in supporting them to be resilient and mentally healthy.



3.4 Mental Health and Behaviour in Schools: Advice for School Staff (DfE 2015)5



agencies to develop co-ordinated support for people of all ages who experience a mental health acute episode or crisis.

national target is that no person aged under 18 will be taken to a police cell in future as a place of safety. The Mental Health Concordat requires local

The report found that 31% of those under 18 who were detained by the Police under section 126 were taken to a police cell as a Place of Safety. The

receiving support, co-ordination of help from different agencies and attitudes of some staff which were not compassionate or understanding.

The recent CQC report found variation in the experience of care for people during a mental health crisis. People raised concerns about delays in



3.2 Right here, right now CQC report on crisis care for people with mental health problems 2015 & Mental Health Concordatϰ

70

If untreated

Page 21 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015


    ǣ  
ͺǣ ǡǣ
    ʹͲͲͶ
ͻ  ȋ ȌͶʹͲͳͶ

have to be placed in a hospital far away from their home.

intensive community support services for children and their families can prevent the need for admission. It is still the case that many young people

between specialist commissioners and local clinicians to improve the access to hospital and facilitate earlier discharge. The report also found that

This report identified a national shortage of hospital beds for children. It recommended an investment in extra capacity and strong joint working



3.7 National review of CAMHS Tier 4 (DH 2014)9

There will be a specific access waiting time target of 4 weeks from referral to commencement of treatment for routine cases, 1 week for urgent cases.

services for their region to be operational from 2016/17. They will be multi-disciplinary teams, providing a range of evidence based interventions.

cognitive behavioural therapy for children and adolescents with bulimia.8 The Department of Health will expect all CCGs to have commissioned such

condition and then treat the underlying psychological condition. NICE clinical guidance recommends family interventions for those with anorexia and

within the community, it is likely that a young person with an eating disorder will require a long period of hospitalisation to stabilise the medical

disorders. Eating disorders such as anorexia nervosa and bulimia nervosa are debilitating mental disorders with high mortality rates7.

There is a specific requirement set out in Achieving Better Access for all CCGs to commission specialist community services for children with eating



3.6 Eating Disorders

of serious illness and mortality. A waiting time standard for access to this specialist service will be set for 2016/17.

will also be requirement for all CCGs to commission specialist community services for children with eating disorders. These children are at high risk

be a national standard that at least 50% of people of all ages referred for early intervention in psychosis will start treatment within two weeks. There

71

•

Page 22 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

relations between people who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who do not share it;

give due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation, to advance equality of opportunity, and to foster good

The Equality Act requires all public bodies to



3.9 Equality Act 2010 & Humans Right Act

people with learning disabilities and mental health problems, and their transition into adult services.

disabilities. All CCGs have been tasked to develop Transformational Care plans. This plan must also consider the needs of adolescents and young

The Winterbourne Review has highlighted specific problems in the long term health and social care residential services for people with learning

services. The Act also requires authorities to provide support for young carers and for families, post–adoption.

The Act will require services to re-examine these structures and ensure at the very least that there is planned and co-ordinated transition between

Many organisations manage services differently for children and for young adults. There is often a “cut-off” at an age between 16 and 19.

the age of 25. The young person or their parent can ask for a “personal budget” to choose how elements of their care plan will be met.

education and training services that are available. There must be a single education, health and care health plan for every child which can run up to

people up to the age of 25 with Special Educational Needs or Disability (SEND). Each local authority must publish a “local offer” of health social care,

This Act sets out clear responsibilities for education, health and social care organisations to work together to meet the needs of children and young



3.8 Children and Family Act 2014 and Children with Special Educational Need or Disability

72

services are provided in an integrated way where this might reduce health inequalities

give regard to the need to reduce inequalities between patients in access to, and outcomes from, healthcare services and in securing that

respect for private and family life

no punishment without law

freedom of expression

•

•

•

Page 23 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015


ͳͲ    ǣ  ʹͲͳ͵

inequalities in access to health services and in health outcomes.

We will ensure that all services supporting children, young people and their carers adhere to these rights. It will also be important to tackle

freedom from torture and inhumane and degrading treatment

•

The Human Rights Act 1998 sets out a number of fundamental rights of all citizens including children and young people. These include:

community cohesion. In particular we will consider the impact for those young children known to vulnerable to mental disorders.

our plans promote services which are accessible to all, free from discrimination or harassment, tackle stigma and promote positive relationships and

disorders. It is also accepted that there is stigma attached to mental health problems and illnesses within numerous communities. We will ensure that

The National Joint Commissioning Panel for CAMHS10 has identified some children as having higher risk factors for emotional distress and mental

•

73





Target support post-adoption;

A place of safety for children and young people should be available for times of mental health crisis;

Access to hospital beds should be improved and earlier discharge facilitated

Some children and young people have higher risk factors and preventative and specialist services should be able to respond to their needs. 

All services should be free from discrimination, harassment and victimization, tackle stigma, and address health inequalities

All services should promote or protect the rights of the child. In particular, they must adhere to the Humans Rights Act.

•

•

•

•

•

•

Page 24 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015



Targeted support should be available to young carers;

co-ordinated transition;

Services for young people with special educational needs and disabilities should be clearly planned with adult services to ensure planned and

•

•

Intensive community support services should be established that can prevent the need for admission and keep children and young people

•

close to home

Schools should adopt a healthy schools approach and offer emotional support services such as counselling, group work and peer support.

this service of 4 weeks for a routine referral and 1 week for an urgent referral from 2017/18.

Local services for children and young people with eating disorders should be commissioned. There will be a national access time standard for

•

•

people referred for early intervention in psychosis will start treatment within two weeks;

The national agenda has highlighted the following key issues that will be addressed within our local transformational plan

• There should be access standards for all services. There will be a national requirement from 2016/17 that at least 50% of children and young

3.10 Key findings from the national agenda for the Transformational Plan

74

4.1 Children and Young People in Leicester, Leicestershire & Rutland

Leicester City Council estimates that the local Somali community comprises about 10,000 people. There are between
There are as many as 150 languages and dialects spoken in

The significant young ethnic minority population requires services to have a strong understanding of cultural norms

Page 25 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015


ͳͳ   ʹͲͳʹȀ  
ͳʹ   ʹͲͳͷǣ  
ͳ͵ ǣ ǯ  ʹͲͳ͵ǦͳǤ  ʹͲͳ͵

and behavioural difficulties, under-attainment at school, truancy and exclusion, criminal behaviour, drug and alcohol misuse, teenage pregnancy and

people and to improve mental health and emotional resilience. The focus is on prevention and early intervention. This can help prevent emotional

Leicester City’s Health and Wellbeing strategy 2013-16, “Closing the Gap”13 has strategic priorities to improve outcomes for children and young

10-24 have decreased in recent years and are lower than the national average.

childhood obesity, tooth decay and a higher infant mortality rate than the national average. Admission rates to hospital for self-harm for those aged

should reflect the diversity of the communities we serve. The CHIMAT Report12 on child mental health reported that Leicester had higher levels of

and experience of discrimination that can impact on emotional health, as well as access to good language support services. The staffing population

poorer child health outcomes.

Leicester. Approximately 35% of children live in poverty and 64% in total live in families on low income. Poverty and low income levels correlate with

Roma community. Other new communities include asylum seekers and refugees.

6,000 and 8,000 migrants of working age from Poland, Portugal, Slovakia, Latvia and Lithuania, including 1,000 – 2,000 people from the Slovak

predominately South Asian.

highest percentage ethnic minority populations of any area in England11. 68% of school children are from a Black or Ethnic Minority background,

There are approximately 250,000 children aged up to 18 in Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland (Census 2011). Leicester City has one of the



4. Level of Need and Local Context

75

Page 26 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015


ͳͶ ǯ ʹͲͳ͵ǦͳǤ  ʹͲͳʹ
ͳͷ  ʹͲͳ͵ǦͳǤ   
ͳ  ǡ
ǡ ǡ ǡ ȋʹͲͲͷȌǤ  ǡʹͲͲͶ
ͳ  Ǥ

indicates that

class of 30 schoolchildren, 3 will have a diagnosable mental health disorder17. The survey, extrapolated to Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland

The last national survey of prevalence of mental health conditions in children was conducted in 200316. This indicated that, at the time, in an average

4.2 Prevalence rates for mental health and developmental conditions

people and their families, and to support vulnerable teenagers make a smooth transition into adulthood.

there. The Rutland Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2013-1615 has priorities to support the emotional health and wellbeing of children, young

children have the best opportunity for good health and wellbeing throughout their lives. Rutland hosts two military bases with 700 children living

needs (as per the “Supporting Leicestershire Families” initiative that has been developed in locally) is key to ensuring that the most vulnerable

challenges to the health of the population is caused by the intergenerational cycle of health inequalities. Targeting families with the greatest overall

2013-1614 sets out priorities to “get it right from childhood” and “improving mental health and wellbeing”. It states that one of the most significant

however issues around rural isolation and social or academic pressure that influence mental health. Leicestershire’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy

Leicestershire and Rutland are rural and relatively affluent counties. The health of children is generally better than the national average. There are

and to tackle discrimination and stigma.

the subsequent need for high cost statutory social care in later life. The strategy also calls for intensive support for families with multiple problems

76

360
50
139
100
11
23
78
70
562
261

Anxiety

Conduct

Depression

Eating Disorder

Psychosis

Obsessive Compulsive Disorder

Self-Harm

Stress

Neurodevelopmental (ASD and ADHS)

Other

Page 27 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

twenty is receiving specialist assessment and therapeutic support from CAMHS.

the data would suggest that if there are 21,000 children and young people with potential mental health or neurodevelopmental concerns, only one in

nurses and educational psychology also provide significant support for children with neurodevelopmental and mental health conditions. Nevertheless

Often a child or young person will present with two or more related mental health conditions. Other service such as pediatrics, health visitors, school

1092

Number of open cases

Condition

neurodevelopmental needs. The current case load indicates the spread of conditions that the service supports.

The specialist CAMH service provides therapeutic and medical interventions to assess and support children with mental health or

11,000 children will have a conduct disorder: 6,250 will have anxiety: 1,700 will have diagnosable depression: 2,850 will have severe ADHD.

77

Page 28 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

Paediatrics, disabled children’s services and speech and language therapy which also work with many children and young people who will have

The three CCGs fund the specialist CAMHS service to the value of £6.5 million in 2015/16. They also fund under children’s services such as

4.4 Baseline financial data

their families.

range of other services, in health, social care, education, youth offending amongst others, which work with children with mental health problems and

24% of staff have an ethnic minority background. They range in age from 21-65 with 20% aged over 50. 4/5 of staff are female. There are a wide

109

Overall Total

1

Apprentice

22
7

8

Qualified

11

Unqualified

Psychology
Therapy

OT

46

1

13

WTE

Qualified

Specialty Doctor

Consultant

Medical

Nursing

Grade

Role

teams and local Tier 4 hospital services.

The charts below set out workforce data for the specialist CAMHS service including primary mental health, community CAMHS, specialist CAMHS

4.3 Baseline Workforce Data

78

Page 29 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015


ͳͺ ǤȋʹͲͲ͵Ȍ

health as a key issue, with access to early support vital.

had a least one psychiatric diagnosis. There are approximately 9,000 children in need. A local health needs assessment has highlighted mental

years from 837 in 2010. Most are placed within foster placements. National research, Meltzer et al (2003)18, showed that 46% of looked after children

There are approximately 1110 Looked after children in Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland. The numbers have steadily risen over the past five

4.5 Vulnerable Children and Young People

issues facing our local communities.

There is a commitment from the partners to this plan to deploy existing budgets alongside the Transformational Plan funding to jointly address the

contribution to a partnership approach.

The Office for the Police Commissioner has committed £140,000 per annum to commission emotional support services for child victims of crime as a

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland.

NHS England (East Midlands) estimates an annual cost of £3.5 million per year on hospital and specialist services for children and young people from

Educational Psychology) and generic child and family services.

Local Authority Children’s and Early Help services are funded at around £25million per annum. This includes a range of specialist services (such as

support young people aged 16-25.

associated neurodevelopmental or mental health conditions. Adult mental health services (which receive CCG funding of £80million per year) also

79

This report found high levels of anxiety, more anger, more challenging behavior including violence and more self-harming. Children raise

Page 30 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015


ͳͻ  Ǥ   ȀȋʹͲͳͷȌ
ʹͲ ǯ Ǥ  ʹͲͳͶ

into statutory services such as educational psychology or CAMHS.

support, family mediation. However these are not universally available leading to a patchwork of provision. Such services may not always have links

The report found examples of good early intervention and low level support services. These included counselling, self-esteem group work parental

in issues relating to social media, including cyber-bullying, and internet sites or groups which promote self-harm or eating disorders.

issues of bullying, family separation, domestic abuse and academic pressure as causes of emotional and mental distress. There has also been a rise

in 2014.

Leicestershire County Council’s Public Health Department20 carried out a mapping review of mental health and wellbeing support services for children

crime and witnesses to crime19.

has conducted qualitative research with young people and identified a need for therapeutic support for children and young people who are victims of

the general population and that very few young victims go on to report their crime. The Office of the Leicestershire Police and Crime Commissioner

types were assault, harassment, indecency and theft. It is well documented that young people are at a greater risk of becoming a victim of crime than

The total number of Children and Young People who were a victim of a crime in 2014/15 across LLR was 3466. Of these the most prevalent crime

risk of hospital admission or loss of residential care. This is linked to Transforming Care plans for all people with learning disabilities.

be associated with emotional distress. There is a specialist LD CAMHS service which provides and urgent, seven day a week service to reduce the

Rutland. The England average was 17.9%. Children with a learning disability can often present with challenging and difficult behavior, which may also

For 2014, the proportion of school pupils with Special Educational Needs was 19.6% for Leicester City and 15.6% for Leicestershire County and

80

Page 31 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015


ʹͳ  ʹͲͳ͵ǡ  ǣ  

the whole community is involved in the process.

wellbeing improvement in schools. The programme operates a whole school approach to education and health improvement in schools ensuring that

Leicestershire Healthy Schools Programme provides a framework for a coordinated and effective approach to the planning and delivery of health and

attainment and achievement that in turn improves their wellbeing, enabling children to thrive and achieve their full potential.’ In Leicestershire the

A recent Chief Medical Officer’s report21 highlighted ‘Promoting physical and mental health in schools creates a virtuous cycle reinforcing children’s

healthy.

specialist help at the right time. Schools have a very important role to play in supporting children and young people to be resilient and mentally

stigma and discrimination. School teachers want opportunities to develop their skills and expertise in supporting their students, and in accessing

people in Rutland have recently stated that they want greater education and discussion about mental health issues at school, to help overcome

provide additional emotional health and well-being support to enable those eligible for funding to access learning and improve outcomes. Young

Schools have greater responsibility and autonomy for developing pastoral and educational support services. They can utilise pupil premium funding to

4.6 Role of Schools

the Councils or commissioned by them.

There has been significant pressure on local authority budgets which has led to a reduction of some early help services, either provided directly by

81

4.7 Role of the Voluntary and Community Sector

Page 32 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

done to improve the understanding of the role of the specialist CAMHS service and promote other services that can provide appropriate support.

Around 30% of referrals are not accepted or redirected as they do not meet the thresholds for a CAMHS intervention. This indicates that work can be

Average waiting times for assessment are rising and are currently around 13 weeks. Some children and young people have to wait much longer.

harm and eating disorders. This has led to significant pressure on the CAMHS teams with increased waiting times for assessment and treatment.

reasons for referral include conduct disorders, family problems, requests for assessment for neurodevelopmental conditions, low self-esteem, self-

The specialist CAMHS Community Outpatient service has seen an increase in referrals of about 9% per year over the past four years. The main

4.8 Redesign of Specialist CAHMS

This has the potential to reduce pressure on specialist CAMHS and waiting times for access to these services.

commissioned VCS early help and support services that needs coordination and integration as part of a whole system wide local offer for families.

preventative projects and services working in consortia and/or in collaboration with statutory partners. There is currently a patchwork provision of

at a community level and have built trust with communities over a number of years. The VCS will have a pivotal role in delivering interventions and

family. VCS groups have a strong track record in building strong relationships with families, breaking down barriers, have direct access into families

based art, sport, drama and music, to more specialist support for conditions, such as Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD), for the whole

main beneficiaries as children, young people and families (CYPF). These groups deliver a range of local community based activities, from, street

Leicestershire & Rutland (LLR). These groups cover a range of services, and just over 450 groups help with emotional health and wellbeing with the

Voluntary Action Leicestershire (VAL) holds a database and public directory of voluntary and community sector (VCS) organisations for Leicester,




82

The key

Friends and Family Test (FFT)

Paediatric Index of Emotional Distress (PI-ED)

Strengths and Difficulties Questionnaire (SDQ)

•

•

•

Page 33 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015


ʹʹ  ͵  ǡ Ǥ ʹͲͳͶ
ʹ͵   ʹͲͳͷȀͳǤ ǡ  

Health of the Nation Outcome Scales for Children and Adolescents (HONOSCA)

•

CAMHS uses the following clinical and patient-centred outcome measures:

agreed quality standards as set by the Royal College of Psychiatrists, and improve engagement with stakeholders.

elements of the plan are to manage the current waiting lists to ensure that all children are safe, improve access, tackle low discharge rates, work to

These recommendations have been adopted into a Service Development Improvement Plan and a redesign of the specialist CAMHS 23 . Key

information and support for other practitioners and service users.

recommendations from this review centred on the referral and assessment process, clinical leadership , caseload management and advice,

review also considered concerns about joint working with other organisations such as GPs, schools and social care services.

In 2014 the CCGs commissioned an independent review of the CAMHS community outpatient services to examine and address these issues22. The

(SFT) and Psychodynamic Psychotherapy. .

The service provides a range of therapeutic interventions. Core interventions are Cognitive Behavioural Therapy (CBT), Systemic Family Therapy

83

Commission a crisis response service

Ensure that there is a clear protocol and procedure for accessing in-patient services which is communicated to all relevant practitioners

•

•

Page 34 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015


ʹͶ ǣ    Ǥ 
ʹͲͳͷ
ʹͷ ǣ  Ǥ ʹͲͳͷ
ʹ     ǤʹͲͳͷ

new alliance-based urgent and emergency care system where all providers work as one network. This will bring together ambulance, NHS111, OOH

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland has been selected as one of only eight urgent and emergency care vanguard sites The Vanguard will create a

There should be a clear place of safety for young people under the age of 18

conduct difficulties

Develop multi-agency care plans, risk assessments and crisis response plans for children and young people at risk of acute mental health or

•

•

review into these cases which was conducted by Verita26 and reported in July 2015. The key themes that were highlighted within this review were:

in-patient ward or had an extended wait within the Emergency Department at the Royal Infirmary hospital. The CCGs commissioned an independent

There have been seven serious incidents involving children known to the CAMHS service over the past two years who have been admitted to an adult

4.9 Crisis and In-patient Care

response services; learning from serious incidents; and ensuring service users give consent to treatment and are informed of their rights.

ensuring staff have regular supervision, training and appraisals; assessing and treating young people in a timely manner; the development of crisis

2015)24 25. This has recommended a number of areas of CAMHS community and in-patient services which require improvement. These include

There has also been a recent Care Quality Commission inspection of children and families services provided by Leicestershire Partnership Trust (July

84

Page 35 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

and ensure that there are good protocols for partnership working between Tier 3 and Tier 4 commissioners and providers.

We are keen to work as part of regional collaborative commissioning arrangements to strengthen the provision of in-patient facilities within our region

unit, 8 within a PICU and 4 in Low Secure setting. All 17 requiring a specialist unit are placed outside the East Midlands region.

beds within the Midlands region. The data for June 2015 shows that 48 young people from LLR were placed in a hospital, 5 of these in eating disorder

carers in visiting, and can damage the young person’s links with friends and peers. We are keen to see a greater provision of general and specialist

These young people may be placed anywhere in the country. This presents problems in continuity of care and education, difficulties for families and

East region. There are no specialist units in the region for young people with eating disorders or requiring a Psychiatric Intensive Care Unit (PICU).

England. There is a 10-bedded unit within Leicestershire. Young people from LLR may be placed there or at another unit across the Midlands and

Children in Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland who require a period of time in a mental health hospital can access beds commissioned from NHS

ED or mental health in-patient units and also support planned discharge from in-patient units.

work with the young person, their carers and other agencies such as school or social care. The aim will be to reduce and avoid admission to either

community and home treatment services. These services will operate extended hours seven days a week, and will provide home visits and intensive

hospital services. This will be a seven day service. Through the Future in Mind transformational fund we will commission multi-agency intensive

liaison service. This service will focus on support for children and young people when they attend the Emergency Department and other acute

which will include a specialist CAMHs Consultant, nurse, psychologist, child social worker and a substance misuse worker as part of an “all-ages”

an all ages crisis response service including children and young people experiencing acute mental distress. A service model has been developed

and Single Point of Access services to ensure that patients get the right care, first time. The Vanguard will also progress work to ensure that there is

85

Eating Disorders

Education services are very important in promoting resilience and good mental health and in commissioning specific pastoral support services

•

Page 36 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

There has been an increase in young people experiencing anxiety, anger and challenging behaviour and referrals to specialist CAMHS.

parental support groups for these communities may be particularly beneficial.

Our region has a significant child ethnic minority population and all services will need to accessible and culturally appropriate. Peer and

•

•

4.11 Key findings impacting on the transformational plan

is required.

should also prevent the escalation of eating disorder conditions to critical levels where emergency admission to specialist or paediatric hospital wards

referral to assessment and commencement of treatment for urgent cases. This development will potentially reduce pressure on generic CAMHs. It

standards by 2017/18. These are four weeks from referral to assessment and commencement of treatment for routine cases, and one week from

year. This multidisciplinary service will consist of 11 staff and will serve an overall population of 1 million. The service will meet the national access

community based eating disorder service with the capacity to provide NICE concordat therapeutic interventions for 100 children and young people per

outcomes and be financially cost-effective by reducing reliance on long-term hospital placements. The CCGs have agreed to commission a specialist

There is a growing evidence base that early access to specialist community based eating disorder service operating to NICE guidelines can improve

disorder such as anorexia nervosa can be a particularly serious mental health condition with a risk of severe damage to physical health or mortality.

this condition from around 40 to 100 per year. These children and young people are supported by the generic community CAMHS team. An eating

The CAMHS service is presently not specified to provide a specialist eating disorder service. There has been a significant increase in referrals for

4.10

86



A co-ordinated multi-agency response to children and young people experiencing a mental health crisis is required.

There is a need for more generic and specialist hospital beds commissioned in the East Midlands.

•

•

Page 37 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

Specific community services for children and young people with eating disorders are required.

training and support to other organisations and practitioners. It can make better use of routine outcome measures.

The CAMHS service must transform the assessment and treatment process so that help can be offered quicker. It can offer more advice,

and equitable offer to children across the region.

services. These services need to be integrated within a care pathway and commissioned in a strategic way to ensure that there is consistent

There are some excellent and innovative voluntary and community sector providers. There is a patchwork provision of early help and support

•

•

•

87

Transformational Plan for 2020

We will also review the current

Page 38 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

The Standards for this work will include:

establish new school liaison posts and to commission a comprehensive health promotion campaign.

engage with schools to release direct funding contribution. Indicative funding would be £200,000 from the transformation plan. This will be used to

The financial investment in this work will come initially from the transformational plan and from public health departments. The partnership will also

innovation.

help this. This will be through utilising social media and more traditional communication methods. It will involve building on current best practice and

Our partnership will develop a range of ways for children, young people and carers to find out about mental health and the range of services that can

practice approaches will then be shared across educational settings.

approaches and resources that are being used to address the misuse of social media, including cyber-bullying and sexual exploitation. The best

partnership with education settings to develop and deliver age appropriate education on mental health problems.

Our partnership will commission and deliver a public health campaign on mental health and resilience. A key element of this will be to form

are all concerned about the impact of cyber-bullying.

education and guidance for their pupils, provide pastoral support and know when to ask for specialist assistance. Parents, young people and schools

find information and support from the school, college or youth service, and also from websites and social media. Education services want to offer

Young people have said that they want to have the confidence to talk about emotional problems openly and without stigma. They want to be able to

5.1 Promote good emotional health and resilience for all children, young people and their families

5

88

a survey of young people about their attitudes, experience and awareness of mental health issues.

•

required.

Page 39 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

will include offers such as counselling, group work and parental support. But it will also include direct access to specialist mental health services if

various agencies. The services will signpost the young person or family, escalate the case if required, or offer low intensity support and help. This

Safety. It is important that there is quick local access to this first response, and that it benefits from the expertise and knowledge of practitioners from

or family, and co-ordinate the right intervention and support. The service will set thresholds using the Merton Risk Assessment Tool and Signs of

Our partnership will commission a multi-agency “First Response” service which will assess the level of distress and risk facing a child, young person

services to be part of a commissioned pathway of support, meeting high quality standards and linked to more specialist services.

parent what support to offer. We know that a range of public, private and community organisations can provide effective support. They want their

youth justice and social care want to work together to understand the needs of a young person and decide together with the young person and / or

serious problems to be recognised quickly, and no longer be told that “they are not ill enough” to get help. Organisations such as health, education,

choice about the kind of help they receive and be encouraged to become resilience and maintain their independence. They also want potentially

Young people and carers have said that they want access to help and support quickly and locally, without being stigmatised. They want to have a

emotional distress and the first signs of mental disorders

5.2 Development and delivery of co-ordinated, accessible and non-stigmatising early and targeted support for those experiencing

the number and proportion of schools which engage in the programme,

•

89



The number of children young people and carers who participate in programmes of early support.

Improvements in Strengths and Difficulties Questionnaire rating for CYP participating in the programmes

The proportion of CYP completing early help programmes who require further specialist CAMHS support.

•

•

•

Page 40 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015



The number of young people and / or carers who are assessed within four weeks of a referral.

•

The standards for the service will include



partners. The funding will be used to enhance early help capacity and to commission a range of community –based short term interventions.

approach. Indicative funding would be £460,000 from the transformational fund with matched funding (or work in kind) from local commissioning

There will be financial contributions from local authorities, CCGs and the OPCC to supplement and support transformational plan investment in this

the Lesbian, Gay, Bi-sexual and Transgender.

achieved through building on and developing partnerships with local community groups such as the City of Sanctuary (refugees and asylum seekers),

There will be specific aspects of this work that will focus on services for children and young people from “hard to reach” communities. This will be

90

The pilot service will run during 2015/16 with the aim of commissioning a full



Page 41 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

The standards for this service will be for all children and young people will receive an assessment within 13 weeks of referral.

the CAMH Service.

The indicative financial commitment would be £50,000 from the transformational fund. There will also be support through the existing CCG funding of

Behavioural Therapy, Parenting Support and Interpersonal Psychotherapy. These will be specified clearly within contract documentation.

The service will also provide a set range of evidence based NICE concordat therapies. This will include Systemic Family Therapy, Cognitive

authority social care access teams to share information (with consent) and to plan joint interventions.

service to operate from 2016/17 onwards. There will be locally agreed access waiting time standards There will be strong engagement with local

young person can access the specialist CAMHS services if required.

referrer, the young person and the carers (if appropriate) to understand the presenting issues. It will offer short term interventions or ensure that the

The CAMHS service will pilot establishing a single access team. This team will receive all referrals to the service and will make direct contact with the

CAMHS service is experiencing a rising number of referrals (up about 9% per year) and increasing these are for complex or urgent situations.

access the service quickly and there is a perception that a young person will be told that they are “not ill enough” to receive CAMHS help. The

therapeutic relationship they can develop with their practitioners and the support offered to their family and carers. However, it remains difficult to

Young people value the quality of care and support they receive from the specialist CAMHS service. They have said that they appreciate the

5.3 Single gateway to specialist CAMHS services with clear access standards

91

Measures will include HONOSCA, PI_ED, Friend and Family Tests, Outcome Star, Strengths and Difficulties

Page 42 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

Questionnaire, and Signs of Safety. A range of measures are set out in the guidance for the Children and Young People’s Improving Access to

the overall design of services.

Our partnership will strengthen the use of outcome measures. These will be used both to inform clinical practice for individuals, and also to improve

5.5 Systematic use of outcome measurement to drive clinical and service improvement



The standard for this service will that all children and young people will receive specialist psychological support within 13 weeks of referral.

enhance clinical capacity within these specialist teams.

The indicative financial commitment would be £50,000 from the transformational fund, and £288,000 from Parity of Esteem. This will be used to

referral.

that we meet the national access standard that people with first episode psychosis will be assessed and commence treatment within two weeks of

Through Parity of Esteem we will focus on providing a dedicated and swift response to young people with a first episode of psychosis. This will ensure

and experienced in responding to their needs.

these children and young people are more likely to require psychological support and would benefit from swift access to services which are skilled

mental health problems, those who have been exposed to sexual exploitation and children who are refugees or asylum seekers. It is known that

who are particularly vulnerable. This includes looked after children, those at risk of offending, those with learning disabilities, those with a family of

The CCGs and local authorities will review and consider expanding the specialist therapeutic support that is available for children and young people

5.4 Specialist support for vulnerable children and young people with mental health problems

92

All commissioned services will have data sharing agreements and protocols in place.

service planning

All commissioned services will use both clinical and patient centred outcome measures. These measures will inform clinical practice and

Page 43 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015


ʹ    ǣ  

40 a year in 2011 to over 100 in 2014/15. If untreated within the community, it is likely that a young person with an eating disorder will require a long

increasing prevalence of eating disorders amongst children and young people with the number of referrals to CAMHS increasing from an average of

Eating disorders such as anorexia nervosa and bulimia nervosa are debilitating mental disorders with high mortality rates27. There has been an

5.6 Specialist community services for children and young people with eating disorders





•

•

The standards for this service



funding will be used to support this.

However, the partnership is keen to support the Local Education and Training Board to develop provision locally. Non-recurrent transformational

The LLR CAMHS services are presently not part of the National CYP-IAPT programme. There is not a training provider for the Midlands region.

measures. It will also involve developing information sharing protocols between organisations.

Service Minimum Data Set (MHSMDS). This work will involve ensuring that data systems are in place to record, analyse and report on the outcome

Psychological Therapies programme (CYP-IAPT) and the Child Outcomes Research Consortium (CORC). We will prepare for the Mental Health

93

The Clinical

All urgent referrals will be seen within 1 week of referral

•

Page 44 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015


ʹͺǣ ǡǣ
    ʹͲͲͶ
ʹͻ  ǯ ǡ ʹͲͳͷ

All routine referrals will be seen within 4 weeks of referral

•

The Standards for this service will be

will have a role in outreach and advice to other practitioners as well as direct patient care.

Indicative financial contribution: £440,000 from the transformational fund. This will be used to fund seven new posts within the service. These posts



acute cases.

include reductions in admissions and length of stay in specialist hospital settings. It will also have the potential to reduce the number of crisis and

include developing pathways for self-referral and to ensure that the service can operate 7 days-a –week. The potential benefits of this investment

enhance the service to meet all aspects of the national guidance (2015)29 and respond to new NICE guidelines which are due in 2017. This will

within 4 weeks and urgent cases within 1 week of referral. Over the period of this transformational plan there will be the opportunity to further

will serve a general population of 1 million. It will operate to the national access and waiting time standards so that all routine cases will be assessed

service for children and young people up to the age of 18. The service will deliver NICE concordant treatments for up to 100 new referrals per year. It

Commissioning Groups have therefore decided to invest in the commissioning of a specialist multi-disciplinary community based eating disorders

family interventions for those with anorexia and cognitive behavioural therapy for children and adolescents with bulimia. 28

period of hospitalisation to stabilise the medical condition and then treat the underlying psychological condition. NICE clinical guidance recommends

94

The team will also liaise with NHS England and Tier 4 providers to facilitated planned

Page 45 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015


30
Crisis Care Concordat for Mental Health: Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland action plan

This is set out in the action plan for Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland to deliver the Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat30.

CAMHS nurse, child psychologist, family social worker and specialist substance misuse worker.

young people with acute mental health or behavioural problems arriving at the emergency department. The team will include a CAMHS Consultant,

Through the Vanguard Programme, the CCGs will also commissioning enhanced all-age liaison psychiatry services. This will support children and

This team will consist of a CAMHS Consultant, CAMHS nurses and social workers.

admission and discharge.

home or community based assessments and interventions.

partnership with the local authorities, will commission an intensive community support service which will operate beyond normal office hours and offer

“Place of Safety” as required under Section 136 of the Mental Health Act 1983. This Place of Safety should never be a police cell. The CCGs, in

taken to a safe and calming environment where, in time, a full assessment can be undertaken. There is also a requirement to establish a designated

facing a life-threatening condition. In these situations, an urgent assessment or intervention may be required and the young person may need to be

behavioural or mental health disorders. This may include a young person being violent, using threatening behaviour towards themselves or others, or

There is also a need to develop specific support for children and young people, and their carers experiencing a crisis situation due to significant

5.7 Co-ordinated support to prevent crisis and at time of crisis

95

Workforce Development

Page 46 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

Indicative funding would be £70,000 from Future in Mind. This would be used to commission a programme of training.

specialist practitioners deliver the training to other practitioners such as children’s centre staff, social workers, police officers and school teachers.

We will recommission a child mental health training and development programme. This will build on our successful approach of ensuring that local

age and gender and is ethnically diverse to reflect the profile of the children and families we work with.

cognitive behavioural therapy, psychodynamic psychotherapy and family therapy. It is also important to have a workforce that is balanced in terms of

development of leadership and specific therapeutic skills. The plan recognised the need to develop skills and experience in therapies such as

We have established a workforce development plan for the specialist CAMHS service. This focusses on succession plan and recruitment and the

5.8

The intensive community support service will operate 7 days-a-week

No child or young person will be placed in a police cell as a place of safety

No child or young person will wait more than 4 hours in the emergency department.

The standards for these services will be:

the new service teams.

Indicative funding would be £500,000 from the transformational plan and £250,000 from the Vanguard programme. This would be used to establish

96

Governance and Transparency

Page 47 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015


͵ͳ ʹͲͳͷǣ 

An “easy read” summary of the plan will be published on the websites for each CCG and Health and Wellbeing Board in December 2015.

what local children, young people and carers have said that they want. The structure is set out in the diagram below.

for schools, GPs, parent/ carers, and young people. These groups will hold the overall programme to account, and ensure that it remains focussed on

regular reports against the key standards and Key Performance Indicators for their services. There will also be specific stakeholder reference groups

Task groups are being established to manage each element of the programme. These task groups will be responsible for delivery and will receive

There is a programme lead officer, who will be supported by additional project officers responsible for delivering key aspects of the programme.

commissioning of services, utilising Future in Mind and existing budget allocations.

authorities, voluntary sector, Healthwatch, the OPCC and health commissioners and providers. This steering group will have responsibility for joint

County Council and the Director of Nursing at Leicester City CCG. A Steering Group31 has already been established with representation from local

for the area. It will be part of the Women and Children’s Workstream, and be jointly led by the Director of Children’s Services at Leicestershire

The programme will be led by the BCT Delivery Board which is accountable to the Boards of the three CCGs and three Health and Wellbeing Boards

potential to make links with other workstreams such as adult mental health and urgent care.

Together (BCT) Programme Framework. This approach offers the benefit of greater engagement with a wide range of stakeholders as well the

transparent and open to scrutiny and review. This is why we have decided to embed the Future in Mind Transformational Plan within the Better Care

changes now is set. The programme will require strong governance and management to ensure that it delivers against the objectives, and remains

This transformational plan presents a significant challenge to all partner organisations. But the vision is clear and the determination to make these



6

97




 

 










Ƭ
Ǧ  



ǯƬǯ


Workforce

 


Page 48 of 62






 





Ƭ


Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

 


 
 


   
 Ƭ

98

However we have a clear approach that the Future in Mind funding is a catalyst for

people.

Page 49 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

between the CCGs and local authorities to ensure that the funds are ring-fenced for investment in mental health services for children and young

recurrent investment to address issues such as IT modernisation or waiting list backlogs. A Section 75 Partnership Agreement will also be set up

2015/16 financial year. The focus in on establishing the work programmes for each of the task groups. There will also be opportunities for non-

The proposed financial allocations and commitments are set out in Annex 1. This specifically covers the use of resources for the remainder of the

funding of services.

partner agencies to contribute to the overall transformational of services. Future in Mind funding will not be used as a replacement for core

been included in the financial trackers or plans set out below.

Office for the Police and Crime Commissioner that will contribute to the overall transformation. These contributions are being finalised and have not

enhance liaison psychiatry services (est. £250,000). There are also other funding streams from the CCGs, local authorities, public health and the

plan. Funding had also been allocated from Parity of Esteem to meet access standards for early psychosis (£280,000) and from the Vanguard to

The three CCGs for Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland will receive a total of £1,870,000 recurrent funding on assurance of the transformational




7 Indicative Financial Allocations

99

£ 200,000
£

£ 460,000
£ 200,000
£
£2,408,000

Early Help

Public Health and engagement with
schools
Workforce development

Total

£1,870,000

70,000

£ 460,000

Other

Page 50 of 62

£538,000

Parity of Esteem £288,000

Vanguard £250,000

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015



£ 100,000

£ 388,000

70,000

£ 500,000

£ 750,000

Crisis Support and Intensive
Community Support
CAMHS Access Team

£ 440,000

£ 440,000

£ 100,000

Eating Disorders

Future in Mind

Contributions

£ 100,000

Funding

Programme Management

Priority



Details are set out in Annex 1.



Summary funding allocations

100

Page 51 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

be closely managed and reviewed to ensure that there is progress in all areas.

The implementation plan will form the work programme of the BCT Steering Group for children and young people’s mental health and wellbeing. It will

deadline and with a clear accountable officer. There are identified leads for each objective, although all will require strong partnership working.

transform the mental health and wellbeing of children and young people by 2020. Each objective aims to be SMART: to be clear, measurable, to a

The Implementation Plan for 2015-17 set out below is based on the aspirations set out in Future in Mind. It is the first stage of our journey to





8 Implementation Plan 2015-17

101

share across schools and
colleges

Health in partnership
with schools and

to social media bullying and sexual exploitation

Disseminate May 2017

Review March 2016

Re-commission April 2017

Review Dec 2016

Launch April 2016

Commission Dec 2015

Page 52 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

police

Identify current best practice and

Directors of Public

1c) Review current approaches and resources

schools to raise awareness on
mental health issues

Health

schools and colleges to raise awareness of

Programmes of work within

mental health issues

Directors of Public

Re-commission April 2017

resilience

1b) Commission programmes of work within

Review Dec 2016

awareness and promote

Commission Dec 2015

Timescale

resilience for children and young people

An annual programme of

Outcomes

public health campaigns that raise Launch April 2016

Commission implement and evaluate a Directors of Public

Lead

public health campaign on mental health and Health

1a)

Action

My family and I are able to look after my emotional and mental wellbeing and development day to day. I learn about mental health and how to
protect myself at school or college. I am confident in talking about issues which affect my mental health. I know how to access information and
advice when I need it.

Where we want to get to:

for children and young people, where there is less fear and where stigma and discrimination are tackled

Future in Mind Aspiration 1. Improved public awareness and understanding, where people think and feel differently about mental health issues

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 2015-2017

102

CAMHS
Commissioner

Director of FYPC
Services, LPT

CAMHS
Commissioner

2a) Commission, implement and deliver a new

“Access team” for CAMHS.

2b) Implement the enhancement of the specialist

service for people with first episode psychosis

2c) Commission, implement and deliver a

community based eating disorder service for

2016.
Standard met 2017/18

weeks of referral

Service commences April

Concordat specialist support within 4

an eating disorder will receive NICE

Commission Sept 2015

2016

two weeks of referral.
All children and young people with

Achieve standard April

Enhance service 2015/16

specialist therapeutic support within

first episode of psychosis will receive

All children and young people with a

Commission Feb 2016

referral to access CAMHS

Implement April 2016

Review Jan 2016

Pilot August 2015

Timescales

wait more than 13 weeks from

No child or young person will have to

Outcomes

Page 53 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

children and young people

Lead

Actions

I will be helped by a specialist team quickly if my mental health problems are serious

Where we want to get to:

and young people

Future in Mind Aspiration 2. Meet the national and local waiting time standards for access to community mental health services for children

103

Commissioner

people transferring from child to adult services

covering age 16-19

Every young person has a care plan

2016

Include in specs for April

Audit February 2016

Page 54 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

CAMHS

3c) improve the support for young

Implement June 2016

to children, young people and

Authorities
families

model by January 2016

low intensity interventions available

early help mental health support services.

Services, Local

Director of Children

3b) Commission and implement a collaboration of

2017/18 onwards

Review and develop

2016 onwards

Develop commissioning

help quickly and easily.

Local Authorities

mental health needs

Implementation from April

Develop model Dec 2015

Timescales

There are a range of quality assured

mental health needs can access

response” service young people and families with Children’s Services,

Outcomes
All children and young people with

Lead

3a) Develop and implement a multi-agency “first Director of

Actions

I can get support to help me overcome emotional and mental health challenges quickly and locally, without being stigmatised. I will have
choice about the kind of help I would like. I and those who care for me will be listened to. I will be supported to become resilient and
independent. With my consent, services will work together with me and my family to give me the best support. I will be involved in decisions to
reduce or transfer my care

Where we want to get to

to one based around needs of children and their families

Future in Mind Aspiration 3 A step change in how care is delivered moving away from a system defined by organisations, “a tiered model”

104

CAMHS
Commissioner

4a) Review the range of therapeutic

interventions against best practice guidelines

2017

to other agencies, children, young

Commissioner

IAPT training programme

Through 2016/17

Page 55 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

CYP_IAPT outcome measures

the national programme, using

The CAMHS service will be part of

CAMHS

4c) Support the development of a regional CYP-

clinical and service user outcome

All commissioned services use
measures.

Commissioner

of routine outcome measures to inform clinical

Specifications revised April

out in specifications and information

April 2017

conducted during 2016/17

and therapeutic interventions is set

people and carers

A programme of reviews is

Timescales

A clear offer of accurate assessment

Outcomes

decisions and service developments

CAMHS

4b) Commission, implement and monitor the use

evidence base and specifications.

Lead

Actions

I will receive support which is safe, reliable and tested. I will be involved in setting my own treatment goals and deciding if I am getter better

Where we want to get to:

Future in Mind Aspiration 4 Increased use of evidence based treatments with services focusing on outcomes

105

Directors of Public
Health

5a) Develop and make available information and

advice services including social media, mobile

carers.

Children’s services.

are easily accessible for all young people and

2016 onwards

Implementation from April

Develop model Dec 2015

March 2016 and annually

Fully implement April 2017

Develop service April 2016

Map needs March 2016

Timescales

Page 56 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

and locally ,

access help and support quickly

Young people and carers can

Director of

5c) Ensure first response mental health services

services prepared and publicised
annually

Children’s Services.

services for children their families including mental

“Local offer” and Directory of

issues.

and advice about mental health

characteristics) to find information

those with protected

young people and carers (including

A range of ways for all children,

Outcomes

health and wellbeing services

Directors of

5b) Provide and publicise a clear local offer of

communication and face-to-face.

Lead

Actions

I can access trusted self-care advice when and where we like including websites, education settings, GPs and children’s centres. I can get
support to help me overcome emotional and mental health challenges quickly and locally, without being stigmatised. I will be able to make
informed choices about the kind of help I would like.

Where we want to get to:

Future in Mind Aspiration 5 Making mental health support more visible and easily accessible for children and young people and their families

106

CAMHS
Commissioner

6a) Commission and implement a multi-agency

intensive community support and home treatment

Commissioner

ordinate services to support children and their

Commissioner

commission an enhanced all ages liaison

psychiatry service

Direct and swift psychological

CAMHS

6d) Through the Vanguard Programme

Commence April 2016

2015

Commission December

Develop model Nov 2015

basis.

reviewed on three monthly

Autumn 2015 and then

Safety. July 2016

Agree and set up place of

Report on options Oct 2015

Page 57 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

people at Emergency Dept.

support for children and young

mental health crisis

families in a mental health crisis

to support child and family during

Organisations work swiftly together

CAMHS

6c) Implement clear multi-agency protocols to co-

young person with possible mental

Lead

under sections 135 and 136 of the Mental Health

health problems

where the police can take a child or

Commissioning

children and young people detained by the Police

Act 1983.

There will be a designated place

Commence April 2016

emergency services and ED
CCG Mental health

2015

Commission December

Develop model Nov 2015

Timescales

Less inappropriate use of the

supported during times of crisis.

Children and their carers are

Outcomes

6b) Create a designated place of safety for

and crisis response service

Lead

Actions

I will be helped by a specialist team quickly if my mental health or behavioural problems are serious. Organisations will work together to
support me. I will be seen promptly if I attend the Emergency Department. I will not be judged by staff for my mental health problems. I will be
able to access a bed within a reasonable distance from home. I will be supported to return home safely as soon as possible.

Where we want to get to:

as close to home as possible

Future In Mind Aspiration 6 Improved care for children and young people in crisis, so they are treated in the right place at the right time and

107

Directors of Public
Health

Directors of
Children’s Services

Directors of
Children’s Services

7a) Ensure that the health visitor service deliver

perinatal mental health advice and support.

7b) Commission and implement range of parental

support programmes across all regions and ages

7c) Commission and implement attachment

training and trauma recognition training for

understand attachment and trauma

School and children’s centre staff

support.

Parents will receive appropriate

support around their mental health

All new parents receive advice and

Outcomes

2016

Commence training October

Commission March 2016

for April 2016

Dec 2015 for commissioning

Review current services by

Implement April 2016

Review spec Jan 2016

Timescales

Page 58 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

schools and children’s centres

Lead

Actions

Perinatal support and advice is available for all parents

All parents and carers, particularly those vulnerable to mental health problems, have access to effective programmes of intervention and support.

Where we want to get to:

attachment between carer and child, avoid early trauma, build resilience, and improve behaviour

Aspiration 7 Improved access for parents and carers to evidence based programmes of intervention and support to strengthen

108

CAMHS
Commissioner

8a) Review and if necessary enhance capacity of

specialist services (YPT and LDT) support looked

Authority
Commissioners

human rights are addressed within all

commissioned services.

promote diversity and respect

irrelevant considerations and

accessible, do not discriminate on

Ensure that all services are

June 2016

commence April 2016

Commission services to

capacity for April 2017

Commission enhanced

Review in Nov 2016

Timescales

Page 59 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

CCG and Local

8c) Ensure that issues of equality and diversity and

refugees and asylum seekers)

peer support networks.

people have access to facilitated

Children’s services

networks for vulnerable children (e.g. young

carers, gay and lesbian young people, young

Vulnerable children and young

Director of

children

needed to support vulnerable

Identify where additional capacity is

Outcomes

8b) Commission and establish peer support

learning disabilities

after children, young offenders and children with

Lead

Actions

I can get high quality support to help me overcome emotional and mental health challenges quickly and locally, without being stigmatised.
I will be able to make informed choices about the kind of help I would like. I and those who care for me will be listened to.
I will be supported to become resilient and independent. I and my carers will be helped to navigate the system and services.
I am involved in peer support groups and community networks in my area.

Where we want to get to:

and where they need it

Future in Mind Aspiration 8 A better offer for the most vulnerable children, making it easier for them to access support they need when

109

Plan is available for public scrutiny

Publish December 2015

2015

First meeting December

June 2017

Timescales

Page 60 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

and report on progress at regular intervals.

9c) Publish the Transformational Plan on websites
MD for each CCG

informs the transformational plan.

Commissioner

including children, young people and carers to

develop and evaluate the transformational plan

Stakeholder Group influences and

CAMHS

9b) Establish a specific stakeholder group

people and carers

influenced by the views and

Use this to shape commissioning plans

Commissioner

respond to the views and experiences of

Strategic plans have been directly
experience of children young

CAMHS

9a) Establish a unified approach to capture and

Outcomes

children, young people, and carers.

Lead

Actions

I am confident in talking about issues which affect my mental health. My views and experience will help to improve care for others

Where we want to get to:

Aspiration 9 Improved transparency and accountability across the whole system, to drive further improvements in outcomes

110

task group

strategy and commission a partnership training






with mental

support children and young people

greater confidence and skills to

Front-line practitioners have

which all practitioners can access

strategy and programme is in place

A child mental health training

Outcomes

Ongoing

2016

commission to start in April

Review Autumn 2015 re-

Timescales

Page 61 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015

offering specialist support

10b) increase capacity of front-line practitioners by

programme.
Director of FYPC

Chair of Workforce

10a) Develop a child mental health training

programme . This will include the MINDEd online

Lead

Actions

I can get high quality support to help me overcome emotional and mental health challenges quickly and locally, without being stigmatised.
I and those who care for me will be listened to. With my consent, services will work together with me and my family to give us the best support.
There will be a skilled, experienced and knowledgeable workforce across all organisations who have access to training and advice on child
mental health and how to access specialist support

Where we want to get to:

what can be done to provide help and support those who need it

Aspiration 10 Professionals who work with children and young people are trained in child development and mental health and understand

111





Page 62 of 62

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Mental Health and Wellbeing for Children and Young People Transformational Plan 2015 – 2020
November 2015







112

113

APPENDIX B

Transforming mental
health and wellbeing
services for children
and young people
A plan for Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland

114

A wide range of organisations are involved in commissioning and delivering
services that promote and support the mental health and wellbeing of children
and young people. They range from universal children’s services such as health
visitors, schools and colleges, through to early support services for young people
facing emotional of developmental difficulties, and specialist psychiatric support for
those with significant and enduring mental health problems. Other services such
as the police, the justice system and housing may encounter children and young
people with mental health difficulties.
These services need to work better together to ensure that the needs of the child or
young person are kept paramount. This will involve commissioning new services
together, pooling resources and sharing information to work jointly with a young
person and their family.

Why we need to change
Children, young people and carers have told us that that they are
worried about a range of issues that affect their mental health and
wellbeing. These include academic pressure, peer pressure, family
breakdown, sexual exploitation and cyber-bullying. They would
like more support in school or through confidential help-lines and
websites. Parents have told us of the “battle” to access specialist
support and young people being told that they are “not ill enough”
to get help. They also report having to repeat their story many times
to different practitioners and that organisations do not always know
what each other are doing.
We have commissioned an independent review into the specialist
CAMHS (Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services) and
mapped the community based services which currently provide
emotional help and support to children young people and carers.
We have also looked at the Joint Strategic Needs Assessments for
Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland which tells us about our local
population and prevalence rates for different conditions. We have
commissioned a report into a number of serious incidents where as
partner agencies, we struggled to provide the right care at the right
time for children and young people experiencing acute behavioural
or mental health problems. We have also analysed the number and
type of hospital beds we need for children with a severe mental
health problem such as an eating disorder or psychosis.
2

115
This analysis tells us that there is an increasing prevalence of mental
health and developmental difficulties such as autism spectrum
disorder, ADHD, self-harm and eating disorders. The referrals to the
special CAMHS service have gone up 9% per year over the past four
years, and it can take a long time to get support from this service.
Average waiting time for an assessment from CAMHS is now over
13 weeks. There are some really exciting and innovative community
based early support projects such as parental training, self–esteem
workshops, school anti-bullying projects and parent led support
groups. However these are inequitably spread across the region.
These services are all commissioned separately and the standard
and quality of therapeutic care can vary.
The reports recommend that we commission two new services:
a specialist community based service for children with an eating
disorder, and a crisis and home treatment team that will support
families experiencing acute difficulties and when the child may need
to be admitted to hospital. We should also aim to have more hospital
beds available closer to home.
The reports also show that whilst 24% of people in our area are
under the age of 20, only 6% of health spending on mental health
services is for this age group. We probably spend less on specialist
mental health services for children than other comparable areas.
There is significant pressure on local authority budgets.
The Department of Health and NHS England have issued a new
strategic plan called Future in Mind. This calls for a transformation
of services to meet the mental health needs of children and young
people.
The plan is to give additional funding to Clinical Commissioning
Groups (CCGs) who can demonstrate through a Transformational
Plan that they will take action to address these issues. In total, the
three CCGs in our region will receive £1.87 million. This will be used
alongside existing funds from local commissioners to implement
the plan.

Key elements of Future in
Mind include:

t Promoting resilience,
prevention and early
intervention

t Improving access to
effective support –
a system without tiers

t Care for the most
vulnerable

t Accountability and
transparency

t Developing the
workforce

3

116

How we plan to improve
mental health and wellbeing
services for children and
young people through
Better Care Together
We have decided to use the Better Care Together framework to
prepare, develop and implement our transformational plan for
children and young people’s mental health. This is because the
essence of our approach required organisations to work strongly
together to meet the needs of the child or young person. We
therefore need to make joint decisions about our priorities, the
outcomes we aim to achieve and how we will use our funding and
other resources.
There will be one transformational plan covering Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland. Key partners will be the three CCGs, the
three Health and Wellbeing Boards, the three local authorities, the
Office for the Police and Crime Commissioner, the voluntary sector,
schools colleges and GPs. Children and young people will be central
to our plans. The key strands of the plan will be as follows:

A campaign to promote good mental health and resilience for
children and families.

Health promotion

This will be led and commissioned by Public Health
Departments and involve close work with education providers,
GPs and other universal settings. It will utilise social media and
other innovative methods to engage with young people. It will
also provide accessible information about how to find extra
support.

4

117

Early help

To establish a multi-agency first response and early help service
that would respond to concerns about the emotional health and
development of children and young people. The service would
accept referrals from a range of sources including self-referrals
from parents, carers and young people. It would offer a first
assessment, guidance and advice, and choice of early help
offers.
To commission a range of low–intensity early help offers that
build resilience and prevent escalation to more serious or longer
term mental health problems.
This will be a collaborative commissioning arrangement between
CCGs and local authorities, utilising a range of providers
including third sector and community groups.

To establish a single gateway to additional help for those with
enduring difficulties or at risk of significant harm to self or others.

Access
to specialist
help

There would be a dedicated multi-agency access team which
would accept and assess referrals to specialist CAMHS and
other specialist services, maintaining communication with the
referring agency and the young person / carer.
The Specialist CAMHS service would offer clear evidence based
therapies, and report on the outcomes for children in their care.
It would support young people moving on to adult services.

Specialist
community
interventions
for children
with eating
disorders

Establish a specialist community eating disorder service with
the capacity to receive 100 new referrals a year and meet the
national access standards that all assessments are completed
within 4 weeks of referral. This will provide NICE concordant
interventions for children and young people with eating
disorders, a serious and potentially life-threatening condition.

5

118

Intensive /
crisis support

Commission an intensive multi-agency “out of hours” and home
treatment services for those experiencing acute behavioural or
mental health difficulties and at risk of serious harm to self or
others.
Ensure there is a designated “Place of Safety” for a person
under the age of 18.

Recruit and develop a specialist CAMHS workforce that is skilled
and experienced in delivering evidence based therapies (such
as CBT, Family Therapy and Interpersonal therapy) and in using
clinical outcomes.

Workforce
development

Develop all practitioners working with children, young people
and their carers to have an understanding and skills in
supporting children with mental health issues.
This will be achieved through face to face and on-line training,
case work support and opportunities for secondment and joint
working.
We will join the national training and transformational programme
on improving access to psychological therapies for children and
young people.

The plan will be developed and implemented with core values and standards.

t Listening to the voice of children young people and carers, and designing services to
meet their requirements.

t Ensuring equality of access to information, advice and services for all. Commissioning
and establishing services which are welcoming and accessible to all, particularly those
with “protected characteristics” or specific vulnerabilities.

t Using evidence based interventions, setting quality standards and using outcome
measures for all services.

t Collaborative commissioning and partnership working. This will include pooling of
budgets and secondment of staff across organisations.

t Sharing of information and learning between organisations.
t Open governance and transparency in decision making. This plan and regular reports
will be available for public scrutiny.

6

119

What will be benefits be for
children, young people and
their carers?
Our vision is that by 2020, every child and young person in Leicester,
Leicester and Rutland will be able to affirm the following:

Self- care and
prevention

My family and I are
able to look after
my emotional and
mental wellbeing and
development day to
day.
I learn about mental
health and how to
protect myself at
school or college.
We can access trusted
self-care advice when
and where we like
including websites,
education settings,
GPs and children’s
centres.
My parents / carers
have access to
support and guidance.
I am confident in
talking about issues
which affect my
mental health.

Early help and
primary care

I can get high quality
support to help me
overcome emotional
and mental health
challenges quickly
and locally, without
being stigmatised.
I will be able to make
informed choices
about the kind of help
I would like.
I and those who care
for me will be listened
to.
I will be supported to
become resilient and
independent.
I and my carers will be
helped to navigate the
system and services.
I am involved in peer
support groups and
community networks
in my area.

Specialist care

Urgent care and
crisis response

I will be helped by a
specialist team quickly
if my mental health
problems are serious.

I can access intensive
support from a range
of organisations
working together.

I will receive support
which is safe, reliable
and tested.

I will be seen
promptly if I attend
the Emergency
Department.

I will be involved
in setting my own
treatment goals and
deciding if I am getter
better.
With my consent,
services will work
together to support
me and my carers.
I will be involved in
decisions to transfer
or reduce my care.
My views and
experience will help
to improve care for
others.

I will not be judged
by staff for my mental
health problems.
I will be kept as safe
as possible during a
crisis.
I will be able to
access a bed within a
reasonable distance
from home.
I will be supported to
return home safely as
soon as possible.

7

120

Baseline data and key
performance indicators
There are 250,000 children and young people up to the age of 19 in
Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland.
It is estimated that 1 in 10 school children will have a diagnosable
mental health or neurodevelopmental condition. This equates to
approximately 19,000 school children in Leicester, Leicestershire and
Rutland.
The Specialist CAMH Service supports about 3,500 children and
young people per year.
The target waiting time for an assessment by the specialist CAMH
Service is 13 weeks from referral.

t Through this transformational plan we will monitor the
following performance indicators:

t A survey of what children and young people understand
about mental health and how they feel about their own health.

t The number of educational settings that are part of this plan,
and are working to improve understanding on mental health
and support their students.

t The number of children, young people, parents and carers
who access early support and interventions.

t How children, young people parents and carers rate this
support.

t The number of children and young people assessed by the
specialist CAMH service.

t How long it takes from a referral to CAMHs to seeing a
practitioner.

t How long it takes to see a specialist if you have an eating
disorder or psychosis.

t How many children and young people attend the Emergency
Department because of an acute mental health or behavioural
problem, self-harm and how many have to wait more than
four hours before they are assessed.

t How many children and young people are admitted to a
mental health hospital and how long they stay.

8

121

We would value your comments on this plan and ideas for
how to improve the mental health and wellbeing of children
and young people. Please post your comments in the box
below or contact:
Leon Charikar
Programme Lead for mental health and
wellbeing for children and young people
Leicester City Clinical Commissioning Group
30 East Street
Leicester
LE2 3HJ
leoncharikar@westleicestershireccg.nhs.uk
0116 295 1172

9

122

This page is intentionally left blank

123

Agenda Item 9

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 7 JANUARY 2016
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF ADULTS AND COMMUNITIES
TRANSFORMING CARE: BUILDING THE RIGHT SUPPORT
Purpose of report
1

The purpose of this report is to inform the Board about the requirements of
Transforming Care following the announcement in October 2015 through the
publication of the national plan “Building the Right Support” and associated service
model. The report also provides assurance to the Board on plans and progress
towards meeting the expectations outlined in Building the Right Support.

2

On the 9 December 2015, the Better Care Together Learning Disabilities (BCT LD)
work stream agreed to evolve as the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR)
Transforming Care Partnership (TCP). The BCT LD activity and outcomes are
aligned to the priorities identified through Transforming Care.

Link to Better Care Together
Work stream
Maternity, neonates,
children and young people

Relevance Work stream
Mental health

Long term conditions

Frail and older people

Urgent care

Planned care

Learning disabilities



Relevance

End of life

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
3

The Board has received regular reports on the progress of the Transforming Care
agenda in Leicestershire in response to national developments dating back to
December 2012. Reports have informed the Board of the requirements of the
Transforming Care Programme of action and the Winterbourne View Concordat and
an assessment of the performance of the Local Authority in relation to the
programme.

4

During 2014, the Board agreed the Leicestershire Joint Commissioning Plan for
Transforming Care, which was in place prior to the conclusion of the two year
Winterbourne Joint Improvement Programme, and was notified of the launch of the
NHS England Care and Treatment Reviews. The BCT LD Work stream Steering
Group was also established.

124
5

During 2015, the Board was updated on progress against key areas of delivery and
was notified of progress in implementing the Department of Health Grant to support
the development of long and short term accommodation to reduce
admissions/facilitate discharge of people with learning disabilities and/or autism from
mental health hospitals. An update on the development of Care and Treatment
Reviews was also presented to the Board.

Background
6

NHS England working in partnership with ADASS and the Local Government
Association published, in October 2015, a national plan and associated service
model called “Building the Right Support”. The plan lays out three key expectations
from Commissioners.

7

Local councils and NHS bodies will join together to deliver better and more coordinated services. 49 local TCPs will be formed which will be expected to work with
people with lived experience, families, carers and key stakeholders to agree robust
implementation plans by April 2016. Each TCP will be made up of Clinical
Commissioning Groups (CCGs), NHS England’s specialised commissioners and
local authorities, and will cover the whole of England. Leicestershire has been
aligned as a TCP with Leicester and Rutland.

8

Budgets will be shared between the NHS and local councils to ensure the right care
is provided in the right place. A new financial framework, including reformed funding
guidance will aim to speed up discharges, particularly for those who have been in
inpatient care the longest. For people who have been in hospital five years or more,
specific payments will be made by the NHS to local authorities to enable their needs
to be met in the community.

9

National guidelines will set out what support people and families can expect
wherever they live. A new service model describes what good services should look
like framed around nine principles:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

10

I have an interesting life that I enjoy
My Care and Support is well planned
I have choice and control about my care and support
I live in the community with the support I need
I have a choice about where I live and who I live with
I get good care from health services
I get help from experts in the community when I need it
I get help to stay out of trouble with the Police if I need it
If I have to go into a hospital because my health needs cannot be met in the
community, it is high quality and I don’t stay there longer than I need to

On 17 November 2015, NHS England wrote to all CCGs and local authorities
outlining the plans to implement Building the Right Support and service model.
Planning assumptions have been made including the expectation that no area should
need more inpatient capacity than is necessary to cater for:
•

10-15 inpatients in CCG commissioned beds (such as those in assessment and
treatment units) per million population;

125
•

20-25 inpatients in NHS England-commissioned beds (such as those in low,
medium or high-secure units) per million population.

11

In order to deliver against these planning assumptions local areas need to build
capacity in communities and redesign pathways in order to support people better at
home. An important element of effective preparations will be analysis to inform plans
for commissioning intensive community support services. Plans will need to evidence
clear early milestones where such services are not yet fully in place.

12

To support local areas with transitional costs, NHS England will make available up to
£30 million of transformation funding over three years, with national funding
conditional on match-funding from local commissioners. In addition to this, £15
million capital funding will be made available over three years.

13

Local areas need to have a solid foundation upon which to base transformation,
including strong leadership and sound governance, engagement and commitment to
joint working amongst a complex range of stakeholders. This has been achieved
locally through existing BCT arrangements and Sandy McMillan, Assistant Director
(Leicestershire County Council) has been identified as the Senior Responsible
Officer (SRO) to lead this area of transformation, along with Jim Bosworth, Assistant
Director (East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG) who has been identified as the
Deputy SRO.

14

A first draft of the transformation plan will be required by 8 February 2016 which,
after regional and national moderation will need to be finalised by 11 April 2016. With
a strong governance arrangement already established the LLR partnership is in a
strong position to deliver a robust plan within set timescales.

15

As soon as final plans are established local partnerships will move into
implementation of the agreed plans.

Progress and plans
16

The TCP has been agreed as a function of the BCT LD work stream (9 December
2015). The first formal meeting of the LLR TCP will be on the 13 January 2016 –
meeting the national target.

17

The population of LLR is approximately one million people which means that the
target for inpatient capacity is 10-15 CCG commissioned inpatient beds. The main
inpatient provision is the Agnes Unit which is a 16 bedded unit. Plans are in place to
reduce the bed usage to no more than eight beds by 2017. This will be achieved
through the expansion of existing Outreach provision and additional provision has
been commissioned in out of area settings. Through the Care and Treatment review
process alternative community based plans will be identified.

18

The TCP will collaborate with NHS England specialised commissioning to establish
local community support – including the provision of a step through project to
facilitate discharge.

19

The existing BCT LD work stream was developed to provide an LLR response to
Transforming Care. Plans are well developed and broadly reflect national

126
expectations. The BCT plan will be reviewed against Building the Right Support to
ensure it will meet national requirements.
Consultation/Patient and Public Involvement
20

There is a Patient and Public Representative on the BCT LD Work stream Steering
Group. A presentation on Building the Right Support was made to the Learning
Disability Partnership Board on the 7 January 2016. Additional engagement is
planned for the 22 February with people with learning disabilities and family carers.

Resource Implications
21

Resource implications are being addressed through the BCT LD work stream.

Conclusions/Recommendations
22

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to:
a) Approve the development of the BCT LD Work stream Steering Group as the
TCP;
b) Support the plans described to implement Building the Right Support.

Background papers
Building the Right Support: A national plan to develop community services and close
inpatient facilities
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/ld-nat-imp-plan-oct15.pdf
Service model for commissioners of health and social care services
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/service-model-291015.pdf
Service model for commissioners of health and social care services: Supplementary
information for commissioners
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/ld-serv-model-oct15.pdf
Letter to CCG’s and Local Authorities
http://www.local.gov.uk/documents/10180/7586660/Implementing+Building+the+right+sup
port+letter+20151117/31de33e8-6bfd-4563-8497-21834bf100e5
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure
23

The report affects all areas of Leicestershire and Leicestershire residents in out of
County placements commissioned by either the County Council and/or East
Leicestershire and Rutland CCG or West Leicestershire CCG.

Officer to Contact
Sandy McMillan
Assistant Director, Strategic Planning and Commissioning,
Adults and Communities Department
Telephone Number: 0116 3057320

127
Email: Sandy.McMillan@leics.gov.uk
Louisa Whait
Strategic Commissioning manager, learning disability & autism
Adults and Communities Department
Telephone Number: 0116 3050385
Email: Louisa.Whait@leics.gov.uk
Relevant Impact Assessments
Equality and Human Rights Implications
24

The TCP targets all people – children and adults, with a learning disability and/or
autism, including those who are not eligible for social care or continuing healthcare
support. Ongoing consideration needs to be given to the implications of the Mental
Capacity Act and the ability of individuals to consent to their inclusion on the
Transforming Care associated registers.

Crime and Disorder Implications
25

Ensuring there are robust links with the Criminal Justice System to appropriately
identify individuals who are at risk of crime or perpetrators of crime with a learning
disability and/or autism to ensure robust support plans are in place to reduce the risk
of admission to a mental health inpatient setting

Partnership Working and associated issues
26

The TCP footprint is aligned with the LLR BCT footprint. There are additional issues
to ensure that wider partners from across the local authority and health are actively
engaged in the development and commissioning of provision.

128

This page is intentionally left blank

129

Agenda Item 10

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 7 JANUARY 2015
REPORT OF WEST LEICESTESHIRE CCG
URGENT AND EMERGENCY CARE UPDATE: WINTER PERFORMANCE AND
VANGUARD
Purpose of report
1.

The purpose of this report is to update the Health and Wellbeing Board on the winter
performance of the Urgent and Emergency Care system and to brief the Board on progress
on the Urgent and Emergency Care Vanguard.

Link to Better Care Together
Workstream
Maternity, neonates, children
and young people

Relevance Workstream
Mental health

Long term conditions
Urgent care
Learning disabilities

Relevance

Frail and older people
Y

Planned care
End of life

Background
Winter Pressures and Current Performance
2.

The LLR System Resilience Group and Urgent Care Board are responsible for managing
the urgent care system, including allocation of winter pressures funding and ensuring
delivery of performance standards. The Urgent Care Board has agreed an Urgent Care
Improvement plan including a communications plan to cover the winter period. The Urgent
Care Improvement Plan is organised into three workstreams, Inflow, Flow (within A&E and
hospital) and Discharge, each with their own action plan.

3.

The latest dashboard showing urgent care system demand and performance is attached as
Appendix 1. Performance, particularly against the A&E 4 hour wait target and ambulance
handover standards, has been challenged for several months. The year to date
performance against the 95% 4 hour standard at UHL is 90.2%, with 70.4% of patients
being treated in under 4 hours in the week ending 20th December. In the light of the
challenges to the system, NHS England requested LLR to submit a Recovery Action Plan
(RAP) for performance. Following an escalation meeting with NHS England and the Trust
Development Agency (TDA), and LLR were asked to resubmit the action plan on 11th
December, with more details on the delivery of actions and the expected impact on A&E
performance and ambulance handovers. The latest version of the RAP is attached as
Appendix 2.

130
4.

The Care Quality Commission (CQC) made an unannounced inspection to UHL on the 30th
November, and as a result issued a section 31 rectification notice requiring UHL to take
action in relation to nursing staffing levels and 15 minute assessments of patients
presenting in the Emergency Department.

5.

In response to the level of performance pressures within LLR and the outcome of the CQC
visit, a Risk Summit relating to University Hospital Leicester was held with NHS England
and the TDA on the 18th December. The key areas of risk that triggered the risk summit
were:
•
•
•

•

Patient triage and risk assessment within the Emergency Department;
Competence of staff undertaking clinical assessment in the Emergency Department;
Management and escalation of the deteriorating patient within the department,
including patients who trigger for the Systemic Inflammatory Response Syndrome
(SIRS) criteria;
Delayed ambulance handovers at the Emergency Department.

6.

All key partner agencies were represented at the summit. In addition to the above risks,
the summit also focussed on the level of demand presenting at UHL’s Emergency
Department and the management of inflow of patients.

7.

It was agreed that a range of actions are already being undertaken both by UHL and
across the LLR health system, and progress has been made. Some further actions were
identified; some of these were for UHL individually, others in association with health
partners (such as the TDA, Care Quality Commission, East Midlands Ambulance Services
NHS Trust and the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland System Resilience Group), and
some for individual NHS organisations attending the risk summit. Actions covered the
following areas:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Demand
Ambulance handover
Quality governance
Workforce
Management of sepsis
Paediatric assessment

The LLR Urgent Care Board leads will report back to the TDA and NHS England prior to a
follow-up risk summit to be held at the end of January.
Urgent and Emergency Care (UEC) Vanguard
8.

In July 2015 LLR was successful in bidding to become one of 8 UEC Vanguards nationally.
The Vanguards will take develop new models of care as set of in the NHS Five Year
Forward View, and be supported to innovate and develop local approaches which can be
replicated nationally. The UEC Vanguards will also be expected to implement the
requirements of the Keogh Review of Urgent Care and go ‘further, faster’ than other areas
of the country in this respect.

9.

The vision for LLR is of an urgent and emergency care system which is organised to
deliver person-centred care that wraps around the individual; promoting self-care and
independence, enhanced recovery and enablement, and reducing harm through integrated
services that exploit innovation and promote care in the right setting at the right time. Our
vision is founded on the consistent provision of care across linked settings, each with
2

131
defined outcomes and the ability to respond to the physical and mental health needs of our
diverse population in a way that blurs organisational boundaries. We will develop an
integrated Urgent and Emergency Care service across the system, including mental health
parity of care and 7 day services as key planks for the delivery of the vision.
10. All partners in the Vanguard recognise the need to work together to ensure local
consistency, whilst interacting with neighbouring healthcare economies to realise benefits
at scale.

Strategic Aims of the Vanguard
Aim
Reduced
duplication and
fragmentation of
services,
simplification of
patient pathways
Aligning providers
to work towards
common system
goals

System
Management

Description
Objective
Development of services and
• Improved patient outcomes and
pathways that minimise patient
experience
handoffs, that are readily understood
• Patient receives the right care in the right
and accessed by patients and enable
place at the right time
efficiencies within the system
• Decreased costs to the health economy
through integration
• Improved system resilience
Service offers that blur organisational
• Improved patient outcomes and
boundaries and enable patient care
experience
to be wrapped around the patient
• Patient receives the right care in the right
not constrained by organisations
place at the right time
• Decreased costs to the health economy
• Improved system resilience
• Integrated clinical governance
• Integrated workforce plans
Understanding patient flow,
• Improved patient outcomes and
resources and capacity in a real time
experience
way will enable the system to flex
• Patient receives the right care in the right
and respond, providing resources and
place at the right time
moving capacity to ensure that the
• Decreased costs to the health economy
right care is available in the right
• Improved system resilience
place

11. Over the last two months, we have established governance and programme management
arrangements for the Vanguard. The LLR Vanguard is overseen by the System Resilience
Group, with the Urgent Care Board (UCB) having programme management responsibility.
Toby Sanders is the Senior Responsible Officer for the Vanguard, with Tamsin Hooton,
Director or Urgent and Emergency Care leading the Vanguard team. The Vanguard work
will form the majority of the Better Care Together Urgent Care workstream, with interfaces
with a number of other BCT workstreams such as End of Life and bed reconfiguration.
12. The LLR Vanguard is broad and ambitious in its scope and will be taken forward via six
workstreams, described below.
Integrated Community Urgent Care
13. This project will see the integration of pathways across EMAS, NHS111, Out of Hours and
the Single Point of Access (SPA) services for health and social care, via a Navigation Hub
providing clinical triage, advice and signposting. We will specify and procure a range of
services as an integrated offering, linking providers into a same day response network
comprising general practice, home based acute visiting and crisis response services,
community nursing services, Older People’s Unit and Urgent Care Centres, to provide an
3

132
extended delivery service, which provides streamlined urgent care 7 days a week, 24/7.
This will be underpinned by care planning and record sharing.
Leicester Royal Infirmary (LRI) Front Door
14. We will redesign the access to urgent and emergency care at the LRI site to provide an
enhanced senior clinical assessment team with direct referral access to ambulatory clinics,
assessment beds and the ability to refer patients to the Urgent Care Centre, Emergency
Department or back into primary/ community services. The project scope covers the
streaming service and Urgent Care Centre as a ‘single front door’. In early 2016 the new
Emergency Department floor layout opens at LRI. The work carried out by this project is
essential in ensuring that the use of the reconfigured estate, clinical resources and
pathways has the best possible outcomes for patients, the A&E service and the wider
system.
Mental Health
15. We will develop our mental health services to better meet the demands of patients and
enable parity of care. This will be delivered through investment in Psychiatric Liaison
within the acute trust, mental health workers embedded within the police and paramedic
services and improved access and referral processes to crisis support.
7 day services (acute hospital)
16. We will deliver standards 2,5,6,7 and 8 of the Clinical standards for Urgent and Emergency
Care and Supporting Diagnostics. In addition we will seek to deliver standard 9, enabling
support services, both in the hospital and primary, community and mental health settings
so the next steps of a patients care pathway can be taken. This work will link to the
development of the community urgent care model so we have consistent and
complimentary delivery of care on each day of the week.
Contracting for Transformation
17. Using our experience of Alliance contracting we will develop a new urgent and emergency
care alliance based model that incentivises providers to work as a network. This will be
underpinned with new measures of clinical quality and patient experience increasingly
focusing the whole system on a clinical outcome focus and the implementation of the new
payment model.
Predictive modelling
18. We will work to develop a demand and activity model with a view to informing operational
resource/capacity levels. We will use real time data to inform our navigation services (1
above) and to provide direct information to the public about service pressure and waiting
times to enable informed choices.
Proposals/Options
19. We are developing a ‘Value Proposition’, which is in essence a business case for the
Vanguard work, which will be submitted to NHS England. The value proposition will set out
what we plan to do across each of the workstreams, the impact this work will have on
patient outcomes and long term financial sustainability of the urgent care system. NHS
England require a first draft of the Value proposition for the 8th January with a final draft on
the 8th February.
Consultation/Patient and Public Involvement
20. Healthwatch are involved via the Urgent Care Board. We are developing a
communications and engagement strategy for the Vanguard, including how we will engage
4

133
with people of developing the model of integrated urgent care. Communication with LLR
residents, particularly about how to access services and to support people to care for
themselves where appropriate, is a critical part of our plans for the Vanguard.
Resource Implications
21. Winter pressures funding of £1.88m has been committed in 2015/2016 by the Urgent Care
Board against a range of schemes to manage demand for urgent care both in community
settings and within UHL. The funding will be used to support the Urgent Care Board
improvement plan described in 3.1 above and includes things such as 7 day social work
support, additional patient transport to improve discharge and additional input to
community services to manage surges in demand.
22. We have received £300K so far for Vanguard Programme management in 2015/2016. We
submitted an overall funding request of £2.6m from a national pot of £12m, and will receive
notification of non-recurrent resources in 2015/2016 on 24/12.
23. Funding for the Vanguard in 2016/2017 and beyond will be from a combination of nonrecurrent pump priming from the central Vanguard allocation and mainstream investment in
Urgent and Emergency care from the health and social care partners in LLR. Match
funding from local health and social care organisations will be a condition of any central
funding, and there will be further conditions in terms of expectations around implementing
the Keogh review.
24. The Vanguard Value Proposition submission made on the 8th January will set out the costs
of taking forward the Vanguard work in LLR and our bid for additional funding, supported
by evidence of the impact of any non-recurrent funding and the value for the system that
will be achieved. There is £40m national for the UEC Vanguards, so on average the
Vanguards should receive £5m each.
Timetable for Decisions
25. The LLR System Resilience Group will be asked to agree the high level content of the
Vanguard Value Proposition on 4th January.
Conclusions/Recommendations
26. Urgent Care services are under intense pressure across LLR as well as nationally at the
moment, driven by an increase in demand, particularly at A&E. The urgent care system is
experiencing challenges relating to capacity in some parts of the system, particularly
workforce. Despite these challenges, we have a well-developed plan for managing the
system from an operational system resilience perspective. The Vanguard programme
represents our approach to strategic change and service improvement, with accelerated
delivery of the future model of integrated care.
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure
None.
Officer to Contact
Tamsin Hooton, LLR Director of Urgent and Emergency Care
Email: Tamsin.hooton@lcrodds.nhs.uk
5

134
List of Appendices
APPENDIX 1: LLR URGENT CARE RECOVERY ACTION PLAN
APPENDIX 2: LLR URGENT AND EMERGENCY CARE DASHBOARD
Relevant Impact Assessments
Equality and Human Rights Implications
27. The Urgent Care Improvement plan and Vanguard work pay due regard to equalities
including the impact on protected characteristics and vulnerable groups within the
population. We have not conducted an equalities impact assessment on the whole
vanguard programme to date but will keep this under review and undertake an assessment
as and when the workstream proposals are sufficiently well developed.
Risk Assessment
28. The Urgent Care Board has a risk register covering its work and this is reviewed at each
meeting.

6

dŽƚĂůĂůůƐ
ƚŽD^

'WZĞĨĞƌƌĂůƐƚŽĞĚƵƌĞĂƵ
ƚŚĂƚĂƌĞŝǀĞƌƚĞĚƚŽ

'WKK,ĐƚŝǀŝƚǇ

h,>ŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇ
ĚŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐ

ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ

/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ
ĞůĂǇĞĚĚŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞƐĚĂƚĂĂƌĞďĂƐĞĚŽŶĂƐŶĂƉƐŚŽƚŽĨŵŝĚŶŝŐŚƚĐĞŶƐƵƐŽĨĞǀĞƌǇdŚƵƌƐĚĂǇ͘

йŽĨh,>ŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇĚŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐ
ƚŚĂƚǁĞƌĞǀŽŝĚĂďůĞ

͗h
͗>Z/ƚƚĞŶĚĂŶĐĞƐ
ƚƚĞŶĚĂŶĐĞƐ

D^ŵďƵůĂŶĐĞ
,ĂŶĚŽǀĞƌ͗,ŽƵƌƐ>ŽƐƚ

йŽĨϭϭϭĂůůƐƐĞŶƚ
ƚŽϵϵϵͬ

D^ŝƐƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ
ͲEŽŶŽŶǀĞǇĞĚ

ϭϭϭdŽƚĂůĂůůƐ

/ŶĨůŽǁ

hƌŐĞŶƚĂƌĞŽĂƌĚͲĂƐŚďŽĂƌĚ

hƉĚĂƚĞĚƚŽ^ƵŶĚĂǇϮϬͬϭϮͬϮϬϭϱ

йŽĨh,>ǁŝƚŚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶĂďŽƵƚ
KŶǁĂƌĚĂƌĞǁŝƚŚŝŶϭϮϬŵŝŶƐ

ŐĞĚϳϱнǁŝƚŚ>ĞŶŐƚŚŽĨ^ƚĂǇ йŽĨŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞƐďĞĨŽƌĞ
хϭϬĂǇƐĂƚh,>
ϭϮƉŵĂƚh,>

h,>ŵƉƚǇĞĚƐĂƚ
йŽĨh,>ǁĂƌĚƐĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐdĂƌŐĞƚĞĚ
^ƚĂƌƚŽĨĂǇŽŶ
tĞĞŬůǇŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞƐ
DhtĂƌĚ

йŽĨh,>tĂƌĚZĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ
йŽĨh,>'WZĞĨĞƌƌĂůƐ
ƚŽͬĞĚZĞƋƵĞƐƚƐǁŝƚŚŝŶϯϬ
ŝƌĞĐƚƚŽDh
ŵŝŶƐ

йŽĨh,>Θh
ƚƚĞŶĚĂŶĐĞƐƐĞĞŶ
ǁŝƚŚŝŶϰ,ŽƵƌƐ

&ůŽǁ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ
ͮ

йŽĨ>WdŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞĚƚŽ
ĚŵŝƚƚŝŶŐĚĚƌĞƐƐ

ůůDĞƚƌŝĐƐĂƌĞƐŚŽǁŶtĞĞŬůǇǁŝƚŚƚŚĞzĞĂƌZƵŶŶŝŶŐĨƌŽŵϭƐƚƉƌŝů

>ĂƚĞƐƚtĞĞŬŝƐхϱйĨƌŽŵƚŚĞdĂƌŐĞƚ

>ĂƚĞƐƚtĞĞŬŝƐǁŝƚŚŝŶϱйŽĨƚŚĞdĂƌŐĞƚ

>ĂƚĞƐƚtĞĞŬŵĞĞƚƐƚŚĞdĂƌŐĞƚ

ϯϬĂǇ
ZĞĂĚŵŝƐƐŝŽŶ
ZĂƚĞ

h,>ĞůĂǇĞĚdƌĂŶƐĨĞƌŽĨĂƌĞ
ͲĞĚĂǇƐ>ŽƐƚ

>WdĞůĂǇĞĚdƌĂŶƐĨĞƌŽĨĂƌĞͲ
ĞĚĂǇƐ>ŽƐƚ

ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇĞĚƐ
KƉĞŶ

йŽĨh,>ŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞĚƚŽ
ĚŵŝƚƚŝŶŐĚĚƌĞƐƐ

>Wd
ŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞƐ

йŽĨ>WdĞůĂǇĞĚ
dƌĂŶƐĨĞƌŽĨĂƌĞ

h,>ŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞƐ

йŽĨh,>ĞůĂǇĞĚdƌĂŶƐĨĞƌŽĨ
ĂƌĞ

h,>ŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞƐ
ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚĚŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐ

ŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞ

135

hƌŐĞŶƚĂƌĞŽĂƌĚͲĂƐŚďŽĂƌĚ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

ϯ͕ϲϱϭ

ϰ͕ϬϬϬ

ϯ͕Ϯϴϲ

ϭ͕ϬϬϬ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

Ϯ͕ϳϰϳ

ϮϲϬϬ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

ϭ͕ϲϰϴ
ϭϱϬ

ϮϬϬ

ϮϱϬ

ϭ͕ϰϬϬ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϯϬϬ

ϭ͕ϱϬϬ

ϯϱϬ

ϭ͕ϳϭϱ

ϰϱϬ

ϭ͕ϲϬϬ

ϭ͕ϮϬϬ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

'WZĞĨĞƌƌĂůƐƚŽĞĚƵƌĞĂƵƚŚĂƚĂƌĞŝǀĞƌƚĞĚƚŽ

Ϯ͕ϯϬϬ

Ϯ͕ϴϬϬ

ϰϬϬ

ϭ͕ϴϲϵ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

Ϯϴϰ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϮϭϮ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ϯ͕Ϭϰϵ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

Ϯ͕ϵϵϬ

ϯ͕ϯϬϬ

ϭ͕ϱϰϵ

ϰϴ͘ϯй

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϰϳ͘ϰй

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

EŽŶ
ŽŶǀĞǇĞĚ

ϵ͘ϲй

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϴ͘ϲй

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ϯ͕ϴϬϬ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ϭ͕ϯϬϬ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

͗>Z/ƚƚĞŶĚĂŶĐĞƐ

ϰϬ

ϰϱ

ϱϬ

ϱϱ

ϲϬ

ϭ͕ϳϬϬ

ϭ͕ϴϬϬ

h,>ŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇĚŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐ

ϭϬϬϬ

ϭϱϬϬ

ϮϬϬϬ

ϮϱϬϬ

ϯϬϬϬ

ϯϱϬϬ

'WdŽƚĂůKK,ĐƚŝǀŝƚǇ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

D^ŝƐƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ

ϱ

ϳ

ϵ

ϭϭ

ϭϯ

йŽĨϭϭϭĂůůƐƐĞŶƚƚŽŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇĞƉĂƌƚŵĞŶƚ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

Ϯ͕ϰϳϱ

ϮϬϬϬ

ϭϴϬϬ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϮϮϬϬ

ϮϰϬϬ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ϮϴϬϬ

ϯϬϬϬ

dŽƚĂůĂůůƐƚŽD^

Ϭ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

Ϯ͕ϬϬϬ

ϯ͕ϬϬϬ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ϱ͕ϬϬϬ

ϲ͕ϬϬϬ

ϭϭϭdŽƚĂůĂůůƐ

,1)/2:

hƉĚĂƚĞĚƚŽ^ƵŶĚĂǇϮϬͬϭϮͬϮϬϭϱ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

Ϭ

ϱ

ϭϬ

ϭϱ

ϮϬ

Ϯϱ

ϭ

Ϯ

ϯ

ϰ

ϱ

ϭϯ͘Ϭй

Actual

Last Year

Target

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϭϬ͘ϰй

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

Ϯ͕Ϭϱϰ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

Ϯ͕ϭϱϲ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ϯϯϮ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϰϰϯ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ϭϭ͘ϵй

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϭϰ͘ϴй

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ůůDĞƚƌŝĐƐĂƌĞƐŚŽǁŶtĞĞŬůǇǁŝƚŚƚŚĞzĞĂƌZƵŶŶŝŶŐĨƌŽŵϭƐƚƉƌŝů

ϯ

ϴ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

йŽĨh,>ŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇĚŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐƚŚĂƚǁĞƌĞǀŽŝĚĂďůĞ

ϭϱϬϬ

ϭϳϬϬ

ϭϵϬϬ

ϮϭϬϬ

ϮϯϬϬ

ϮϱϬϬ

͗hƚƚĞŶĚĂŶĐĞƐ

Ϭ

ϮϰϬ

ϰϴϬ

ϳϮϬ

D^ŵďƵůĂŶĐĞ,ĂŶĚŽǀĞƌ͗,ŽƵƌƐ>ŽƐƚ

ϱ

ϳ

ϵ

ϭϭ

ϭϯ

ϭϱ

ϭϳ

йŽĨϭϭϭĂůůƐƐĞŶƚƚŽϵϵϵ

ƌĞĂƚĞĚďǇ'D>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ^ƉŽŬĞͲŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶŝŶŐ/ŶƚĞůůŝŐĞŶĐĞͲWĂŐĞϮ

136

hƌŐĞŶƚĂƌĞŽĂƌĚͲĂƐŚďŽĂƌĚ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

ϰ

ϱϰ

ϭϬϰ

ϭϱϰ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

WĂƚŝĞŶƚƐĂŐĞĚϳϱнǁŝƚŚ>ĞŶŐƚŚŽĨ^ƚĂǇхϭϬĚĂǇƐĂƚh,>

Ϭ

ϮϬ

ϰϬ

ϲϬ

ϴϬ

йŽĨh,>'WZĞĨĞƌƌĂůƐŝƌĞĐƚƚŽDh

ϱϬ

ϲϬ

ϳϴ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϭϬϲ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ϰϵ͘ϱй

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϱϲ͘ϴй

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ϵϬ͘Ϯй

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'
ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

Ϭ

ϱ

ϭϬ

ϭϱ

ϮϬ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

h,>ŵƉƚǇĞĚƐĂƚ^ƚĂƌƚŽĨĂǇŽŶDhtĂƌĚ

Ϭ

ϮϬ

ϰϬ

ϲϬ

ϳϰ͘ϰй

ϴϬ

ϳϬ

ϴϬ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ϭϬϬ

ϰ͘Ϭ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϯ͘Ϭ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

Ϯϵ͘ϭй

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

Ϯϱ͘ϯй

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

йŽĨh,>ǁŝƚŚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶĂďŽƵƚKŶǁĂƌĚĂƌĞǁŝƚŚŝŶϭϮϬŵŝŶƐ

ϵϬ

ϭϬϬ

йŽĨh,>ĂŶĚhƚƚĞŶĚĂŶĐĞƐƐĞĞŶǁŝƚŚŝŶϰ,ŽƵƌƐ

)/2:

hƉĚĂƚĞĚƚŽ^ƵŶĚĂǇϮϬͬϭϮͬϮϬϭϱ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

Ϭ

ϭϬ

ϮϬ

ϯϬ

ϰϬ

ϭ

Ϯ

ϯ

ϰ

ϱ

ϭϬ͘ϱй

Actual

Last Year

Target

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϵ͘ϯй

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ϲϮ͘ϳй

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϱϬ͘Ϯй

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ůůDĞƚƌŝĐƐĂƌĞƐŚŽǁŶtĞĞŬůǇǁŝƚŚƚŚĞzĞĂƌZƵŶŶŝŶŐĨƌŽŵϭƐƚƉƌŝů

ϯ

ϴ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

йŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞƐďĞĨŽƌĞϭϮƉŵĂƚh,>

ϰϬ

ϲϬ

ϴϬ

ϭϬϬ

йŽĨh,>tĂƌĚZĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƚŽͬĞĚZĞƋƵĞƐƚƐǁŝƚŚŝŶϯϬŵŝŶƐ

ƌĞĂƚĞĚďǇ'D>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ^ƉŽŬĞͲŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶŝŶŐ/ŶƚĞůůŝŐĞŶĐĞͲWĂŐĞϯ

137

hƌŐĞŶƚĂƌĞŽĂƌĚͲĂƐŚďŽĂƌĚ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

Ϭ

ϭϬϬ

ϮϬϬ

ϯϬϬ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

>WdĞůĂǇĞĚdƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƐŽĨĂƌĞͲĞĚĂǇƐ>ŽƐƚ

ϰϬ

ϱϬ

ϲϬ

ϳϬ

ϴϬ

йŽĨ>WdWĂƚŝĞŶƚƐŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞĚƚŽĚŵŝƚƚŝŶŐĚĚƌĞƐƐ

Ϭ͘Ϭ

Ϯ͘Ϭ

ϰ͘Ϭ

ϲ͘Ϭ

ϴ͘Ϭ

йh,>ĞůĂǇĞĚdƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƐŽĨĂƌĞ

ϭ͕ϰϬϬ

ϭ͕ϱϬϬ

ϭ͕ϲϬϬ

ϭ͕ϳϬϬ

ϭ͕ϴϬϬ

WĂƚŝĞŶƚƐĚŵŝƚƚĞĚƚŽΘŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞĚĨƌŽŵh,>

',6&+$5*(6

hƉĚĂƚĞĚƚŽ^ƵŶĚĂǇϮϬͬϭϮͬϮϬϭϱ

/^

ϭ͕ϳϭϲ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

ϭϲϯ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϵϰ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ϲϱ͘ϰй

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϲϳ͘ϭй

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

ϮϬ

ϳϬ

ϭϮϬ

ϭϳϬ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

ϯϬĂǇZĞĂĚŵŝƐƐŝŽŶZĂƚĞ

Ϭ

ϭϬ

ϮϬ

ϯϬ

ϰϬ

ϭϱϬ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϭϰϱ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ϭϰ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϭϮ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ǀĞƌĂŐĞWĂƚŝĞŶƚƐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇĞĚƐǀĂŝůĂďůĞĂƚ^ƚĂƌƚŽĨĂǇ

ϳ͘ϱй
ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ ϱϯ

ϱ͘ϴй

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ϭ͕ϲϰϵ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'
Ϭ͘Ϭ

ϱ͘Ϭ

ϭϬ͘Ϭ

ϭϱ͘Ϭ

й>WdĞůĂǇĞĚdƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƐŽĨĂƌĞ

ϭϮϱϬ

ϭϰϱϬ

ϭ͕ϳϭϲ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ϭ͘ϱй

ϭ͕ϲϰϵ

ϭϲϱϬ

ϭϴϱϬ

WĂƚŝĞŶƚƐŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞĚĨƌŽŵh,>

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϭ͘ϲй

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ϭ͕ϲϰϴ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϭ͕ϳϭϱ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

D

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

ϲϬ

ϳϬ

ϴϬ

ϵϬ

ϭϬϬ

ϭ

Ϯ

ϯ

ϰ

ϱ

ϵϮ͘ϯй

Actual

Last Year

Target

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϵϭ͘ϵй

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ϱϮ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϳϯ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ϴϳ͘ϱй

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϴϴ͘ϳй

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

Ϯϵϲ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϮϮϳ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ůůDĞƚƌŝĐƐĂƌĞƐŚŽǁŶtĞĞŬůǇǁŝƚŚƚŚĞzĞĂƌZƵŶŶŝŶŐĨƌŽŵϭƐƚƉƌŝů

ϯ

ϴ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

йŽĨ>Wd/^ĞĚƐhƐĞĚďǇWĂƚŝĞŶƚƐ

Ϭ

ϭϬϬ

ϮϬϬ

ϯϬϬ

ϰϬϬ

h,>ĞůĂǇĞĚdƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƐŽĨĂƌĞͲĞĚĂǇƐ>ŽƐƚ

ϳϬ

ϳϱ

ϴϬ

ϴϱ

ϵϬ

ϵϱ

йŽĨh,>WĂƚŝĞŶƚƐŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞĚdŽĚŵŝƚƚŝŶŐĚĚƌĞƐƐ

Ϭ

ϭϬϬ

ϮϬϬ

ϯϬϬ

ϰϬϬ

WĂƚŝĞŶƚƐŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞĚĨƌŽŵ>Wd

ƌĞĂƚĞĚďǇ'D>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ^ƉŽŬĞͲŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶŝŶŐ/ŶƚĞůůŝŐĞŶĐĞͲWĂŐĞϰ

138

ϭ

Ϯ

ϯ

ϰ

ϱ

ϲ

ϳ

ϴ

ϵ

Ϭ

ϱϬ

ϭϬϬ

ϭϱϬ

ϮϬϬ

ϬϬ

ϬϮ

Ϭϰ

Ϭϲ

Ϭϴ

ϭϬ

ϭϮ

ϭϰ

dŝŵĞWƌŽĨŝůĞŽĨKƵƚŽĨ,ŽƵƌƐWĂƚŝĞŶƚƐ

ϭϲ

ϭϴ

ϮϬ

ϮϮ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtĞĞŬ

>ĂƐƚtĞĞŬ

Ϭ͘Ϭй

ϮϬ͘Ϭй

ϰϬ͘Ϭй

ϲϬ͘Ϭй

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

йŽĨŝƐƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶŽĨD^ĂůůƐ

ŽŶǀĞǇĞĚƚŽh

,ĞĂƌĂŶĚdƌĞĂƚ

^ĞĞĂŶĚdƌĞĂƚ

ŽŶǀĞǇĞĚƚŽ

EŽƚZĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚƚŽĂŶǇ
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ
^ĞŶƚƚŽ
WƌŝŵĂƌǇͬŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇĂƌĞ

ϮϬй
Ϭй

ϭϬй

ϮϬй

ŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇŵďƵůĂŶĐĞ

ϰϬй

Ϭй

ϯϬй

^ĞŶƚƚŽ

ϲϬй

ϰϬй

ϱϬй

ϭ

Ϯ

ϯ

ϰ

ϱ

Actual

Last Year

Target

ůůDĞƚƌŝĐƐĂƌĞƐŚŽǁŶtĞĞŬůǇǁŝƚŚƚŚĞzĞĂƌZƵŶŶŝŶŐĨƌŽŵϭƐƚƉƌŝů

ϯ

ϴ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

,ŽŵĞsŝƐŝƚ

ĚǀŝĐĞ

ĂƐĞsŝƐŝƚ

ƌĞĂƚĞĚďǇ'D>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ^ƉŽŬĞͲŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶŝŶŐ/ŶƚĞůůŝŐĞŶĐĞͲWĂŐĞϱ

йŽĨŝƐƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶĨƌŽŵKƵƚŽĨ,ŽƵƌƐ
^ĞŶƚƚŽKƚŚĞƌ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ

KƚŚĞƌ

ϴϬй

ϭϬϬй

йŽĨŝƐƉŽƐŝƚŽŶŽĨϭϭϭĂůůƐ

111 or 999

ϭϬ ϭϭ ϭϮ ϭϯ ϭϰ ϭϱ ϭϲ ϭϳ ϭϴ ϭϵ ϮϬ Ϯϭ ϮϮ Ϯϯ Ϯϰ Ϯϱ Ϯϲ Ϯϳ Ϯϴ Ϯϵ ϯϬ ϯϭ ϯϮ ϯϯ ϯϰ ϯϱ ϯϲ ϯϳ ϯϴ ϯϵ ϰϬ ϰϭ ϰϮ ϰϯ ϰϰ ϰϱ ϰϲ ϰϳ ϰϴ ϰϵ ϱϬ ϱϭ ϱϮ

hƌŐĞŶƚĂƌĞŽĂƌĚͲĂƐŚďŽĂƌĚ

hƉĚĂƚĞĚƚŽ^ƵŶĚĂǇϮϬͬϭϮͬϮϬϭϱ

139

hƌŐĞŶƚĂƌĞŽĂƌĚͲĂƐŚďŽĂƌĚ

ϰϭ͘ϳй

ϰϱ͘Ϭй

ϯϬ͘Ϭй

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

ϰϬ͘ϵй

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϯϳ͘ϱй

Ϭ

ϮϬ

ϰϬ

ϲϬ

ϴϬ

ϬϬ

ϬϮ

Ϭϰ

Ϭϲ

Ϭϴ

ϭϬ

ϭϮ

ϭϰ

ϭϲ

ϭϴ

ϮϬ

ϮϮ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

dŝŵĞWƌŽĨŝůĞŽĨ>ŽƵŐŚďŽƌŽƵŐŚhƚƚĞŶĚĂŶĐĞƐ

Ϭ

Ϯ

ϰ

ϲ

ϴ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtĞĞŬ

Ϭϲ

Ϭϴ

ϭϬ

ϭϮ

ϭϰ

ϬϮ

Ϭϰ

Ϭϲ

Ϭϴ

ϭϬ

ϭϮ

ϭϰ

ϭϲ

ϭϴ

ϭϴ

ϮϬ

ϮϬ

ϮϮ

ϮϮ

/ŶĐŽƌƌĞĐƚhĂƚĂ͘

ϭ͕ϬϮϬ

ϮϬ

ϮϮϬ

ϰϮϬ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

>ŽƵŐŚďŽƌŽƵŐŚhƚƚĞŶĚĂŶĐĞƐ

Ϭ

ϳϵϴ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϲϳϭ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtĞĞŬ

ϬϬ

ϭϲ

ϭϬϬ

ϲϮϬ

>ĂƐƚtĞĞŬ

Ϭϰ

>ĂƐƚtĞĞŬ

ϭ͘ϯй

ϰ͘Ϯй

ϬϮ

>ĂƐƚǁĞĞŬĂĨĨĞĐƚĞĚďǇ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtĞĞŬ

>ĂƐƚtĞĞŬ

ϮϬϬ

ϯϬϬ

ϴϮϬ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϬϬ

dŝŵĞWƌŽĨŝůĞŽĨh,>ƚƚĞŶĚĂŶĐĞƐ

Ϭ

ϱϬ

ϭϬϬ

ϭϱϬ

dŝŵĞWƌŽĨŝůĞŽĨ>Z/hƚƚĞŶĚĂŶĐĞƐ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

йŽĨsϭϭ͗EŽŝŶǀĞƐƚŝŐĂƚŝŽŶǁŝƚŚŶŽƐŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚƚƌĞĂƚŵĞŶƚ

ϮϬ

ϯϬ

ϰϬ

ϱϬ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ϰϱ͘ϴй

йŽĨWĂƚŝĞŶƚdƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƐĨƌŽŵ>Z/hƚŽ>Z/

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϯϱ͘Ϭй

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ϱϬ͘Ϭй

ϰϬ͘Ϭй

ZĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ

ϱϱ͘Ϭй

йŽĨKƵƚĐŽŵĞĂƚ>Z/h

AE Interface

hƉĚĂƚĞĚƚŽ^ƵŶĚĂǇϮϬͬϭϮͬϮϬϭϱ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

ϵϳ͘ϲй

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϵϳ͘ϯй

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

Ϭ͘Ϭй

ϭϬ͘Ϭй

ϮϬ͘Ϭй

ϯϬ͘Ϭй

ϭ

Ϯ

ϯ

ϰ

ϱ

ϮϮ͘ϭй

Actual

Last Year

Target

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

Ϯϯ͘ϴй

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ZĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ

ϭϭϭ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϭϬϰ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ůůDĞƚƌŝĐƐĂƌĞƐŚŽǁŶtĞĞŬůǇǁŝƚŚƚŚĞzĞĂƌZƵŶŶŝŶŐĨƌŽŵϭƐƚƉƌŝů

ϯ

ϴ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

й>ŽƵŐŚďŽƌŽƵŐŚhKƵƚĐŽŵĞ

ϮϬ

ϳϬ

ϭϮϬ

ϭϳϬ

h,>ĚŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐǁŝƚŚŵďƵůĂƚŽƌǇĂƌĞ^ĞŶƐŝƚŝǀĞŽŶĚŝƚŝŽŶƐ

ϵϮ

ϵϰ

ϵϲ

ϵϴ

ϭϬϬ

йŽĨ>Z/hdƌŝĂŐĞĚǁŝƚŚŝŶϮϬŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ

ƌĞĂƚĞĚďǇ'D>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ^ƉŽŬĞͲŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶŝŶŐ/ŶƚĞůůŝŐĞŶĐĞͲWĂŐĞϲ

140

ϬϬ

ϬϮ

Ϭϰ

Ϭϲ

Ϭϴ

ϭϬ

ϭϮ

ϭϲ

ϭϴ

ϮϬ

ϮϮ

Ϭ

Ϯ

ϰ

ϲ

ϴ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtĞĞŬ

>ĂƐƚtĞĞŬ

ϯ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϰ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

h,>ŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞƚŽƐƐĞƐƐEƵŵďĞƌŽĨWĂƚŝĞŶƚƐͲWĂƚŚǁĂǇϭΘϮ

Ϭ

ϱϬ

ϭϬϬ

ϭϱϬ

ϮϬϬ

ϮϱϬ

dŝŵĞWƌŽĨŝůĞŽĨh,>DŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞƐ

Additional Discharge

ϭϰ

hƌŐĞŶƚĂƌĞŽĂƌĚͲĂƐŚďŽĂƌĚ

hƉĚĂƚĞĚƚŽ^ƵŶĚĂǇϮϬͬϭϮͬϮϬϭϱ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

Ϭ

ϱ

ϭϬ

ϭϱ

ϮϬ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

ϵ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϭϬ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

Ϯϱϰ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

Ϯϯϵ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

h,>ŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞƚŽƐƐĞƐƐEƵŵďĞƌŽĨWĂƚŝĞŶƚƐͲWĂƚŚǁĂǇϯ

Ϭ

ϭϬϬ

ϮϬϬ

ϯϬϬ

ϰϬϬ

ϵϬĂǇZĞĂĚŵŝƐƐŝŽŶZĂƚĞ

Ϭ

ϱ

ϭϬ

ϭϱ

ϮϬ

ϭ

Ϯ

ϯ

ϰ

ϱ

ϳ

Actual

Last Year

Target

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

Ϯ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ůůDĞƚƌŝĐƐĂƌĞƐŚŽǁŶtĞĞŬůǇǁŝƚŚƚŚĞzĞĂƌZƵŶŶŝŶŐĨƌŽŵϭƐƚƉƌŝů

ϯ

ϴ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

EƵŵďĞƌŽĨZĞͲĞĚƐ;ƌƌŝǀĂďŽƌƚƐͿ

ƌĞĂƚĞĚďǇ'D>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ^ƉŽŬĞͲŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶŝŶŐ/ŶƚĞůůŝŐĞŶĐĞͲWĂŐĞϳ

141

hƌŐĞŶƚĂƌĞŽĂƌĚͲĂƐŚďŽĂƌĚ

Ϭ

ϱϬ

ϭϬϬ

ϭϱϬ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

ϭ ϯ ϱ ϳ ϵ ϭϭ ϭϯ ϭϱ ϭϳ ϭϵ Ϯϭ Ϯϯ Ϯϱ Ϯϳ Ϯϵ ϯϭ ϯϯ ϯϱ ϯϳ ϯϵ ϰϭ ϰϯ ϰϱ ϰϳ ϰϵ ϱϭ

ϭ͘ϱй

Ϭ͘Ϭй

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

Ϯ͘Ϯй

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

ZĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ

ϭϬϭ

ϱ͘Ϭй

ϭϬ͘Ϭй

ϭϱ͘Ϭй

йŽĨKƵƚĐŽŵĞĂƚ>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌŝƚǇ'ƌŝƐŝƐZĞƐŽůƵƚŝŽŶdĞĂŵ

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲs'

ϭϯϱ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtŬ

WĂƚŝĞŶƚƐZĞĨĞƌƌĞĚƚŽ>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌŝƚǇ'ƌŝƐŝƐZĞƐŽůƵƚŝŽŶdĞĂŵhƚŝůŝƐĂƚŝŽŶ

Crisis Resolution

hƉĚĂƚĞĚƚŽ^ƵŶĚĂǇϮϬͬϭϮͬϮϬϭϱ

Ϭ

ϭϬ

ϮϬ

ϯϬ

ϰϬ

ϬϬ

Ϭϰ

Ϭϲ

Ϭϴ

ϭϬ

ϯ

ϴ

ϭϮ

ϭ

ϭϰ

Ϯ

ϭϲ

ϭϴ

ϯ

ϮϬ

ϰ

ϮϮ

ϱ

Actual

Last Year

Target

ƵƌƌĞŶƚtĞĞŬ

>ĂƐƚtĞĞŬ

ůůDĞƚƌŝĐƐĂƌĞƐŚŽǁŶtĞĞŬůǇǁŝƚŚƚŚĞzĞĂƌZƵŶŶŝŶŐĨƌŽŵϭƐƚƉƌŝů

ϬϮ

dŝŵĞWƌŽĨŝůĞŽĨ>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌŝƚǇ'ƌŝƐŝƐZĞƐŽůƵƚŝŽŶdĞĂŵ

ƌĞĂƚĞĚďǇ'D>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ^ƉŽŬĞͲŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶŝŶŐ/ŶƚĞůůŝŐĞŶĐĞͲWĂŐĞϳ

142

Group

Objective

Action area

Delivery description & detail

Inflow

1.1 To provide consistent and useable 1.1.1 - Targeted Patient Information
information to enable patients to
campaigns
make informed choices about when
and how to access the most
appropriate urgent and emergency
care service

CCGs reviewing potential to increase flu vacc uptake;
LC offering vaccination to patients with a BMI >40 and
their care homes workforce
WL / ELR to develop proposal for similar service

Inflow

1.1 To provide consistent and useable 1.1.1 - Targeted Patient Information
information to enable patients to
campaigns
make informed choices about when
and how to access the most
appropriate urgent and emergency
care service

Inflow

Inflow

Inflow

Inflow

Delivery date

Expected impact

Activity Monitoring

Delivery Status

Progress to date

LC - Nov 2015
Reduced risk of major flu epidemic
WL - 21/12/2015
ELR - 21/12/2015

Increase in uptake of flu vaccs in targeted groups.
3. Some delay –
CCGs baselines @ 31/10/2015 for Over 65y (target 75%) / Under 65y expected to be
completed as planned
(target to increase on 2014/15 of 49.6%);
LC - 61.5% / 36.6%
WL - 60.6% / 32.7%
ELR - 62.3% / 33.8%

LC care homes workers initiative completed. Patients with a
BMI >40 to commence (Rach to advise date)
LC scheme details being reviewed by WL and ELR with a view
to implementation

To deliver Stay Well (inc Flu) outreach campaign across
R Crabb (LLR Urgent
LLR targeting hard to reach and at risk groups, carers,
Care)
parents of children 0-10y,
Partnership with voluntary sector and GEM outreach ways to stay well, appropriate attendance locally per CCG
Series of local public events Dec 2015 - Feb 2016

Dec 2015 - Feb
2016

Increase public awareness of alternatives
available

Target cohorts for outreach campaign per CCG to include;
Parents of 0-5y, patients 65+y, LTC, carers groups, Age UK contacts,
multiple deprivations
Niche voluntary sector groups will in-reach to moderate/frequent
flyers who are low volume high impact users

4. On track

1.1 To provide consistent and useable 1.1.1 - Targeted Patient Information
information to enable patients to
campaigns
make informed choices about when
and how to access the most
appropriate urgent and emergency
care service

To develop consistent patient information for each UCC,
WIC, City Hubs, ED Streaming Service, CRT, AVS, OPU
To be disseminated in leaflet format;
Artwork confirmed 11/12/2015
Distribution of info w/c 14/12/2015
Implement PDSA for direct public engagement @ LRI
campus

R Crabb (LLR Urgent
Care)

w/c 14/12/2015

All front line clinicians to hand to patients at
the end of their clinical consultation
Increase public awareness of alternatives
available

No of leaflets handed out and patient contacts made @ LRI campus,
UCC Lo, City Hubs, EMAS See & Treat calls and CRT/AVS visits
Baseline - not currently monitored
Aiming for 100% distribution rate
Average distribution per week based on current activity circa;
UCC Le - 2,000
UCC Lo - 700
EMAS S&T - TBA
CRT - 600
AVS - 350
City Hubs - 850, to be 1,740

4. On track

LC have Patient Engagement event 10/12/2015
WL have Patient Engagement event Jan 2016
ELR to advise of any planned events
Outreach campaign commenced in WL Nov 2015
To undertake cross-referencing exercise during December for
the identified lists with the hard to reach moderate/frequent
flyers
Discussion with printers complete and artwork confirmed
GEM comms staff to undertake direct public engagement

1.1 To provide consistent and useable
information to enable patients to
make informed choices about when
and how to access the most
appropriate urgent and emergency
care service
1.1 To provide consistent and useable
information to enable patients to
make informed choices about when
and how to access the most
appropriate urgent and emergency
care service

1.1.2 - Roll out Patient service navigation
app 'NHS Now'

Pilot launch and refinement in EL&R

T Sacks (ELR CCG)

30/11/15

Increase awareness & utilisation of
alternatives

ELR baseline 600 downloads in first 2w

5. Complete

Completed - roll out and refinements

1.1.2 - Roll out Patient service navigation
app 'NHS Now'

Roll out to LC and WL CCGs:
Review information databases
Develop marketing & comms
Go live

R Vyas (LC CCG) /
I Potter (WL CCG)

w/c 07/12/2015
w/c 14/12/2015
w/c 21/12/2015

Increase awareness & utilisation of
alternatives

Anticipating 1000 downloads per week across LLR over next four
weeks

3. Some delay –
expected to be
completed as planned

ELR to write analytics and advise of downloads as hosts of the
app
Delay in disseminating information for review
Soft launch in WL CCG

Explore link to real time waiting information for ED/UCC
services

S Smith (LLR Urgent
Care)

31/03/16

Increase awareness & utilisation of
alternatives

Monitoring on a weekly basis of hits per CCG

1. Not yet commenced To be added to Phase 2 as functionality not available for Phase
1

Leicester City CCG:
Hubs hours of operation
M-F 18:30-22:00 S-S 09:00-22:00
Increasing utilisation of City Hubs;
Continue application of comms strategy
Implement remote booking by EDSS
Implement remote booking by NHS111
West Leics CCG:
Implement West Leics GP on the day access scheme

S Prema (LC CCG)

Decrease in ED attendance/Increased
access primary care

Current baseline for LC w/e 06/12/2015 - 782 appts booked of the
1,700 available per week (45.2%)

3. Some delay –
expected to be
completed as planned

1.1 To provide consistent and useable 1.1.2 - Roll out Patient service navigation
information to enable patients to
app 'NHS Now'
make informed choices about when
and how to access the most
appropriate urgent and emergency
care service
1.2 To improve 7 day urgent access
1.2.1 - Extended GP services
(same/next day) to primary care
services

Inflow

1.2 To improve 7 day urgent access
(same/next day) to primary care
services

1.2.1 - Extended GP services

Inflow

1.2 To improve 7 day urgent access
(same/next day) to primary care
services

1.2.1 - Extended GP services

Inflow

1.2 To improve 7 day urgent access
(same/next day) to primary care
services

1.2.1 - Extended GP services

Inflow

1.3 To extend range and timing of
alternative UCC services for
immediate but non-life treatening
conditions

1.3.1 - Urgent home visiting service (Crisis
Referral Team /Acute Visiting Service)
including direct referrals from care homes

West Leics CCG:
Hours of operation 08:00-22:00
Implement West Leics primary care weekend access
scheme targeting 2% at risk / end of life / moderatefrequent flyer patients
ELR CCG:
Coverage of total ELR population increased from 10% to
30% (95,000 patients) in Dec 2015. This equates to 3%-5%
(2,850 to 4,750) complex patients who have weekend
access
LC CCG & WL CCG:
Optimise appropriateness of use of existing SSAFA CRT
and AVS services by;
ECPs to undertake daily audit of referrals
SSAFA to inform CCGs weekly of any inappropriate use
CCGs leads to contact practices directly to discuss
WL to submit BCF request for funding of 1 WTE ECP for
dedicated triage to allow extended daily coverage

Weekly
Weekly
Live from
23/11/2015

A Bright (WL CCG)

07/12/15

Increased availability of appointments

Expected 85% uptake by general practice which would give additional 4. On track
367 appointments per day

A Bright (WL CCG)

05/12/15

Reduction in ED attendance and EA for at
risk cohort

Expected 100 extra patient contacts per weekend
Utilisation for the first weekend (without full participation) was 12
contacts

T Sacks (ELR CCG)

21/12/15

Reduction in ED attendance and EA for at
risk cohort

Supporting an anticipated 50 patient contacts per weekend day

A Bright (WL CCG) /
S Prema (LC CCG)

Monthly review

Urgent home visit requests earlier in the
day, reduction in care home calls to EMAS

Monthly monitoring
Current utilisation as at 31/10/2015;
LC - 611 visits per month of 502 contracted capacity
WL - 340 visits per month of 350 capacity

08/12/2015

4. On track

Increase in weekly utilisation to be reported
Sundays remain significantly more quiet than the rest of the
week
LC CCG to advise of EDSS remote booking functionality

Spec to all WL practices 03/12/2015
Confirmation of practice uptake by 14/12/2015
Current position @ 18/12/2015 40 of the 49 practices have
confirmed participation, giving 1,079 additional appts per
week
Federations all signed up
Implemented service 05/12/2015 in conjunction with AVS

5 GP practice hubs have signed up for roll out in December
2015

4. On track

Enhanced phone system and dedicated triage within CRT &
AVS
Address the highest and lowest GP practice users to target
both inappropriate referrals and under-utilisation
ELR SSAFA service commencement 11/01/2016 TBC

4. On track

An initial area of Oadby/Wigston/Blaby/LFE identified
Rob has approached SSAFA Board for sign off
BCF funding application approved
ELR SSAFA service commencement 11/01/2016 TBC

Additional appoinments offered and utilised
Linked to the WL Weekend Access Scheme to see 100 extra patients
per weekend

05/12/2015
Inflow

$t4o3balu

1.3 To extend range and timing of
alternative UCC services for
immediate but non-life treatening
conditions

1.3.1 - Urgent home visiting service (Crisis
Referral Team /Acute Visiting Service)
including direct referrals from care homes

Extend AVS West Leics hours of operation at weekends
ELR CCG:
Establish ELR in-car visiting service by;
Activity review to inform pilot area
Identify level of funding to requested through BCF
Identify workforce
Implement for trial

T Sacks (ELR CCG)
01/12/2015
08/12/2015
09/12/2015
18/01/2016

Urgent home visit requests earlier in the
day, reduction in care home calls to EMAS

Anticipated 100 patient contacts per month to Service

143

Inflow

Senior accountable
lead
R Vyas (LC CCG) /
I Potter (WL CCG) /
D Eden (ELR CCG)

Group
Inflow

Objective
1.3 To extend range and timing of
alternative UCC services for
immediate but non-life treatening
conditions

Action area
1.3.2 - Implement Loughborough UCC
extended care pathways

Delivery description & detail

Senior accountable
lead
Maximise appropriate use of increased specialist medical C Tierney-Reed (WL
cover 9am - 10pm Monday-Friday, 10am - 10pm at
CCG)
weekends to allow increased referrals from GPs, AVS and
EMAS
S Court (CNCS) /
UCC Lo clinicians to ride with EMAS crews to promote
Tim Slater )EMAS)
referrals to UCCs during Dec-Jan

Delivery date

01/11/2015

31/01/2016

Expected impact

Activity Monitoring

Reduction in referrals to ED for ambulatory Number of referrals to extended pathways;
conditions
Phased trajectory of avoidable emergency attends
Nov 2015 - anticipated 130, actual 30
Cumulative total of extended pathways capacity at 31/03/2016
anticipated to be 850, of which 450 would be avoidable emergency
attends

Delivery Status
4. On track

No. of EMAS shifts attended by UCC clinicians

Progress to date
Completed - implemented on time
Updated EMAS Pathfinder and NHS111 DoS
Additional GP comms to practices regarding no of cases seen
during November, types of cases, case studies, match real
time data during December to measure impact on acute
care/999 conveyances
Tim Slater has provided assurance that EMAS will provide
insurance cover for CNCS staff riding with ambulances

1.3.5 - Implementation of live waiting times Web page, with URL links available for other devices to
data feeds for the public to access
use, showing the live waiting time at each LLR UCC/WIC

R Crabb (LLR Urgent
Care)

11..01.16

Reduction in self-referrals to ED

Utilisation of UCC Lo for Oct 2015 was 3,604 appts vs capacity of
3,750 appts
Increased utilisation of alternatives to admission above current
baseline position
Current baseline TBC
Weekly monitoring of final patient dispositions;
telephone consult
face to face consult
referral to OOH clinic, UCC, ED, CRT, social care
Utilisation of 3,200 additional appointments available 18/12/2015 31/01/2016 than last Winter
Reduction in LLR and OOA ED attendances at peripheral hospitals
over the Christmas & New Year period
Once service commenced, to monitor no. of hits

1.4.1 - Implement mobile device
(smartphone) with MDoS access

T Slater (EMAS)

Jan-Mar 2016

Awareness for crews of alternatives to
admission

Increased utilisation of alternatives to admission above current
baseline by front line staff

1.4 To reduce EMAS conveyance to LRI 1.4.2 - Increase use of alternatives to
admission by EMAS crews by referral to
UCC Lo and OPU, ELR UCCs, LC Hubs and
use of Falls Pathway

EMAS CAT to be able to directly book into City Hubs
T Slater (EMAS)
All new services to align to Pathfinder outcomes
ELR UCCs to confirm that they capture direct and indirect
EMAS referrals

weekly review

Increased use of alternatives to admission
by EMAS crews

3. Some delay –
expected to be
completed as planned

EMAS to devlop own metric for reduction of conveyances to
UHL ED. EMAS (WL) doing ground work on proposal to
increase nursing capacity in CAT

14/12/2015

EMAS to develop own metric for reduction of conveyances to
ED/UCCs
Current baseline for use of alternatives by EMAS crews @ Oct 2015;
UCC Le - 0 (not currently measured)
WIC Le - 0 (not currently measured)
UCC Lo - 33 (target 40)
OPU - 4 (target 18)
AVS - 1 (target 40)
CRT - TBA
LC Hubs - 0 (not currently measured)
UCCs ELR - 0 (not currently measured)
Falls Pathway - c50% (target up to 75%)

Inflow

1.4 To reduce EMAS conveyance to LRI 1.4.3 - SSAFA to be reflected as a
Pathfinder disposition

Include AVS/CRT as alternative service on version2

T Slater (EMAS)

14/12/15

Referrals by EMAS to SSAFA

see above

6. Complete and
regular review

Inflow

1.4 To reduce EMAS conveyance to LRI 1.4.4 - Develop process to enable EMAS
access to GP medical opinion and
prescriptions;
In hours
Out of hours
Circulate Service description to all front line
staff (daily to ensure all EMAS shifts
covered)
1.4 To reduce EMAS conveyance to LRI 1.4.5 - Dedicated GP patients transport as
pilot extension to existing service where
transport is provided for a range of clinics

In hours via UCC Lo enhanced GP resource as a pilot
(assuming CNCS CG approval)
Out of hours via the CNCS HCP line

T Slater (EMAS) /
S Court (CNCS)

14/12/15

Non conveyance and increased use of
alternatives to admission

EMAS use of OOH HCP line TBA
No of consults to UCC Lo to be advised once commenced

3. Some delay –
expected to be
completed as planned

Pending the new Pathfinder booklet, we have provided our
crews and clinicians with a local directory of services including
AVS, CRT and back-office GP numbers.
Simon Court at CNCS mtg 10/12/2015 to discuss and sign off
Tim Slater to advise of current EMAS contact levels with CNCS
OOH HCP line

Implement additional service via Bed Bureau for
R Vyas (LC CCG)
appropriate GP urgent transport for patients not requiring
a clinical chaperone
Rapid testing in Leic City with focus on LE2, LE3, LE5 to
inform roll out
Comms to GP practices to promote default of selftransportation where a clinical chaperone is not required

w/c 14/12/2015

Freeing up EMAS capacity/reduction in
batching

No of patients transported by dedicated transport crews

2. Significant delay –
unlikely to be
completed as planned

1.4 To reduce EMAS conveyance to LRI 1.4.6 - Reduce referrals to EMAS from
NHS111 and OOH
1.5 To minimise the need for GP
1.5.2 - Improve process by which GPs refer
initiated/related admission to acute
to UHL for specialist opinion/admission
hospital

Review referral activity to identify scope for alternative
dispositions to LRI ED
Review early experience in November of Pathway Coordinators in Bed Bureau

Will Legg (EMAS)

TBC

RVS now unable to deliver to required specification and
timetable
In contact with TMAS and CNCS OOH for an immediate
solution
CNCS have provided costing
Julie Dixon provide Trust Medical costing 10/12/2015
Comms to Bed Bureau / GPs and implementation w/c
14/12/2015
New action identified through UNIPART exercise

Sarah Smith (LLR
Urgent Care)

10/12/15

Review has informed a discontinuation of
this service

Review has informed a discontinuation of this service

7. Closed

Changes in UHL pathways have resulted in no need for clinical
navigator roles. Bed Bureau Call Assessment Frameworks
being written for each patient pathway to inform a gap
analysis of breakdowns in patient flow
UHL liasing with Consultant Connect to develop consultant
hunt groups and agree implementation date
Further update required at next EQSG

Inflow

Inflow

Inflow

Inflow

Inflow

Inflow
Inflow

1.3 To extend range and timing of
alternative UCC services for
immediate but non-life treatening
conditions
1.3 To extend range and timing of
alternative UCC services for
immediate but non-life treatening
conditions
1.4 To reduce EMAS conveyance to LRI

1.3.3 - Increase referrals from OOH GPs to Communication to OOH GPs regarding UCC Lo enhanced
alternative services
GP pathways
Weekly review of ED attendances following OOH contact
within preceeding 24h
Reinforce all LLR non-ED options available to OOH GPs
Improve internal tracking of referrals by OOH GPs

R Haines (CNCS)

1.3.4 - ELR CCGs 4 Urgent Care Centres

T Sacks (ELR CCG)

Deliver increased utilisation of appts Winter 2015/16
compared to Winter 2014/15

Rapid roll out across LLR crews with link to live waiting
times web page, 400 front line staff to have use of
devices.

14/12/2015

Increased use of alternatives to admission
by OOH GPs

15/12/2015
15/12/2015
14/12/2015
18/12/15

Reduction in referrals to ED

3. Some delay –
expected to be
completed as planned

Awaiting activity monitoring

6. Complete and
regular review

Weekly utilisation to be demonstrated within enhanced Inflow
Dashboard
ELR to scope potential for increased capacity @ Oadby site

1. Not yet commenced Adastra feed available
UHL feed available but still outstanding
TPP not willing to commit to availability or timescale of
information feed for SystmOne sites
3. Some delay –
Pilot testing occurred to decide device of choice
expected to be
completed as planned

Inflow

1.5 To minimise the need for GP
initiated/related admission to acute
hospital

1.5.2 - Improve process by which GPs refer Implementation of 'Consultant Connect' telephone advice Julie Dixon (UHL)
to UHL for specialist opinion/admission
for respiratory and gastro patients who are at risk of
admission

14/12/15

Reductions in inappropriate emergency
attends where there are suitable
alternatives available

Collate nos of contacts for advice by GPs

2. Significant delay –
unlikely to be
completed as planned

Inflow

1.5 To minimise the need for GP
initiated/related admission to acute
hospital

1.5.2 - Improve process by which GPs refer Understanding remit and current specification of
to UHL for specialist opinion/admission
ambulatory clinics to understand appt timeframes

10/12/15

Ensure 'rapid' clinics are in fact rapid

All rapid access pathways accessible within intended timeframes.

6. Complete and
regular review

Increase utilisation of clinics by GPs and
EDSS

Improved utilisation of ambulatory clinics capacity by GPs and EDSS

Inflow

1.5 To minimise the need for GP
initiated/related admission to acute
hospital

Inflow

1.5 To minimise the need for GP
initiated/related admission to acute
hospital

1.5.2 - Improve process by which GPs refer Implement rapid cycle testing by placing a GP in ED to
to UHL for specialist opinion/admission
observe the assessment and decision making process by
ED clinicians, producing recommendations for communitybased alternatives and the role of the care plan in
supporting decision making
1.5.2 - Improve process by which GPs refer Deploy LHIS support to;
to UHL for specialist opinion/admission
Access GP care plans for ED clinicians and upskill ED ward
clerks in accessing primary care information
Reinstate dedicated IT support to ED

$t4o3balu

Catherine Free

C Tierney-Reed (WL
CCG)

10/12/15

Increased utilisation of care plans to inform No of primary care records accessed, to include care plans and
treatment pathway
medications
Feedback to GPs where care plans are not
available for at risk patients

6. Complete and
regular review

C Tierney-Reed (WL
CCG)

14/12/2015

Increased utilisationof care plans to inform No of care plans accessed
treatment pathway
Feedback to GPs where care plans are not
available for at risk patients

4. On track

TBC
John Clarke (UHL)

New Action - GPs to advise of clinics they are experiencing
difficulties with
Update on 22/12: Timeframes have been checked with each
service and added to front of directory to facilitate feedback if
issues arise with slot availability
Visit has been done
Report produced
Recommendations to be actioned

See above
Dr Ffion Davies contacted John Clarke to request support awaiting update
Action plan developed and ongoing monitoring now required

144

Inflow

1.3 To extend range and timing of
alternative UCC services for
immediate but non-life treatening
conditions

Group
Inflow

Objective
1.6 To continuously review activity
data to identify patients/groups
potentially amenable to alternative
care plans/services

Inflow

Action area

Delivery description & detail

1.6.1 - Regular attenders picked up and
WL to develop SOP based on current process for weekly
management plans agreed across agencies review of real time data to share with ELR & LC
Utilise review of real time data to target
moderate/frequent flyers, paeds (particularly 0-10y)
CCG leads to contact individual GP practices directly to
discuss alternative services
ELR and LC to circulate and adopt WL SOP

1.6.2 - Short stay admissions

Specific review of ED attends / Em Adms for Paeds &
Gynae
LCCG to Organise Patient info sessions in high usage
areas; undertake a book bag drop in every city school
'when should I worry' booklet; To Assess viability of
providing community pathway at Westcotes Health
Centre

Senior accountable
lead
C Tierney-Reed (WL
CCG) /
D Eden (ELR CCG) /
R Vyas (LC CCG)

Delivery date
11/12/2015

Expected impact

Delivery Status

Progress to date

Reduction in frequency of
attendance/admission for target patients

3. Some delay –
Target cohort is ED attends via ambulance to be reviewed
Nos of patients who died in the department (consider presence of
expected to be
completed as planned
care plan)
Nos of frequent attenders
Nos of patients admitted where an alternative service could have
been considered (UCC, OPU, AVS)
Baselines per CCG;
WL - circa 250 records reviewed every week with circa 110 reviewed
in more detail, circa 5 GP practices contacted per week

SOP shared
WL CCG system fully operational
LC CCG and ELR CCG to advise of progress to date

Detailed understanding of short stay
presentations

Reductions in Paeds and Gynae short stay activity
Increase in Paeds presentations to UCC Lo

LCCG - Data analysis complete to understand activity flow and
Leaflets ordered, Book bag drop in place before by 18.12.15

14/12/2015

14/12/2015

R Vyas (LC CCG) / R
Mitchell (UHL)

Activity Monitoring

21/12/2015
S Venables (WL CCG) /
R Crabb (LLR Urgent
Care)
11/12/2015

3. Some delay –
expected to be
completed as planned

GP’s representatives from across the CCGs to observe in both
ED and GAU/UAU/CAU to understand what primary care can
do differently on Thurs 17th and w/c 21st Dec

D Eden (ELR CCG)

Previously written SOP for gynae community pathway being
re-assessed

14/12/2015
WL to develop targeted comms campaign as part of
outreach
campaign (see 1.1) re: use of UCC Lo by parents / carers

WLCCG - Plan in place to target Surestart, Mother and Toddler
groups and similar with winter messages.

ELR conducting deep dive analysis of all Em Adms
Inflow

1.6.3 - UHL admission variance YTD by CCG UHL to identify key variances YTD by CCG and condition to R Mitchell (UHL)
and condition
inform development of further targeted plans

18/12/15

Detailed understanding of presentations

2. Significant delay –
unlikely to be
completed as planned

We are further analysing the information presented at UCB in
October to identify where the greatest increases have
occurred by age, presenting condition and CCG. The aim is to
complete by 18th December. This has been delayed because
of recent CQC requests.

Overall improvement in key KPIs

2. Significant delay –
unlikely to be
completed as planned

QMC has been contacted and planning a visit w/c 21st

Fewer lost hours and zero 2 Hr+ delays

6. Complete and
regular review

Increase in ambulance streaming to UCC

4. On track

Transition area protocol signed off. We are trying to staff
facility every shift and this has been used 3 times in the last 14
days.
Update on 16/12: SOPs in place. Updates needing following
latest changes.

Flow

2.1 To reduce delays in ambulance
handover times at the LRI site

2.1.2 - Learning from best practice
elsewhere

Look at QMC systems and processes

Richard Mitchell

w/c 30/11/15

Flow

2.1 To reduce delays in ambulance
handover times at the LRI site

2.1.3 - Pre-admission space

Transition area protocol and staffing arrangements

Richard Mitchell

w/c 30/11/15

Flow

2.1 To reduce delays in ambulance
handover times at the LRI site

2.1.5 - To complete SOP supporting the
streaming of patients from EMAS to the
streaming service and implement
2.2 To ensure walk in patients at the 2.2.3 - Consider extension of current
LRI campus are assessed and streamed service to 12am
direct to the most clinically
appropriate service

Sam Leak

31/12/15

Richard Mitchell

Lead in time once Reduction in number of patients attending Further decrease in referral rate from UCC to ED
funding has been main ED and therefore a reduction in ED
confirmed
occupancy

4. On track

2.2 To ensure walk in patients at the
LRI campus are assessed and streamed
direct to the most clinically
appropriate service
2.2 To ensure walk in patients at the
LRI campus are assessed and streamed
direct to the most clinically
appropriate service
2.2 To ensure walk in patients at the
LRI campus are assessed and streamed
direct to the most clinically
appropriate service
2.2 To ensure walk in patients at the
LRI campus are assessed and streamed
direct to the most clinically
appropriate service
2.2 To ensure walk in patients at the
LRI campus are assessed and streamed
direct to the most clinically
appropriate service
2.2 To ensure walk in patients at the
LRI campus are assessed and streamed
direct to the most clinically
appropriate service
2.2 To ensure walk in patients at the
LRI campus are assessed and streamed
direct to the most clinically
appropriate service
2.3 To ensure adequate ED nurse
staffing levels to maintain 5/6
assessment bays
2.3 To ensure adequate ED nurse
staffing levels to maintain 5/6
assessment bays

2.2.4 - To increase the number of patients
redirected by the streaming service to
community alternatives/ambulatory clinics

Julie Dixon

31/01/16

Reduction in number of patients attending
main ED and therefore a reduction in ED
occupancy

Increased proportion of patients diverted to alternative services

1. Not yet commenced Julie and Stuart Maitland- Knibb will explore this

2.2.5 - To relocate OOH service from
clinic 4 to the UCC

Julie Dixon

31/01/16

better flow within UCC

N/A

1. Not yet commenced Julie and Stuart Maitland- Knibb will explore this

2.2.6 - To increase the range of near
patient testing within the UCC

Julie Dixon

31/01/16

Reduction in number of patients attending
main ED and therefore a reduction in ED
occupancy

Further decrease in referral rate from UCC to ED

1. Not yet commenced New action

2.2.7 - To establish pathway in UCC to
assess ambulatory patients from GPs

Julie Dixon

31/01/16

Reduction in number of patients attending
main ED and therefore a reduction in ED
occupancy + reduction in admissions

Reduction in volume of GP referrals needing to access ED

1. Not yet commenced

2.2.8 - To establish pathway to direct OOH
patients through the streaming service

Julie Dixon

31/01/16

Reduced demand on OOH service

Reduction in OOH attendances

1. Not yet commenced New action

2.2.9 - To establish observation room in
UCC to both reduce admissions and if
appropriate enable direct admissions by
passing ED
2.2.10 - To route all GP urgents through bed
bureau including those with a GP letter
currently presenting to minors

Julie Dixon

31/01/16

Reduction in number of patients attending
main ED and therefore a reduction in ED
occupancy + reduction in admissions

Reduction in ED attendances and in majors congestion

1. Not yet commenced New action

Lee Walker

31/01/16

Reduction in number of patients attending
main ED and therefore a reduction in ED
occupancy + reduction in admissions

Imprrovement in GP referrals via ED metric

1. Not yet commenced New action

2.3.1 - Increase ED nursing establishment to Agency 'long lines' increased through to 11 Jan
28 plus 2/3 for transition area

Julie Smith

Complete

ED assessment bays operating at full
capacity

No. assessment bays and resus bays operational

6. Complete and
regular review

2.3.2 - ED establishment and skill mix
review

Julie Smith

31/01/16

Balance of staffing and skill mix to demand No. assessment bays and resus bays operational

Flow

Flow

Flow

Flow

Flow

Flow

Flow

Flow

Flow

Flow

$t4o3balu

Review skill mix, numbers of staff and roles in place and
refresh if indicated

EMAS crews freed up to respond to
incoming calls in the community

4. On track

RM, Julie Dixon and Lakeside have met to discuss this.
Lakeside would like to extend the hours per day that the
service is provided but are cautious because of challenges in
fully staffing the current 0900 – 2100 rota. If authorised by the
CCGs we beleive we can deliver an extension to midnight
noting an extension will cost more money. A three hour
extension will cost circa £87,000 per month. RM has already
authorised Lakeside to look at extending the scope of their
service eg increased interaction with UCC and minors and are
working up a proposal at the moment.

Authorisation to long line agreed w/c 23 November. Fill rate
has been marginal although has increased ability to fill the
baseline staff levels.
Julie Smith and Maria McAuley are working on this as part of
the establishment review process that is taking place on all
wards and departments.

145

Review commenced, analysis to be shared with CCG colleagues w/c
21.12.15

Group

Objective

Action area

Delivery description & detail
Development of protocol for consideration by UCB and
discussion with CQC

Senior accountable
lead
Richard Mitchell

Delivery date

Expected impact

Activity Monitoring

Delivery Status

10/12/15

Improved flow out of the ED

Reduced time from decision to admit to patients leaving ED

6. Complete and
regular review

Progress to date

Flow

2.4 To accelerate the admissions
process from ED to base wards

2.4.1 - Scope feasibility of introducing
movement of patients from ED to base
wards earlier in bed identification process
to streamline admission

Flow

2.4 To accelerate the admissions
process from ED to base wards

2.4.2 - To consider Relocation of bed
bureau to enable expansion of service-.

Julie Dixon

End of January

More efficiient working

Reduced time to bed allocation and improvement in GP refs via ED
metrics

1. Not yet commenced New action

Flow

2.4 To accelerate the admissions
process from ED to base wards

2.4.3 - To develop patient facing script for
bed bureau service re mode of transport to
reduce EMAS dispatch /late arrivals

Julie Dixon

End of January

Reduction in patient trasnport demand

Reduction in number of transports booked

1. Not yet commenced New action

Flow

2.5 To maximise availablilty/flexibility 2.5.1 - Reschedule some elective activity
of safely staffed bed capacity
from Monday's to weekends

01/01/16

Surgical ward capacity freed up to support
medicine

Additional medical bed capacity during January

4. On track

Plans to reduce elective work between Christmas and the
third week in January. However, in reality this is already taking
place due to the very high cancellation rate. This means that
we will not see a further benefit from this action.

Flow

2.5 To maximise availablilty/flexibility 2.5.2 - Identify opportunities to deliver UHL Scope feasibility of creating cardio-respiratory ward
of safely staffed bed capacity
activity away from the 3 acute sites
capacity at Loughborough

TBA

Freed up acute ward capacity

No. acute hospital beds operational

7. Closed

This will not take place due to clinical suitability, however
further actions are being explored.

Flow

2.5 To maximise availablilty/flexibility 2.5.2 - Identify opportunities to deliver UHL Review potential for re-comissioning space on wards used Darryn Kerr
of safely staffed bed capacity
activity away from the 3 acute sites
for non-clinical purposes

04/12/15

Physical potential to create additional bed
capacity

Number of acute hospital beds

6. Complete and
regular review

Flow

2.5 To maximise availablilty/flexibility 2.5.3 - Improve utilisation of all available
of safely staffed bed capacity
and appropriate beds

11/11/15

Improved flow out of the ED

Reduced time from decision to admit to patients leaving ED

6. Complete and
regular review

Flow

2.6 To speed up and bring forward
(time of day) the discharge process

w/c 07/12/2015

Reduced time from decision to discharge to Patients discharged by time of day
patients being made ready

6. Complete and
regular review

Flow

2.6 To speed up and bring forward
(time of day) the discharge process

18/12/15

Increased utilisation of the discharge lounge Increased utilisation of the discharge lounge
between 8am and 12pm
Patients discharged by time of day
Freed up acute ward capacity

6. Complete and
regular review

In the last month additional gastro, oncology and paediatric
beds have been opened. A further piece of work is taking
place to open additional beds and we are also confiming
required bed capacity for 16/17. It is worth noting that ability
to open additional beds is dependent on access to increased
staffing levels.
Outlying plan is circulated every Friday. Work is ongoing to
improve process. Data request made to confirm effectiveness
of process and to monitor impact on patient outcomes and
surgical activity.
Trialling additional discharge coordinator on base wards with
highest turnover. There is little evidence atm discharges have
increased as a result.
Driven increased discharges to the discharge lounge on
oncology and day wards by visiting outlying patients, and
encouraging staff to use the discharge lounge
Designed a ‘meet me in the discharge lounge’ project for
patients.

Reduce elective work for 2-3 weeks in January 2016 in
Richard Mirchell
anticipation of the predicted spike in non-elective activity

Kate Shields

Improve process for early outlying by sending out an early Julie Dixon
outlying plan with the bed state on Friday afternoon
(4:30/6pm)

Advanced HCAs x7 on wards with highest daily discharges Julie Dixon
to support flow, admin and junior Drs in making patients
ready
2.6.2 - Improve utilisation of the discharge Review current processes and approach to utilisation of Julie Dixon
lounge between 8am and 12pm.
the discharge lounge
2.6.1 - Additional assistant capacity to
support Drs in non-clinical activity

Draft SOP completed and signed off at EQSG. Trialed last week
on Wards 37 and 38. Feedback coming to EQSG this week.
Sharron Hotson discussed with CQC in November.
Update on 16/12: Julie S, Julie D and Gill to develop short
paper with summary of trial, updated protocol and next steps

Flow

Flow

Flow

Flow

2.7 To ensure that the hospital
responds appropriately to capacity
pressures in ED

2.7.1 - Co-ordinated escalation response
between ED. AMU and CDU to share risk
appropriately across the areas in the safest
possible way
2.7 To ensure that the hospital
2.7.1 - Co-ordinated escalation response
responds appropriately to capacity
between ED. AMU and CDU to share risk
pressures in ED
appropriately across the areas in the safest
possible way
2.7 To ensure that the hospital
2.7.1 - Co-ordinated escalation response
responds appropriately to capacity
between ED. AMU and CDU to share risk
pressures in ED
appropriately across the areas in the safest
possible way
2.8 To ensure that patients who do not 2.8.1 - Implement RCT of acute physicians
require an admission are directed to reviewing ED admitting decisions
ambulatory services where possible

Design and implement an escalation policy for CDU as
part of the whole hospital response to improve flow
through department

Sam Leak

01/09/2015
31/01/2016

Reduced number of diverts from AMU/CDU Evidence of escalation plans being enacted in line with policy
Reduced occupancy in CDU/ED

2. Significant delay –
unlikely to be
completed as planned

Initial meeting between CDU and ED has taken place. AMU
and ED meeting being scheduled. Existing escalation plans on
CDU and AMU are being reviewed.

Coordinated escalation process to be implemented in the Richard Mitchell
ED

19/12/15

3. Some delay –
expected to be
completed as planned

Agree and implement escalation response between AMU Richard Mitchell
and ED

19/12/15

2. Significant delay –
unlikely to be
completed as planned

Agree process for trialling + expected benefits

Ian Lawrence

16/12/2015
25/12/2015

Reduction in admissions

Reduced admission rate from ED

2. Significant delay –
unlikely to be
completed as planned

Finalising plans
Update on 16/12: Ian to action

Lee Walker

16/01/15

Reduced occupancy in ED

Increased number of patients going through AAU

4. On track

Steering group set up, IT and Estates work scoped. Business
Case for temporary additional staff completed.

Reduced CDU Occupancy

Increased propotion of patients with LoS on CDU of > 6 hours
CDU Occupancy

6. Complete and
regular review

Streaming service launched on 14/12 with comms to all CDU
staff and patient information posters. Full implementation will
be complete by March once all staff in post.

Flow

2.8 To ensure that patients who do not 2.8.2 - Increase capacity on AMU for GP
require an admission are directed to access
ambulatory services where possible

Utilise space on UCC for ambulatory patients to increase
capacity for GP direct admisisons

Flow

2.8 To ensure that patients who do not 2.8.3 - Work with CDU to develop
require an admission are directed to ambulatory clinic to streamline flow
ambulatory services where possible
through department

Stream patients at triage who are likely to be ambulatory Sam Leak
into separate area to facilitate rapid turnaround

14/12/15

Outflow

3.1 To increase community 'stepdown' capacity

Rachel Bilsborough
(LPT)

w/c 30/11/2015

Increase of alternatives to acute hospital
admission

No. ICS beds operational

Additional December capacity opened in line with plan

Outflow

3.2 To optimise use of existing
community services capacity

Implement additional 16 ICS beds;
Oct 16
Dec 16
Jan 8
Feb 40 (subject to successful staffing recruitment)
Mar 50 (subject to successful staffing recruitment)
LRI x2 additional to start by 21 Dec

Nikki Beacher (LPT)

21/12/15

More patients identified as suitable for
discharge to community services earlier in
LOS

No. patients identified for earlier discharge

Recruitment commenced

Additional recruitment to take full complement to 7 (inc.
Glenfield)

Nikki Beacher (LPT)

31/01/16

More patients identified as suitable for
discharge to community services earlier in
LOS

Maintaining daily bed management and DTOC calls

Sarah Prema (City CCG) Ongoing
/Tracy Yole (LLR
Urgent Care)

DTOC rate to be maintained <2%

Current DTOC position remains low at 1.72%

Outflow

Outflow

$t4o3balu

3.1.1 - Phased increase of Intensive
Community Support (ICS) capacity

3.2.3 - Additional Primary Care Coordinators to expedite identification of
patients suitable for discharge to
community services
3.2 To optimise use of existing
3.2.4- Additional Primary Care Cocommunity services capacity
ordinators to expedite identification of
patients suitable for discharge to
community services
3.3 To maintain DTOC rates at current 3.3.1 - Maintaining daily multi-disciplinary
low levels
partnership approach

DTOC not being rate limiting factor in
discharge flow

146

Data not available to ascertain benefit of project - awaiting
information before deciding to pursue additional initiatives

147

Agenda Item 11

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 7th JANUARY 2016
JOINT REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF ADULTS AND COMMUNITIES
AND DIRECTOR OF HEALTH AND CARE INTEGRATION
PROGRESS REPORT ON DELAYED TRANFERS OF CARE (DTOC)
Purpose of Report
1.

The purpose of this report is to:
a. Provide the Health and Wellbeing Board with a progress report regarding the local
improvements that have been made over the last 12 months on reducing delayed
bed days in hospital.
b. Advise the Board about the new DTOC national guidance and the eight high
impact changes recommended to reduce delayed transfers of care.

Link to Better Care Together
Workstream
Relevance Workstream
Maternity,
neonates, √
Mental health
children and young people

Relevance
√

Long term conditions

√

Frail and older people

√

Urgent care

√

Planned care

√

Learning disabilities

√

End of life

√

2.

The report applies to all patients who have an acute hospital stay and for whom
discharge arrangements may be complex.

3.

The majority of complex discharges however apply to frail older people, those with
long term conditions, those with complex mental health problems, and those at the
end of life.

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
4.

In January 2014 the Leicestershire Health and Wellbeing Board received a
comprehensive briefing on the urgent care system in Leicestershire which focused on
the impact of delayed transfers of care out of hospital.

148
5.

The paper outlined the multiagency approach to tackling the pressures at that time
and the actions being taken, which included specific interventions to improve hospital
discharge.

6.

In November 2015 the Leicestershire Health and Wellbeing Board received a report
on the positive contribution of the housing interventions that have been implemented
as part of the action plan to improve hospital discharge.

7.

National reporting on the significant pressures during the winter of 2014 across
health and social care resulted in additional monies being allocated to Local
Authorities during that period to further alleviate the position with respect to delayed
transfers of care.

8.

The reporting process into government highlighted inconsistencies across the
country when applying the DTOC policy and guidance, and in the reporting of data
definitions for delayed transfers of care, due to the variability in interpretation of the
guidance.

9.

There was also insufficient shared learning across the country about the
interventions that were having the greatest impact on improving hospital discharge,
and these needed to be publicised and shared more rapidly.

10. In response to these issues the national DTOC guidance was revised during 2015
and has since been published along with eight high impact changes which are
recommended to improve hospital discharge.
11. A series of nationally planned events (delivered regionally) have recently been held
to promote the guidance, take stock of progress and share learning ahead of winter
2015.
Background: Progress on Improving Hospital Discharge during 2015
12. Over the past 12 months, a number of actions/interventions have been implemented
across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland to change working practices and reduce
the number of delays in transferring patients from acute and community hospitals
back into the community.
13. These have been funded from the better care fund pooled budgets operating across
health and local government, and from winter pressures allocations.
14. In summary these are the actions taken and the impact achieved:
a. A “home first” philosophy is being applied to all hospital discharges.
b. Clear, consistent definition of “medically fit for discharge” and “ready for discharge”
between agencies.
c. Agreed minimum data set being implemented by March 2016 to achieve smooth
and safe discharges between acute and community settings.
d. Discharge pathways have been simplified so that there are now only 5 core
pathways for discharge, as shown in Figure 1 below:

149

Figure 1 – Discharge Pathways Across LLR – 2015

e. Review of domiciliary (home care) packages two weeks post discharge to ensure
service users are receiving the right level of support to promote independence.
This has released a lot more capacity into the home care market as the review
team found that after two weeks approx. 50% of patients could move to a reduced
level of support, or no further support as a result of their reablement in their usual
place of residence.
f. Daily conference calls involving operational managers from all health and social
care services to progress transfer of patients in UHL and Community Hospitals.
This ensures a constant focus on progressing discharge on a daily basis and
taking shared accountability for coordinating discharge and unblocking any
barriers to discharge across agencies.
g. “Transfer Home to Assess” Pilot (County) – health and social care assessors
working together in UHL to support patients who previously were transferred to a
nursing home for a Continuing Health Care (CHC) Assessment. These patients
now go “home first” and then receive their assessment following a short period of
recovery. This has demonstrated excellent outcomes for people, and shows there
is often a reduced level of health and social care service required once the patient
is assessed in their usual surroundings, thus reducing the over prescription of
packages of care.
h. Non Weightbearing Pathway – the pathway of care for patients who have no other
medical needs, but who cannot stand/bear weight on their limbs during recovery
has been changed. Health and social care assessors work together in UHL to
support patients to be discharged when medically fit so they can recover with
support in their usual place of residence. These patients were previously
inpatients for many weeks.
i. Alignment of Community Nursing teams with Adult Social Care teams in
Leicestershire’s localities. These integrated teams offer case management and
care planning to patients/service users in the community including supporting their
transfer back into community services after hospital discharge.

150
j. Adult Social Care dedicated social care team based at the LRI, covering all UHL
sites. During winter pressure months, this operational service is provided seven
days per week.
k. UHL have direct access to Adult Social Care Reablement (step down discharge
service) and Crisis Response Service (step up admission avoidance) seven days
per week.
l. Hospital to Home – a voluntary sector provided service to support vulnerable
people in transition from hospital to home. This provides practical and emotional
support to these people to avoid readmission to hospital (this contract has been
extended to March 17).
m. Dedicated housing support and expertise to enable effective discharge planning
from acute settings such as the Leicester Royal Infirmary and the Bradgate Unit.
(see paragraph 5) - targeted to patients who need rapid support to resolve
housing problems.
15. These actions have had a significant impact on our local performance. Appendix 1
demonstrates the improved performance achieved between April and October 2015
when compared with the same period in 2014.
16. This has resulted in Leicestershire achieving the required rate of improvement on
delayed bed days per 100,000 population, as measured in our Better Care Fund
Plan, and this has been an important contribution in tackling the ongoing pressures
affecting the performance of the Urgent Care System as a whole in LLR.
17. We will continue to test the sustained impact of the interventions now in place as we
move through the winter of 2015.
18. At the time of writing this report partners are in the process of refreshing
commissioning intentions for 2016/17, including refreshing the priorities and
investments within the Better Care Fund pooled budget for Leicestershire.
19. Sustaining the improvements in delayed transfers of care, and supporting the overall
transformation of the urgent care system will continue to be a high priority in these
commissioning intentions, with many of the DTOC improvements that have been
tested and implemented this year moving into business as usual.
Revised National DTOC Guidance and the 8 High Impact Changes
20. Revised national guidance was developed in response to the difficulties experienced
in the application of the existing guidance during the winter of 2014, and includes for
example clarifying the definitions used in national reporting of DTOC data.
21. A regional event for the Midlands (one of a series taking place nationally) was held
on 2 December in Leicester.
22. The event was an opportunity to explore the guidance, raise any concerns or queries,
consider the national self-assessment tool for the eight high impact changes for
improving DTOC, and to share good practice across health and care economies.
23. The good progress made in LLR on DTOC performance was highlighted at this event
24.

The eight high impact changes proposed nationally are given below:

151

25. A self-assessment tool has also been provided for local systems to use to map their
current interventions and performance against the eight high impact changes and
identify any gaps and areas of further development.
Proposals
26. Further to the regional DTOC event, a report was made to the Integration Executive
on 15 December highlighting the importance of the new guidance, and a number of
actions arising locally from the guidance were discussed.
27. The proposed actions from the Integration Executive included the production of this
report. Other actions, with suggested timeframes and lead officers were as follows:
I.

Completion of the national self-assessment tool against the eight high impact
changes by the LLR DTOC group (January 2016), to be coordinated by the Head
of Service (Promoting Independence) in the Adults and Communities Department.

II.

The outputs of the self-assessment to be brought to the (February 2016)
Integration Executive, with recommendations made to the March 2016 meeting of
the Health and Wellbeing Board – to be progressed by the Director of Health and
Care Integration.

III.

To produce guidance for self-funders that can be offered to patients on hospital
admission, to help self-funders better understand their options on discharge – to

152
be progressed by the Director of Adults and Communities – timescale to be
agreed in line with departmental workplan.
IV.

To consider if there are dashboards/routine analysis that can strengthen urgent
care board reporting using the new care and health trak tool - to be progressed by
the project lead for care and health trak in conjunction with the Urgent Care Board
– this work is in already progress and should be completed by the end of January.

Consultation/Patient and Public Involvement
28. Officers continue to engage with Leicestershire Healthwatch who provided valuable
insights into the experience of service users during hospital discharge. These
insights were reported to the Health and Wellbeing Board in January 2014 and have
been used in designing the improvement plan we implemented in 2015.
Resource Implications
29. Through the Better Care Fund plan Leicestershire has committed a total of £3.8m on
the new interventions described in paragraph 14 and a table is provided below of the
main areas of expenditure.
Table 1 –BCF Investments in support of Improving Hospital Discharge

Description of
Service/Intervention
Acute Hospital Discharge
Support
Community Hospital
Discharge Support
(Bridging)
Care Packages Review
Team
Hospital to Home (RVS)
Residential Reablement
(Oak Court/Catherine Dalley
House)
Housing Offer for Discharge
Support
TOTAL

Investment made via BCF
Plan 2015/16
£’000
2,811
325
277
72
294

19
3,798

Conclusions/Recommendations
30. It is recommended that the Health and Wellbeing Board:
a. Support the follow up actions for the new DTOC guidance as proposed by the
Integration Executive and set out in paragraph 27 of this report;
b. Receive the outputs of the local self-assessment against the eight high impact
changes for DTOC in March 2016

153
c. Seek assurance that good performance in DTOC will be sustained in 2016/17 and

that any remaining gaps arising from the self-assessment are prioritised in support
of this
d. Review refreshed joint commissioning plans for 2016/17, including the refreshed
Better Care Fund Plan, to seek assurance that:
i. DTOC interventions and investments can be sustained in 2016/17
ii. Discharge support is in place to maximise performance on a 7 day basis,
per the national conditions within the Better Care Fund
Officers to Contact
Cheryl Davenport
Director of Health and Care Integration (Joint Appointment)
Cheryl.Davenport@leics.gov.uk
0116 3054212
07770 281610
Jon Wilson
Director of Adults and Communities, Leicestershire County Council
Jon.wilson@leics.gov.uk
0116 3057454
Jackie L Wright
jackie.wright2@leics.gov.uk
DToC Lead
Adult Social Care
0116 3054979/07881 836331

Background papers
Improving the Urgent Care System in LLR: Focus on Hospital Discharge: Report to the
Health and Wellbeing Board on 22 January 2015
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/Published/C00001038/M00004289/AI00040255/$ImprovingtheUr
gentCareSysteminLLRFocusonHospitalDischarge.docA.ps.pdf
Housing Interventions to Support Reductions in Delayed Hospital Discharge: Report to the
Health and Wellbeing Board on 19 November 2015
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/Published/C00001038/M00004294/AI00045558/$HousingHospit
alDischargeSchemes.docxA.ps.pdf
Simple Guide to Care Act and DTOC http://londonadass.org.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2015/11/DToC-Simple-Guide-Final.pdf

Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure
None.

154
List of Appendices
•
•

Appendix 1 – Analysis: Leicestershire’s DTOC performance April 2014 – October
2015
Appendix 2 - DTOC Guidance

Relevant Impact Assessments
Equality and Human Rights Implications
31. Discharge planning is a person centred approach which considers the specific needs
and preferences of the patient/service user, and involves working closely with their
advocates, carers, or family members. Due regard is paid to protected characteristics
in assessing an individual’s needs and preferences and health and care staff receive
specific equality duty training. As part of discharge planning person centred
information is transferred securely between agencies within the health and care
system which is essential to ensure continuity in care between hospital and
community settings.
Partnership Working and associated issues
32. The delivery of sustained improvements in DTOC remain and high priority for all
partners in LLR and a joint approach is taken to delivering system improvements,
reporting our position and sharing accountability for our performance as a system.
33. The local position is reported operationally daily between partners, and on a 2 weekly
basis into the LLR Urgent Care Board.
34. There is also a system of routine national reporting for DTOC (monthly), the intervals
for this can be weekly during winter pressure periods.
35. There is also quarterly joint reporting specifically for DTOC via NHS England linked to
the delivery of the national conditions and metrics within the Better Care Fund.
Risk Assessment
36. The impact of DTOC poor performance presents risks to patient/service user
experience, quality of care, and the delivery of the entire system of urgent care.
37. It is essential that smooth, timely and effective discharge processes are in place and
that these are sustainable, so that care takes place in the right setting and patients
can move effectively between settings of care with the appropriate level of support
and coordination.
38. Poor discharge processes affect all organisations within the system and can lead to
the breakdown of care plans for patients leaving hospital. This can in turn cause a
deterioration in the service users reablement, health and wellbeing and can ultimately
lead to readmission to hospital.

155

Agenda Item 12

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 7 JANUARY 2016
REPORT OF HEALTHWATCH LEICESTERSHIRE
COMMUNITY CONVERSATIONS
Purpose of report
1.

The purpose of this report is to present the findings of Healthwatch Leicestershire’s
(HWL) Community Conversations Campaign that saw HWL listen to members of the
public at various locations across the county.

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
2.

The report will be distributed or presented to:
• West Leicestershire Clinical Commissioning Group
• East Leicestershire and Rutland Clinical Commissioning Group
• Better Care Together Programme Board
• LLR System Resilience Group and the Urgent Care Board.

Background
3.

At Healthwatch, we take learning from people's experiences as well as from
specialists and experts to build on what is already known and collaborate in
developing and sharing new insights. Our work is in line with NHS England’s
commitment to working and engaging with patients, carers, service users and the
public in a wide range of ways with an aim to improve the health outcomes for
people in England.

4.

When it comes to implementing system-wide change locally, we are focusing on key
local themes that have emerged from our patient and public engagement and that
mirror the strategic objectives of our partners. These are:
•
•
•
•

5.

Access to services
Coordination of services
The advocating of clear information of services to the public and;
Voice and advocacy in carer provision

The following is the list of questions we asked in our Community Conversations;
•
•

If you need to contact a doctor when your GPPractice is closed what would you
do?
Do you know where your nearest Urgent Care Centre is?

156
•
•
•
•
•

Would you like your doctor & hospital consultants to share your personal health
records with each other?
What information would you like to see in the waiting areas at your GP Practice
or hospital?
Name of ( your) GP Practice
Where do you live?
Please use this space to tell us about any other experiences or views.

6.

Through August 2015 to October 2015 we spoke to over 500 members of the public
and 326 surveys were completed across 14 events, working with various public,
statutory and voluntary sector stakeholders. The full report presents what the public
told HWL about key themes and how they relate to the larger work being undertaken
locally to transform local services.

7.

At the time of preparing this paper, the full findings report is being designed. An
electronic PDF version will be distributed prior to the HWB meeting and hard copies
will be available at the meeting on 7 January 2015.

Emerging themes
8.

When the GP is closed
From talking to members of the public, HWL found signs that patients are beginning
to change their behaviour and think more about the best ways to receive care and
using the NHS 111 service for advice and guidance. The majority of people told HWL
that they would call NHS 111 in the first instance that their GP practice was closed.

9.

Urgent Care Centres
When we spoke to attendees at the Over 50’s Day in Hinckley, we found that 34 out
of 46 (80%) people did not know or were unsure where to find their nearest Urgent
Care Centre (UCC).
In total, over 40% of people HWL spoke to were unsure of where to find the nearest
Urgent Care Centre. A small number of people that stated they did know where there
nearest centre was were actually mistaken.

10. Sharing information
Patient’s that were suddenly admitted to hospital, told HWL that it would be useful if
the consultant had access to their GP information, especially in times of emergency.
Overwhelmingly, respondents agreed that it would be useful for symptoms and
conditions to be shared across healthcare professionals when in need of care.
11. Waiting room information
Overwhelmingly, people told HWL that they wanted information that advised them
where to go as an alternative to their GP including contact information for out-ofhours services and where to go for specific illnesses.
People told HWL that it would be very useful to have relevant information about
UCCs as well as to inform them of which services would be most appropriate for their
individual symptoms.

157
Recommendations to the Health and Wellbeing Board
12. The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note the report findings and to
encourage partners to consider actions for improvement outlined in the findings
report.
Officer to Contact
Name and Job Title: Vandna Gohil, Director
Telephone: 0116 257 5040
Email: Vandna.g@healthwatchleics.co.uk

List of Appendices
13. An electronic PDF version will be distributed prior to the HWB meeting and hard
copies of the full report will be available at the meeting on 7 January 2015.
Relevant Impact Assessments
Equality and Human Rights Implications
1.

Healthwatch Leicestershire is aware that the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED)
applies to all functions of public authorities that are listed in Schedule 19 Equality Act
2010. Schedule 19 list does not include Healthwatch England or Local Healthwatch
organisations, however as bodies carrying out a public function using public funding
we are subject to the PSED general duty.

2.

Healthwatch Leicestershire is committed to reducing the inequalities of health and
social care outcomes experienced in some communities. We believe also that health
and social care should be based on a human rights platform. We will utilise the
Equality Act 2010 when carrying out our work and in influencing change in service
commissioning and delivery.

158

This page is intentionally left blank

159

Agenda Item 13

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 7 JANUARY 2016
REPORT OF THE DIRECTION OF HEALTH AND CARE INTEGRATION
BETTER CARE FUND QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORTING
Purpose of Report
1.

The purpose of this report is to provide the Health and Wellbeing Board with
assurance on the quarterly reporting requirements for the Better Care Fund (BCF)
including the pay for performance element of the fund, which is linked to achieving
reductions in emergency admissions.

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
2.

The Health and Wellbeing Board approved Leicestershire’s BCF Plan in September
2014.
(http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1038&MId=3984&Ver=4)

3.

The day to day delivery of the BCF is overseen by the Leicestershire Integration
Executive per the TORs agreed by the Health and Wellbeing Board in March 2014.
(http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1038&MId=3981&Ver=4)
The Integration Executive Terms of Reference have been refreshed, and were
approved by the Health and Wellbeing Board in November 2015.

4.

NHS England issued BCF implementation guidance on 20th March 2015
(http://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/part-rel/transformation-fund/bcf-plan/) which set
out the requirements for quarterly reporting along with the draft templates and
analytical tools that are required to be used for this purpose.

5.

In March 2015 Leicestershire County Council and the county Clinical Commissioning
Groups entered into a Section 75 Agreement to govern the BCF pooled budget, with
the agreement coming into effect on April 1st 2015:
•

•

•

6.

Cabinet – 15th April 2015
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/Published/C00000135/M00003992/AI00038821/$8B
CFSection75Agreementv5Cabinetreport15July2014.docxA.ps.pdf
East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG – 17th March 2015
http://www.eastleicestershireandrutlandccg.nhs.uk/images/boardpapers/March2015_Papers%20Governing%20Body.pdf
West Leicestershire CCG – 31st March 2015
http://www.westleicestershireccg.nhs.uk/page/extra-ordinary-board-meeting31-march-2015

In April 2015 the Clinical Commissioning Groups submitted operating plans to NHS
England demonstrating the commitment to reduce emergency admissions associated

160
with the BCF. These documents confirm the level of emergency admissions that have
been contracted for with acute NHS providers in 2015 on this basis.
Background
7.

In line with national requirements, the September 2014 submission of
Leicestershire’s BCF Plan included a target to reduce the number of emergency
admissions by 3.5% during 2015.

8.

At that time, total predicted emergency admissions for January to December 2015
were 54,594 with a target reduction through the Better Care Fund interventions of
1,911 (3.5%) to 52,683.

9.

As the total amount of emergency admissions actually increased during 2014/15 (a
trend experienced nationally), it was agreed to amend the 2015 target using revised
baseline data.

10. The revised target continues to represent a 3.5% reduction, however using the new
baseline this means a reduction from 58,314 to 56,273 total emergency admissions
is needed through the BCF interventions, which equates to a reduction of 2,041
admissions.
11. This amended baseline was recommended by the Integration Executive in February
2015, and approved by the Health and Wellbeing Board in March 2015 and has been
reflected in CCG operating plans.
Analysis of Current Performance
12. The third national reporting period for reducing emergency admissions via the BCF is
for the period July to September 2015, with a reporting date for this period of
November 27th 2015.
13. The data shows that the total number of emergency admissions is estimated to be
518 admissions above the planned/contracted for levels for Leicestershire’s
population for the quarter.
14. It should be noted that there are multiple factors that affect the total number of
emergency admissions within Leicestershire by quarter, not all of which can be
influenced by/mitigated by the interventions in Leicestershire’s BCF Plan.
15. If the activity trend seen in the first three quarters continues, the forecast is that up to
58,935 emergency admissions could occur in 2015 in Leicestershire, which is 2,662
above the planned activity total of 56,273 by December 2015.
16. The table below summarises the actual/provisional data to date:
Total Emergency
Jan to
Apr to
Jul to
Oct to
Admissions
Mar
Jun
Sep
Dec
2015
2015
2015
2015
(forecast)
Planned Activity
13,746
13,909
14,209
14,409
Forecast Activity
14,303
14,657
14,727
15,248
Activity Variance
557
748
518
839

Total

56,273
58,935
2,662

161
17. Leicestershire’s BCF plan includes four schemes which together are targeted to
reducing emergency admissions by 2,041 between January and December 2015.
These are:
• Rapid response falls service
• Seven day working in primary care
• Rapid assessment older person’s unit (Loughborough)
• Integrated health and care crisis response.
18. Each scheme has been allocated a proportion of the 2,041 emergency admissions.
19. Between January and November 2015 these schemes are estimated to have avoided
1,489 emergency admissions compared to a target of 1,867. These figures are
based on specific clinical definitions for avoiding an admission, and a set of agreed
performance data is being captured to assess the impact by scheme by month.
20. The data arising from the four schemes will be independently evaluated during 2015
including through the research study being undertaken in partnership with
Loughborough University and Leicestershire Healthwatch.
21. If performance continues on the same basis by quarter, the number of avoided
admissions for 2015 associated with the BCF interventions is estimated to be 1,620,
compared to the overall target of 2,041 by December 31, 2015.
Process to submit the third BCF quarterly report to NHS England
22. The BCF Operationalisation Guidance required that a quarterly performance
template was submitted to NHS England by November 27th 2015, summarising
emergency admissions performance in the third quarter.
23. The template also required the provision of information on a number of other BCF
metrics which include:
•
•
•
•
•

Permanent admissions to residential care
Effectiveness of reablement
Delayed transfers of care
Patient experience
Emergency admissions for injuries due to falls (local metric)

24. The Integration Executive reviewed the completed template at their meeting on
November 24th and submitted the required information to NHS England on November
27th on behalf of the Health and Wellbeing Board.
Financial Implications
25. The pay for performance element of the BCF totals £3m. Clinical Commissioning
Groups will pay this into the BCF on a proportionate basis relative to the actual
reduction in emergency admissions during 2015.
26. Following the Integrated Finance and Performance Group in August 2015 (LCC &
both CCG finance and planning leads) the following planning assumptions were

162
agreed in relation to the use of the £3m pay for performance pot and use of the
health reserve:
a. From the £3m pay for performance fund (risk pool) £1m will be retained by the
CCGs to recognise over performance in non-elective admissions. The remaining
£2m will be paid into the BCF in recognition of the contribution made by the four
admission avoidance schemes (1,620 predicted compared to the 2,041 target)
b. £800k was released from the reserve in 2015/16, by agreement with the CCGs to:
o Invest in further developments to reduce non-elective admissions and/or
o Invest in winter resilience.

Recommendation
27. The Board is recommended to note the contents of the report and that the third
quarterly return was approved by the Integration Executive on November 24th and
submitted to NHS England on November 27th.

Officer to Contact
Cheryl Davenport
Director of Health and Care Integration (Joint Appointment)
Cheryl.davenport@leics.gov.uk
0116 305 4212

Relevant Impact Assessments
Equality and Human Rights Implications
28. Developments within the BCF Plan are subject to equality impact assessment and
the evidence base supporting the BCF Plan has been tested with respect to
Leicestershire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment.
Partnership Working and associated issues
29. The delivery of the BCF Plan and the governance of the associated pooled budget is
managed in partnership through the collaboration of commissioners and providers in
Leicestershire.
30. Day to day oversight of delivery is via the Integration Executive through the scheme
of delegation agreed via the Integration Executive’s terms of reference which have
been approved by the Health and Wellbeing Board.
31. The delivery of the Leicestershire BCF ensures that a number of key integrated
services are in place and contributing to the system wide changes being
implemented through the 5 year plan to transform health and care in Leicestershire,
known as Better Care Together. http://www.bettercareleicester.nhs.uk/

